
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation of Dr. John T. Hopkins to serve as an alternate member on the Fayette 


County Ethics Board for a two-year term beginning immediately and expiring on January 22, 2016.


The proper operation of local government requires that public officials be independent, impartial, and responsible to the people; that 


government decisions and policy are made through proper channels of governmental structure; that public office not be used for personal 


gain; that public officials be free from the appearance of impropriety; and that the public have confidence in the integrity of government.  


The Fayette County Ethics Board has been established to ensure these goals are kept. 


 


The Ethics Board is comprised of three members and two alternate members.  Currently, the members on the Ethics Board are Mrs. 


Sheila Huddleston, Mrs. Larris Marks, and Ms. Pota Coston; however, the two alternate positions on the board are vacant. 


 


Staff advertised the two vacancies for the Ethics Board and received sixteen applications in return.  Each applicant was interviewed by 


the Chairman Steve Brown and Commissioner David Barlow, and two applicants were selected to fill the vacant, alternate positions. 


 


Doctor John T. Hopkins is one of the two applicants who has been chosen by the Selection Committee.


Approval of the Selection Committee's recommendation of Dr. John T. Hopkins to serve as an alternate member on the Fayette County 


Ethics Board for a two-year term beginning immediately and expiring on January 22, 2016.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Fayette County Ordinance 2010-10 requires members of the Fayette County Ethics Board to first pass a background check.  At the time 


the agenda was published, staff was awaiting the results of the background check.  This nomination may need to be made contingent 


upon the results of the background check.


New BusinessThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #19





























		Commissioners- John Hopkins Agenda Requst File

		Commissioners- John Hopkins Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Lee Pope


Approval of the 2014 Water Committee's meeting schedule.


The Water Committee meets every second and fourth Wednesday of the month.  In the past, the meeting schedule has been approved 


by the Board of Commissioners and then posted for the public.  


Approval of the 2014 Water Committee's meeting schedule.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent #14







 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
 
To: Water Committee 


From: Lisa Speegle 


Date: January 8, 2014 


Subject:  Meeting schedule for 2014 


 


 


Following are the dates for Water Committee meetings for this year. 


 


 January 8   January 22 


 February 12   February 26 


 March 12   March 26 


 April 9   April 23  


 May 14   May 28 


 June 11   June 25 


 July 9    July 23 


 August 13   August 27 


 September 10   September 24 


 October 8   October 22 


 November 12   November 26 - Cancel 


 December 10              December 24 - Cancel 


 


 





		Water System- Water Committee Schedule Agenda Request File

		Water System- Water Committee Schedule Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Commissioner Steve Brown


Recognition of Mallett Consulting.


Mallett Consulting has served Fayette County for thirty-three years in various capacities.  Mr. David Jaeger and his team have worked 


with the Fayette County Water System as the Engineer of Record.   


 


Through their years of service, Mallett Consulting has been professional and a reliable partner for Fayette County. 


 


The Fayette County Board of Commissioners would like to recognize and commend Mallett Consulting for their long partnership with 


Fayette County.


Recognition of Mallett Consulting.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Presentation #6












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Lee Pope


Consideration of the Water Committee's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-02 amending the Fayette County Code of 


Ordinances, Chapter 19 by adding White Lining.


White Lining is a practice that has been widely used in the United States where the National Transportation Board concluded that pre-


marking is a practice that helps prevent excavation damage.  The procedure simply involves an excavator using white paint to indicate 


the route or area that is going to be excavated, such that the locator then knows exactly how much marking is required and where.  White 


lining reduces confusion about what utilities need to be marked or not marked. 


 


Currently, there is no white lining provision in place.  This causes staff to spend a large amount of time trying to determine what needs to 


be located, per ticket, for underground utility locates.  To provide an example of the problem at hand:  Currently, a sign contractor can call 


in multiple locate requests at intersections, but instead of the sign contractor "white lining" the proposed area, county staff is required to 


locate underground utilities for each intersection for a distance of 200-feet in each direction.   This current practice limits staff's 


productivity in both time and resources since staff is working on locating underground utilities in areas that are not necessarily required 


for the proposed task. 


 


Staff is requesting that provisions for "white lining" be added to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances in order to better utilize staff's 


time and resources; ultimately saving Fayette County tax dollars.


Consideration of the Water Committee's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-02 amending the Fayette County Code of 


Ordinances, Chapter 19 by adding White Lining.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentJanuary 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent #13







 


1 


 


ORDINANCE 2014-02 


 


Article VII. FAYETTE COUNTY UNDERGROUND MARKING STANDARDS 


 


Sec. 28-230. Definitions 


 The following words are to be understood consistent with the definitions 


contained herein as applicable to this Article. 


(a) “Emergency” means a sudden or unforeseen occurrence involving a clear 


and imminent danger to life, health, or property; the interruption of utility services; or 


repairs to transportation facilities that require immediate action. 


 


(b) “Extraordinary circumstances” means circumstances other than normal 


operating conditions which exist and make it impractical or impossible for a facility 


owner or operator to comply with the provisions of this Article.  Such extraordinary 


circumstances may include, but shall not be limited to, hurricanes, tornadoes, floods, ice 


and snow, and acts of God. 


Sec. 28-231. White Lining 


(a) Background. White lining is a practice that has been widely used in the 


United States where the National Transportation Board concluded that pre-marking is a 


practice that helps prevent excavation damage.  The procedure simply involves an 


excavator using white paint to indicate the route or area that is going to be excavated, 


such that the locator then knows exactly how much marking is required and where.  


White lining reduces confusion about what utilities need to be marked or not marked. 


 


(b) Purpose. The purpose of white lining is to allow everyone involved 


with the dig site to know the exact location of the proposed excavation.  White lining the 


excavation site is an excellent way to assist the utilities or utility locators in marking lines 


in the work area right the first time and in less time.  This technique eliminates 


speculation by the locator about where the excavation will take place and will often 


enable the utility or its agent to locate faster and more accurately.  In short, pre-marking 


the area and the extent of the intended excavation can reduce delays and the time it takes 


to perform the locate. 


 


(c) Examples; timing. Examples of areas to be white lined are smaller 


(involving only a portion of a particular address) or linear excavations such as 


telecommunication drops and lines, service lines (such as for water, gas, electricity and 


sewer), utility pits, cuts and repairs, curb repairs, bore holes, directional boring pathways, 


pole and signage placements, etc.  Such examples are merely explanatory of the type of 


excavation where white lining is appropriate and are not meant to be exclusive.  White 


lining shall be completed prior to contacting GA811 to obtain a locate request ticket 


number.  Electronic/virtual white lining is not an acceptable or recognized method. 


 


 







 


2 


 


(d) Exceptions to White Lining.   Exceptions are allowed as follows: 


 


(1) Unless one or more utility facilities are damaged 5 times or more 


collectively by a contractor making the locate request within a 90-day contract 


period, white lining will not be required for any large project so designated in 


accordance with GPSC Rule 515-9-4-.13 (a copy of GPSC Rule 515-9-4-.13 


currently in effect is attached as Exhibit “A” and by this reference is incorporated 


herein).  A large project ticket holder whose past prohibits it from being exempt, 


as stated above, will be subject to no more than a two day shutdown period and 


shall be required to white line the remainder of the project to meet the Large 


Project Marking Facility Locating Agreement Schedule that the ticket holder and 


utility originally agreed upon; 


 


(2) Homeowners/occupants involved in excavation or land disturbance 


that is confined to a single address or parcel.  Homeowners/occupants shall not 


submit locate requests for excavation or land disturbance that will be performed 


by a business, a contractor, or a utility.  Businesses, contractors, and utilities are 


not exempt from white lining;  


 


(3) “Emergencies” and “extraordinary circumstances” as such terms 


are defined herein, are statutory exceptions to the requirement for obtaining a 


locate ticket prior to commencing mechanized excavation and, hence, also 


exceptions to the requirement for white lining under this section.  However, if a 


particular emergency notification is later determined not to have been an 


emergency or an extraordinary circumstance, then the excavator’s failure to 


procure a locate ticket before excavating will be treated as a violation of this 


section.  Also, pre-excavation emergency locate ticket requests (that is, a request 


for a locate ticket on an expedited basis sooner than the prescribed time limit) will 


not be an exception to white lining as required in this section; 


 


(4) Residential telecommunication service drop lines that can be 


delineated by the route of the existing line on the ground for single residential 


address/parcel requests only; and 


 


(5) Termite baiting systems. 


 


(e) White Lining Symbols as Directions to Locator. White lining proposed 


dig sites that will follow a single path or trench shall be marked using white lines and/or 


arrows and shall be located for twenty (20) feet on either side of the white line and for 


twenty (20) feet outward beyond the designated “START” and “END” of such linear 


white line.  Therefore, it is important to identify the starting and ending points. 


 


START         END 


 







 


3 


 


(f) Identification of White Lining Excavator. In order to enable the 


locating utility or its locators to quickly identify the requested locate at the job site and 


expedite the locating process, such excavator when white lining shall identify himself or 


itself by labeling the white line area with the excavator’s name or the applicable locate 


ticket number or both. 


 


Sec. 28-232. Facility Marking by or for Utilities 


 


(a) Utility Markings. Facility owners or their locate contractors shall 


indicate utility facilities by placing their UPC alpha code, along with the type material (if 


known) that the facility consists of, at the beginning and end of locates.  Also, arrows 


should be placed at the ends of markings to indicate that the underground facility 


continues.  In accomplishing the locate task, the line locator shall use industry-approved 


and generally accepted methods of locating.  The tolerance zone shall be 24” measured 


horizontally from the outer edge of either side of such marked utility facilities. 


 


(1) To avoid confusion on long runs, the marks shall be frequent 


enough to identify the owner. 


 


(2) The marks shall indicate the approximate center-line of the 


underground lines.  For example, the middle of the cable, line or pipe shall be at 


the center of the dashed marks. 


 


(3) Location marks shall be 4 to 12 inches in length and at intervals of 


5 to 10 feet. 


5 ft. to 10 ft. intervals 


    


   


4 inches to 12 inches 


(4) The line locator (person marking the lines) shall extend 


marks outside the proposed work area by 20 to 30 feet if those facilities 


extend outside the proposed excavation area. 


 


 


 


 


FAY01       FAY01 


 


 







 


4 


 


(5) In areas such as flower beds, rock gardens, etc., flags or stakes may 


be an alternative to paint.  The decision to use flags, paint, or stakes shall be based 


on the terrain and job conditions.  For instance, flags or stakes in wet areas, 


offsets in dirt construction zones that have a high volume of traffic crossing their 


line location marks. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


(6) Dead ends, stub-outs, termination points, etc., shall be marked as 


follows: 


 


 FAY01            FAY01  


 


(7) Lines that have connections (e.g., T’s or Y’s) or changes in 


directions shall be clearly indicated.  Marks indicating lines or connections shall 


clearly show the intersection and path of the line or connection.  Marks that show 


changes in direction shall be placed closer together for more clarity and accuracy. 


 FAY01 


 


 


 


 FAY01  FAY01 


 


 


 


 


 FAY01 


 


 


 


(8) Manholes and valves shall be identified by using a circle and 


letters if they are not visible (dirt covering valve boxes or pavement covering 


manhole cover). 







 


5 


 


 


 V M 


(9) Facilities that cross but do not intersect shall be marked as 


described to indicate such installation manner. 


 


 


                                    FAY01 


 


 


 


                                FAY01                                                                     FAY01 


 


 


 


 


                                                          FAY01 


 


 


 


 


(10) Unlocateable sewer laterals shall be marked by placing a green 


triangle on the sewer main and, if the location of the tap for such unlocateable 


sewer lateral is known, by placing a green “T” or “Y” or other appropriate symbol 


at the tap pointing generally toward the address served by such unlocateable 


sewer lateral. 


 


 


               PCHO7 


 


 


(11) When facilities share the same trench, they shall be heavily 


identified and separated enough so that they can be readily identified.  This would 


apply to lines that share the same color code.  For example, cable television and 


telephone lines: 


 


 


     AT&T 


  


                                                        COMCAST 


         GA. POWER 







 


6 


 


 


 


(12) If the facility to be marked has a diameter greater than 12”, the size 


of the facility shall be indicated if known.  If the size is not known, then the mark 


shall indicate greater than 12 inches. 


 


(13) Duct structures shall be marked by using a dot with parallel 


boundary on each side of the dot. 


 


  


 AT&T 


 


 


(14) In areas where there is a strong likelihood that any or all marker 


types showing line location would be destroyed, offsets shall be placed on a 


permanent surface.  However, offsets should be used only in conjunction with 


marks placed above a facility.  Offset spacing should be every third or fourth 


mark.  For example, the following mark would indicate the line is 16 feet from the 


end of the arrow.                      


                                     AT&T 


 


 


 


  


                                                          AT&T 


 


(15) In areas where cables are spliced, the facilities should be located 


individually as far as possible on both sides of the splice.  When the signal is 


distorted due to the near proximity to the splice a circle with “SP” should indicate 


the area of distortion or “splice pit”. 


 


 


 


  


                                                               SP 


  







 


7 


 


 


 


Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 25-9-3, 25-9-6, 25-9-7 (a) (2), 25-9-12, 25-9-13 (f), 46-2-20 (i) and 


46-2-30 and GPSC Utility Rule 515-9-1-.01. 







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 1 -


Senate Bill 117


By: Senators Jeffares of the 17th, Tippins of the 37th, Murphy of the 27th, Mullis of the


53rd, Gooch of the 51st and others 


A BILL TO BE ENTITLED


AN ACT


To amend Chapter 9 of Title 25 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to1


blasting or excavating near utility facilities, so as to revise and add definitions; to provide for2


responses by facility owners and operators regarding design locate requests; to clarify the3


effect of a design locate request; to require that the time frame for the requested excavation4


be defined in a locate request; to provide that white lining shall not obstruct certain signage5


and markings; to limit the expansion of tracts for blasting or excavation; to revise the time6


frame for acting on locate requests; to provide for strict liability for certain costs by facility7


owners and operators under certain circumstances; to provide for the promulgation of certain8


rules by the Public Service Commission; to provide for the use of reasonable care by9


excavators to protect utilities in tolerance zones; to provide for exceptions with regard to10


certain enforcement actions; to change the composition of the advisory committee and11


provide for an attendance policy at its meetings; to provide for related matters; to repeal12


conflicting laws; and for other purposes.13


BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF GEORGIA:14


SECTION 1.15


Chapter 9 of Title 25 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, relating to blasting or16


excavating near utility facilities, is amended by revising Code Section 25-9-3, relating to17


definitions, as follows:18


"25-9-3.19


As used in this chapter, the term:20


(1)  'Abandoned utility facility' means a utility facility taken out of service by a facility21


owner or operator on or after January 1, 2001.22


(2)  'Blasting' means any operation by which the level or grade of land is changed or by23


which earth, rock, buildings, structures, or other masses or materials are rended, torn,24


demolished, moved, or removed by the detonation of dynamite or any other explosive25


agent.26







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 2 -


(3)  'Business days' means Monday through Friday, excluding the following holidays:27


New Year's Day, Birthday of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., Memorial Day, Independence28


Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and the following Friday, Christmas Eve, and29


Christmas Day.  Any such holiday that falls on a Saturday shall be observed on the30


preceding Friday.  Any such holiday that falls on a Sunday shall be observed on the31


following Monday.32


(4)  'Business hours' means the time from 7:00 A.M. to 4:30 P.M. local time on business33


days.34


(5)  'Commission' means the Public Service Commission.35


(6)  'Corporation' means any corporation; municipal corporation; county; authority;36


joint-stock company; partnership; association; business trust; cooperative; organized37


group of persons, whether incorporated or not; or receiver or receivers or trustee or38


trustees of any of the foregoing.39


(7)  'Damage' means any impact or exposure that results in the need to repair a utility40


facility or sewer lateral due to the weakening or the partial or complete destruction of the41


facility or sewer lateral including, but not limited to, the protective coating, lateral42


support, cathodic protection, or the housing for the line, device, sewer lateral, or facility.43


(8)  'Design locate request' means a communication to the utilities protection center in44


which a request for locating existing utility facilities for bidding, predesign, or advance45


planning purposes is made.  A design locate request may shall not be used for excavation46


purposes.47


(9)  'Designate' means to stake or mark on the surface of the tract or parcel of land the48


location of a utility facility or sewer lateral.49


(10)  'Emergency' means a sudden or unforeseen occurrence involving a clear and50


imminent danger to life, health, or property; the interruption of utility services; or repairs51


to transportation facilities that require immediate action.52


(11)  'Emergency notice' means a communication to the utilities protection center to alert53


the involved facility owners or operators of the need to excavate due to an emergency that54


requires immediate excavation.55


(12)  'Excavating' means any operation by which the level or grade of land is changed or56


using mechanized equipment or explosives to move earth, rock, or other material below57


existing grade.  This is moved and includes, without limitation, grading, trenching,58


digging, ditching, augering, scraping, directional boring, and pile driving. Such term,59


however, does not include routine road surface scraping maintenance includes but is not60


limited to augering, blasting, boring, digging, ditching, dredging, drilling, driving-in,61


grading, plowing-in, ripping, scraping, trenching, and tunneling.  'Excavating' shall not62


include pavement milling or pavement repair that does not exceed the depth of the63



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 3 -


existing pavement or 12 inches, whichever is less.  The term shall not include other64


routine roadway road or railroad maintenance activities carried out by road maintenance65


or railroad employees or contractors, provided that such activities occur entirely within66


the right of way of a public road, street, railroad, or highway of the state; are carried out67


with reasonable care so as to protect any utility facilities and sewer laterals placed in the68


right of way by permit; are carried out within the limits of any original excavation on the69


traveled way, shoulders, or drainage ditches of a public road, street, railroad, or highway,70


and do not exceed 18 inches in depth below the grade existing prior to such activities;71


and, if involving the replacement of existing structures guard rails and sign posts, replace72


such structures guard rails and sign posts in their previous locations and at their previous73


depth.  'Excavating' shall not include normal farming activities.74


(13)  'Excavator' means any person engaged in excavating or blasting as defined in this75


Code section.76


(14)  'Extraordinary circumstances' means circumstances other than normal operating77


conditions which exist and make it impractical or impossible for a facility owner or78


operator to comply with the provisions of this chapter.  Such extraordinary circumstances79


may include, but shall not be limited to, hurricanes, tornadoes, floods, ice and snow, and80


acts of God.81


(15)  'Facility owner or operator' means any person or entity with the sole exception of82


a homeowner who owns, operates, or controls the operation of a utility facility.83


(16)  'Farming activities' means the tilling of the fields related to agricultural activities but84


does not include other types of mechanized excavating on a farm.85


(17)  'Horizontal directional drilling' or 'HDD' means a type of trenchless excavation that86


uses guidable boring equipment to excavate in an essentially horizontal plane without87


disturbing or with minimal disturbance to the ground surface.88


(17)(18)  'Large project' means an excavation that involves more work to locate utility89


facilities than can reasonably be completed within the requirements of subsection (a) of90


Code Section 25-9-7.91


(18)(19)  'Local governing authority' means a county, municipality, or local authority92


created by or pursuant to general, local, or special Act of the General Assembly, or by the93


Constitution of the State of Georgia.  The term also includes any local authority that is94


created or activated by an appropriate ordinance or resolution of the governing body of95


a county or municipality individually or jointly with other political subdivisions of this96


state.97


(19)(20)  'Locate request' means a communication between an excavator and the utilities98


protection center in which a request for locating designating utility facilities, sewer99


laterals, or both is processed.100



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 4 -


(20)(21)  'Locator' means a person who is acting on behalf of facility owners and101


operators in designating the location of the utility facilities and sewer laterals of such102


owners and operators.103


(21)(22)  'Mechanized excavating equipment' means all equipment which is powered by104


any motor, engine, or hydraulic or pneumatic device and which is used for excavating.105


(23)  'Milling' means the process of grinding asphaltic concrete.106


(22)(24) 'Minimally intrusive excavation methods' means methods of excavation that107


minimize the potential for damage to utility facilities and sewer laterals.  Examples108


include, but are not limited to, air entrainment/vacuum extraction systems and water109


jet/vacuum excavation systems operated by qualified personnel and careful hand tool110


usage and other methods as determined by the Public Service Commission.  The term111


does not include the use of trenchless excavation.112


(23)(25)  'Permanent marker' means a visible indication of the approximate location of113


a utility facility or sewer lateral that can reasonably be expected to remain in position for114


the life of the facility.  The term includes, but is not limited to, sewer cleanouts; water115


meter boxes; and etching, cutting, or attaching medallions or other industry accepted116


surface markers to curbing, pavement, or other similar visible fixed surfaces.  All117


permanent markers other than sewer cleanouts, water meter boxes, or any other visible118


component of a utility facility that establish the exact location of the facility must be119


placed accurately in accordance with Code Section 25-9-9 and be located within the120


public right of way.  Sewer cleanouts, water meter boxes, or any other visible component121


of a utility facility that establishes the exact location of the facility must be located within122


ten feet of the public right of way to be considered a permanent marker.123


(24(26)  'Person' means an individual, firm, joint venture, partnership, association, local124


governing authority, state, or other governmental unit, authority, department, agency, or125


a corporation and shall include any trustee, receiver, assignee, employee, agent, or126


personal representative thereof.127


(25)(27)  'Positive response information system' or 'PRIS' means the automated128


information system operated and maintained by the utilities protection center at its129


location that allows excavators, locators, facility owners or operators, and other affected130


parties to determine the status of a locate request or design locate request.131


(28)  'Routine road maintenance' means work that is planned and performed on a routine132


basis to maintain and preserve the condition of the public road system and includes133


routine road surface scraping, mowing grass, animal removal, cleaning of inlets and134


culverts, trash removal, striping and striping removal, and cutting of trees; however,135


stump removal shall be considered excavation.136



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 5 -


(26)(29)  'Service area' means a contiguous area or territory which encompasses the137


distribution system or network of utility facilities by means of which a facility owner or138


operator provides utility service.139


(27)(30)  'Sewer lateral' means an individual customer service line which transports waste140


water from one or more building units to a utility owned sewer facility.141


(28)(31) 'Sewer system owner or operator' means the owner or operator of a sewer142


system.  Sewer systems shall be considered to extend to the connection to the customer's143


facilities.144


(29)(32)  'Traffic control devices' means all roadway or railroad signs, sign structures, or145


signals and all associated infrastructure on which the public relies for informational,146


regulatory, or warning messages concerning the public or railroad rights of way.147


(30)(33)  'Traffic management system' means a network of traffic control devices,148


monitoring sensors, and personnel, with all associated communications and power149


services, including all system control and management centers.150


(31)(34)  'Tolerance zone' means the width of the utility facility or sewer lateral plus 24151


18 inches on either side of the outside edge of the utility facility or sewer lateral on a152


horizontal plane.153


(32)(35)  'Trenchless excavation' means a method of excavation that uses boring154


equipment to excavate with minimal or no disturbance to the ground surface and includes155


horizontal directional drilling.156


(33)(36)  'Unlocatable facility' means an underground facility that cannot be marked with157


reasonable accuracy using generally accepted techniques or equipment commonly used158


to designate utility facilities and sewer laterals.  This term includes, but is not limited to,159


nonconductive utility facilities and sewer laterals and nonmetallic underground facilities160


that have no trace wires or records that indicate a specific location.161


(34)(37) 'Utilities protection center' or 'UPC' means the corporation or other organization162


formed by facility owners or operators to provide a joint notification service for the163


purpose of receiving advance notification from persons planning to blast or excavate and164


distributing such notifications to its affected facility owner or operator members.165


(35)(38)  'Utility facility' means an underground or submerged conductor, pipe, or166


structure used or installed for use in providing electric or communications service or in167


carrying, providing, or gathering gas, oil or oil products, sewage, waste water, storm168


drainage, or water or other liquids.  All utility facilities shall be considered to extend up169


to the connection to the customer's facilities.  The term does not include traffic control170


devices, traffic management systems, or sewer laterals.171



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 6 -


(39)  'White lining' means marking the route of the excavation either electronically or172


with white paint, flags, stakes, or a combination of such methods to outline the dig site173


prior to notifying the UPC and before the locator arrives on the job."174


SECTION 2.175


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-4, relating to design locate176


request and response, as follows:177


"25-9-4.178


(a)  Any person may submit a design locate request to the UPC. Such design locate request179


shall:180


(1)  Describe the tract or parcel of land for which the design locate request has been181


submitted with sufficient particularity, as defined by policies developed and promulgated182


by the UPC, to enable the facility owner or operator to ascertain the precise tract or parcel183


of land involved; and184


(2)  State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who has submitted the185


design locate request, as well as the name, address, and telephone number of any other186


person authorized to review any records subject to inspection as provided in paragraph187


(3) of subsection (b) of this Code section.188


(b)  Within ten working days after a design locate request has been submitted to the UPC189


for a proposed project, the facility owner or operator shall respond by one of the following190


methods the method requested by the person calling in the design locate request:191


(1)  Designate or cause to be designated by a locator in accordance with Code Section192


Sections 25-9-7 and 25-9-9 the location of all utility facilities and sewer laterals within193


the area of the proposed excavation;194


(2)  Provide to the person submitting the design locate request the best available195


description of all utility facilities and sewer laterals in the area of proposed excavation,196


which might include drawings of utility facilities and sewer laterals already built in the197


area, or other facility records that are maintained by the facility owner or operator; or198


(3)  Allow the person submitting the design locate request or any other authorized person199


to inspect or copy the drawings or other records for all utility facilities and sewer laterals200


within the proposed area of excavation.201


(c)  Upon responding using any of the methods provided in subsection (b) of this Code202


section, the facility owner or operator shall provide the response to the UPC in accordance203


with UPC procedures.204


(d)  A design locate request shall not be used for excavation purposes."205



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 7 -


SECTION 3.206


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-6, relating to prerequisites207


to blasting or excavating and marking of sites, as follows:208


"25-9-6.209


(a)  No person shall commence, perform, or engage in blasting or in excavating with210


mechanized excavating equipment on any tract or parcel of land in any county in this state211


unless and until the person planning the blasting or excavating has given 48 hours' notice212


by submitting a locate request to the UPC, beginning the next business day after such213


notice is provided, excluding hours during days other than business days. Any person214


performing excavation is responsible for being aware of all information timely entered into215


the PRIS prior to the commencement of excavation. If, prior to the expiration of the 48216


hour waiting period, all identified facility owners or operators have responded to the locate217


request, and if all have indicated that their facilities are either not in conflict or have been218


marked, then the person planning to perform excavation or blasting shall be authorized to219


commence work, subject to the other requirements of this Code section, without waiting220


the full 48 hours. The 48 hours' notice shall not be required for excavating where minimally221


intrusive excavation methods are used exclusively. Any locate request received by the UPC222


after business hours shall be deemed to have been received by the UPC the next business223


day. Such locate request shall:224


(1)  Describe the tract or parcel of land upon which the blasting or excavation is to take225


place with sufficient particularity, as defined by policies developed and promulgated by226


the UPC, to enable the facility owner or operator to ascertain the precise tract or parcel227


of land involved;228


(2)  State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who will engage in the229


blasting or excavating;230


(3)  Describe the type of blasting or excavating to be engaged in by the person; and231


(4)  Designate the date upon which the blasting or excavating will commence Define the232


time frame in which requested excavation may occur.233


(b)  In the event the location upon which the blasting or excavating is to take place cannot234


be described with sufficient particularity to enable the facility owner or operator to235


ascertain the precise tract or parcel involved, the person proposing the blasting or236


excavating shall mark the route or boundary of the site of the proposed blasting or237


excavating by means of white paint, white stakes, or white flags if practical, or schedule238


an on-site meeting with the locator or facility owner or operator and inform the UPC,239


within a reasonable time, of the results of such meeting.  The person marking a site with240


white lining shall not be allowed to obstruct signs, pavement markings, pavement, or other241



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 8 -


safety devices as outlined in the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, Traffic242


Movements or Sight Distances on any Public Road or Roadway.243


(c)  Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, notice given pursuant to subsection244


(a) of this Code section shall expire 21 calendar days following the date of such notice, and245


no blasting or excavating undertaken pursuant to this notice shall continue after such time246


has expired. In the event that the blasting or excavating which is the subject of the notice247


given pursuant to subsection (a) of this Code section will not be completed within 21248


calendar days following the date of such notice, an additional notice must be given in249


accordance with subsection (a) of this Code section for the locate request to remain valid.250


Additional notices for an existing request shall not expand the tract or parcel of land upon251


which the blasting or excavation is to take place.252


(d)  For emergencies, notice shall expire at 7:00 A.M. three business days after the253


notification is made to the UPC.254


(e)  Except for those persons submitting design locate requests, no person, including255


facility owners or operators, shall request marking of a site through the UPC unless256


excavating is scheduled to commence.  In addition, no person shall make repeated requests257


for re-marking, unless the repeated request is required for excavating to continue or due to258


circumstances not reasonably within the control of such person.  Any person who willfully259


fails to comply with this subsection shall be liable to the facility owner or operator260


for $100.00 or for actual costs, whichever is greater, for each repeated request for261


re-marking.262


(f)  If, subsequent to giving the notice to the UPC required by subsection (a) of this Code263


section, a person planning excavating determines that such work will require blasting, then264


such person shall promptly so notify the UPC and shall refrain from any blasting until the265


facility owner or operator responds within 24 hours, excluding hours during days other than266


business days, following receipt by the UPC of such notice.267


(g)  When a locate request is made in accordance with subsection (a) of this Code section,268


excavators other than the person planning the blasting or excavating may conduct such269


activity, provided that the person planning the blasting or excavating shall remain270


responsible for ensuring that any stakes or other markings placed in accordance with this271


chapter remain in place and reasonably visible until such blasting or excavating is272


completed; and provided, further, that such blasting or excavating is:273


(1)  Performed on the tract or parcel of land identified in the locate request;274


(2)  Performed by a person authorized by and having a contractual relationship with the275


person planning the blasting or excavating;276


(3)  The type of blasting or excavating described in the locate request; and277


(4)  Carried out in accordance with all other requirements of this chapter.278



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 9 -


(h)  Facility owners or operators may bill an excavator their costs for any requests for279


re-marking other than for re-marks with no more than five individual addresses on a single280


locate request.  Such costs shall be documented actual costs and shall not exceed $100.00281


per re-mark request."282


SECTION 4.283


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-7, relating to determining284


whether utility facilities are present, information to UPC, noncompliance, future utility285


facilities, and abandoned utility facilities, as follows:286


"25-9-7.287


(a)(1)  Within 48 hours beginning the next business day after the business day following288


receipt by the UPC of the locate request filed in accordance with Code Section 25-9-6,289


excluding hours during days other than business days, each facility owner or operator290


shall determine whether or not utility facilities are located on the tract or parcel of land291


upon which the excavating or blasting is to occur.  If utility facilities are determined to292


be present, the facility owner or operator shall designate, through stakes, flags, permanent293


markers, or other marks on the surface of the tract or parcel of land, the location of utility294


facilities.  This subsection shall not apply to large projects.295


(2)  Designation of the location of utility facilities through staking, flagging, permanent296


markers, or other marking shall be in accordance with the American Public Works297


Association (APWA) color code in place at the time the location of the utility facility is298


designated.  Additional marking requirements beyond color code, if any, shall be299


prescribed by rules and regulations promulgated by the Public Service Commission.300


(3)  A facility owner or operator is not required to mark its own facilities within 48 hours301


if the facility owner or operator or its agents are the only parties performing the302


excavation; however, such facilities shall be designated prior to the actual start of303


excavation.304


(b)(1)  Within 48 hours beginning the next business day after the business day following305


receipt by the UPC of the locate request filed in accordance with Code Section 25-9-6,306


excluding hours during days other than business days, each sewer system owner or307


operator shall determine whether or not sewer laterals are located or likely to be located308


on the tract or parcel of land upon which the excavating or blasting is to occur.  If sewer309


laterals are determined to be present or likely to be present, then the sewer system owner310


or operator shall assist in designating sewer laterals up to the edge of the public right of311


way.  Such assistance shall not constitute ownership or operation of the sewer lateral by312


the sewer system owner or operator.  Good faith compliance with provisions of this313


subsection in response to a locate request shall constitute full compliance with this314



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 10 -


chapter, and no person shall be found liable to any party for damages or injuries as a315


result of performing in compliance with the requirements of this subsection.316


(2)  To assist in designating sewer laterals, the sewer system owner or operator shall317


provide its best available information regarding the location of the sewer laterals to the318


excavator.  This information shall be conveyed to the excavator in a manner that may319


include, but shall not be limited to, any one of the following methods:320


(A)  Marking the location of sewer laterals in accordance with subsection (a) of this321


section, provided that:322


(i)  Any sewer lateral designated using the best available information shall constitute323


a good faith attempt and shall be deemed to be in compliance with this subsection,324


provided that such mark represents only the best available information of the sewer325


system owner or operator and may not be accurate; and326


(ii)  If a sewer lateral is unlocatable, a triangular green mark shall be placed at the327


sewer main pointing at the address in question to indicate the presence of an328


unlocatable sewer lateral;329


(B)  Providing electronic copies of or delivering the records through facsimile or by330


other means to an agreed upon location within 48 hours beginning the next business day331


after the business day following receipt by the UPC of the locate request filed in332


accordance with Code Section 25-9-6, excluding hours during days other than business333


days; provided, however, that for local governing authorities that receive fewer than 50334


locate requests annually, the local governing authority may designate the agreed upon335


location and communicate such designation to the excavator;336


(C)  Arranging to meet the excavator on site to provide the best available information337


about the location of the sewer laterals;338


(D)  Providing the records through other processes and to other locations approved by339


documented agreement between the excavator and the facility owner or operator; or340


(E)  Any other reasonable means of conveyance approved by the commission after341


receiving recommendations from the advisory committee, provided that such means are342


equivalent to or exceed the provisions of subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of this343


paragraph.344


(c)  Each facility owner or operator, either upon determining that no utility facility or sewer345


lateral is present on the tract or parcel of land or upon completion of the designation of the346


location of any utility facilities or sewer laterals on the tract or parcel of land as required347


by subsection (a) or (b) of this Code section, shall provide this information to the UPC in348


accordance with procedures developed by the UPC, which may include the use of the349


PRIS.  In no event shall such notice be provided later than midnight of the second business350



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 11 -


day following receipt by the UPC of actual notice filed in accordance with Code Section 25-9-6.351


(d)  In the event the facility owner or operator is unable to designate the location of the352


utility facilities or sewer laterals due to extraordinary circumstances, the facility owner or353


operator shall notify the UPC and provide an estimated completion date in accordance with354


procedures developed by the UPC, which may include the use of the PRIS.355


(e)   If, at the end of the time period specified in subsections (a) and (b) of this Code356


section, any facility owner or operator has not complied with the requirements of357


subsections (a), (b), and (c) of this Code section, as applicable, the UPC shall issue a358


second request to each such facility owner or operator.  If the facility owner or operator359


does not respond to this additional request by 12:00 Noon of that business day, either by360


notifying the UPC in accordance with procedures developed by the UPC that no utility361


facilities or sewer laterals are present on the tract or parcel of land, or by designating the362


location of such utility facilities or sewer laterals in accordance with the provisions of363


subsections (a) and (b) of this Code section, as applicable, then the person providing notice364


pursuant to Code Section 25-9-6 may proceed with the excavating or blasting, provided365


that there is no visible and obvious evidence of the presence of an unmarked utility facility366


or sewer lateral on the tract or parcel of land.  Such person shall not be subject to any367


liability resulting from damage to the utility facility or sewer lateral as a result of the368


blasting or excavating, provided that such person complies with the requirements of Code369


Section 25-9-8.370


(f)  If visible and obvious evidence of the presence of an unmarked utility facility or sewer371


lateral does exist and the facility owner or operator either refuses to comply with372


subsections (a) through (d) of this Code section, as applicable, or is not a member of the373


UPC, then the excavator shall attempt to designate such facility or sewer lateral prior to374


excavating.  The facility owner or operator shall be strictly liable for the actual costs375


associated with the excavator designating such utility facilities and sewer laterals and any376


associated downtime.  Such costs shall not exceed $100.00 or documented actual costs,377


whichever is greater, for each locate request.378


(g)  All utility facilities installed by facility owners or operators on or after January 1, 2001,379


shall be installed in a manner which will make them locatable using a generally accepted380


electronic locating method.  All sewer laterals installed on or after January 1, 2006, shall381


be installed in a manner which will make them locatable by facility owners or operators382


using a generally accepted electronic locating method.  In the event that an unlocatable383


utility facility or unlocatable sewer lateral becomes exposed when the facility owner or384


operator is present or in the case of sewer laterals when the sewer utility owner or operator385


is present on or after January 1, 2006, such utility facility or sewer lateral shall be made386


locatable through the use of a permanent marker or an updating of permanent records.387



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 12 -


(h)  Facility owners or operators shall either maintain recorded information concerning the388


location and other characteristics of abandoned utility facilities, maintain such abandoned389


utility facilities in a locatable manner, or remove such abandoned utility facilities.  Facility390


owners or operators shall provide information on abandoned utility facilities, when391


possible, in response to a locate request or design locate request.  When the presence of an392


abandoned facility within an excavation site is known, the facility owner or operator should393


attempt to locate and mark designate the abandoned facility or provide information to the394


excavator regarding such facilities.  When located or exposed, all abandoned utility395


facilities and sewer laterals shall be treated as live utility facilities and sewer laterals.396


(i)  Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary, a facility owner or operator397


may use a locator to designate any or all utility facilities and sewer laterals.  The use of a398


locator shall not relieve the facility owner or operator of any responsibility under this399


chapter.  However, by contract a facility owner or operator may be indemnified by a locator400


for any failure on the part of the locator to comply with the provisions of this chapter.401


(j)  By January 1, 2006, the advisory committee shall propose to the Public Service402


Commission rules and processes specific to the locating of large projects.  These rules shall403


include, but shall not be limited to, the establishment of detailed processes.  Such rules may404


also include changes in the time period allowed for a facility owner or operator to comply405


with the provisions of this chapter and to the time period for which designations are valid.406


The commission shall promulgate rules addressing this subsection no later than June 1,407


2006 Large project rules shall be promulgated by the Public Service Commission.  These408


rules shall include, but shall not be limited to, the establishment of detailed processes.409


Such rules may also include changes in the time period allowed for a facility owner or410


operator to comply with the provisions of this chapter and the time period for which411


designations are valid.412


(k)(1)  Within 48 hours beginning the next business day after the business day following413


receipt by the UPC of the locate request filed in accordance with Code Section 25-9-6,414


excluding hours during days other than business days, each facility owner or operator415


shall determine whether or not unlocatable facilities other than sewer laterals are present.416


In the event that such facilities are determined to be present, the facility owner or operator417


shall exercise reasonable care in locating such facilities. The exercise of reasonable care418


shall require, at a minimum, the use of the best available information to designate the419


facilities and notification to the UPC of such attempted location. Placing markers or420


otherwise leaving evidence of locations of facilities is deemed to be an acceptable form421


of notification to the excavator or locator.422


(2)  This subsection shall not apply to sewer laterals."423



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 13 -


SECTION 5.424


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-8, relating to treatment of gas425


pipes and other underground utility facilities by blasters and excavators, as follows:426


"25-9-8.427


(a)  Persons engaged in blasting or in excavating with mechanized excavating equipment428


shall not strike, damage, injure, or loosen any utility facility or sewer lateral which has429


been staked, flagged, or marked in accordance with this chapter.430


(b)  When excavating or blasting is to take place within the tolerance zone, the excavator431


shall exercise such reasonable care as may be necessary for the protection of the utility432


facility or sewer lateral, including permanent markers and paint placed to designate utility433


facilities.  This protection shall include, but may not be limited to, at least one of the434


following based on geographical and climate conditions: hand digging, pot holing, soft435


digging, vacuum excavation methods, pneumatic hand tools, or other technical methods436


that may be developed.  Other mechanical methods may be used with the approval of the437


facility owner or operator, or other generally accepted methods.  For parallel type438


excavations, the existing facility shall be exposed at intervals as often as necessary to avoid439


damages.440


(c)  If the precise location of the underground facilities cannot be determined by the441


excavator, the facility owner or operator thereof shall be notified by the excavator so that442


the operator and the excavator shall work together to determine the precise location of the443


underground facilities prior to continuing the excavation.444


(c)(d)  When conducting trenchless excavation the excavator must exercise reasonable care,445


as described in subsection (b) of this Code section, and shall take additional care to attempt446


to prevent damage to utility facilities and sewer laterals.  The recommendations of the447


HDD consortium applicable to the performance of trenchless excavation set out in the448


document 'Horizontal Directional Drilling Good Practice Guidelines,' dated May, 2001, are449


adopted by reference as a part of this subsection to describe such additional care.  The450


advisory committee may recommend to the commission more stringent criteria as it deems451


necessary to define additional care and the commission is authorized to adopt additional452


criteria to define additional care.453


(d)(e)  Any person engaged in blasting or in excavating with mechanized excavating454


equipment who strikes, damages, injures, or loosens any utility facility or sewer lateral,455


regardless of whether the utility facility or sewer lateral is marked, shall immediately cease456


such blasting or excavating and notify the UPC and the appropriate facility owner or457


operator, if known.  Upon receiving notice from the excavator or the UPC, the facility458


owner or operator shall send personnel to the location as soon as possible to effect459


temporary or permanent repair of the damage.  Until such time as the damage has been460



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 14 -


repaired, no person shall engage in excavating or blasting activities that may cause further461


damage to the utility facility or sewer lateral except as provided in Code Section 25-9-12."462


SECTION 6.463


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-9, relating to degree of464


accuracy required in utility facility location information, effect of inaccurate information on465


liability of blaster or excavator, and liability of facility owners for losses resulting from lack466


of accurate information, as follows:467


"25-9-9.468


(a)  For the purposes of this chapter, the location of utility facilities which is provided by469


a facility owner or operator in accordance with subsection (a) of Code Section 25-9-7 to470


any person must be accurate to within 24 18 inches measured horizontally from the outer471


edge of either side of such utility facilities. If any utility facility becomes damaged by an472


excavator due to the furnishing of inaccurate information as to its location by the facility473


owner or operator, such excavator shall not be subject to any liability resulting from474


damage to the utility facility as a result of the blasting or excavating, provided that such475


person complies with the requirements of Code Section 25-9-8 and there is no visible and476


obvious evidence to the excavator of the presence of a mismarked utility facility.477


(b)  Upon documented evidence that the person seeking information as to the location of478


utility facilities has incurred losses or expenses due to inaccurate information, lack of479


information, or unreasonable delays in supplying information by the facility owners or480


operators, the facility owners or operators shall be liable to that person for any such losses481


or expenses."482


SECTION 7.483


Said chapter is further amended by revising Code Section 25-9-13, relating to penalties for484


violations of chapter, bonds, enforcement, advisory committee, and dispose of settlement485


recommendations, as follows:486


"25-9-13.487


(a)  Any person who violates the requirements of subsections (a), (f), or (g) of Code488


Section 25-9-6 and whose subsequent excavating or blasting damages utility facilities or489


sewer laterals shall be strictly liable for:490


(1)  All costs incurred by the facility owner or operator in repairing or replacing its491


damaged facilities; and492


(2)  Any injury or damage to persons or property resulting from damaging the utility493


facilities and sewer laterals.494



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 15 -


(b)  Each local governing authority is authorized to require by ordinance any bonds on495


utility contractors or on  persons performing excavation or blasting within the public right496


of way or any dedicated utility easement as it may determine to assure compliance with497


subsection (a) of this Code section.498


(c)  Any person who violates the requirements of Code Section 25-9-6 and whose499


subsequent excavating or blasting damages utility facilities or sewer laterals shall also500


indemnify the affected facility owner or operator against all claims or costs incurred, if any,501


for personal injury, property damage, or service interruptions resulting from damaging the502


utility facilities and sewer laterals.  Such obligation to indemnify shall not apply to any503


county, city, town, or state agency to the extent except as permitted by law.  In any civil504


action by a facility owner or operator to recover the costs of repairing or replacing facilities505


damaged through violation of Code Section 25-9-6 or 25-9-8, those costs shall be506


calculated utilizing generally accepted accounting principles.507


(d)  In addition to the other provisions of this Code section, a professional licensing board508


shall be authorized to suspend or revoke any professional or occupational license,509


certificate, or registration issued to a person pursuant to Title 43 whenever such person510


violates has repeatedly violated the requirements of Code Section 25-9-6 or 25-9-8.511


(e)  Subsections (a), (c), and (d) of this Code section shall not apply to any person who512


shall commence, perform, or engage in blasting or in excavating with mechanized513


equipment on any tract or parcel of land in any county in this state if the facility owner or514


operator to which notice was given respecting such blasting or excavating with mechanized515


equipment as prescribed in subsection (a) of Code Section 25-9-6 has failed to comply with516


Code Section 25-9-7 or has failed to become a member of the UPC as required by Code517


Section 25-9-5.518


(f)  The enforcement provisions of this Code section shall not apply to any person who519


shall commence, perform, or engage in blasting or in excavating with mechanized520


equipment within the curb lines or edges of the pavement of any public road and who521


causes damage to a utility facility located within the roadway hard surface or the graded522


aggregate base therein if such person has complied with the provisions of this chapter and523


there is no indication that a utility facility is in conflict with the proposed excavation.524


(f)(g)  The commission shall enforce the provisions of this chapter.  The commission may525


promulgate any rules and regulations necessary to implement the commission's authority526


to enforce this chapter.527


(g)(1)(h)(1)  The Governor shall appoint an advisory committee consisting of persons528


who are employees or officials of or who represent the interests of:529


(A)  One member to represent the Georgia Department of Transportation;530



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 16 -


(B)  One member to represent water systems or water and sewer systems owned or531


operated by local governing authorities;532


(C)  One member to represent the utilities protection center;533


(D)  One member to represent water systems or water and sewer systems owned or534


operated by counties;535


(E)  One member to represent water systems or water and sewer systems owned or536


operated by municipalities;537


(F)  One member to represent the nonmunicipal electric industry;538


(G)  Three Five members to represent excavators to include the following:539


(i)  One licensed utility contractor;540


(ii)  One licensed general contractor;541


(iii)  One licensed plumber;542


(iv)  One landscape contractor; and543


(v)  One highway contractor;544


(H)  One member to represent locators;545


(I)  One member to represent the nonmunicipal telecommunications industry;546


(J)  One member to represent the nonmunicipal natural gas industry;547


(K)  One member to represent municipal gas, electric, or telecommunications providers;548


and549


(L)  The commission chairperson or such chairperson's designee.550


The commission chairperson or his or her designee shall serve as chairperson of the551


advisory committee and shall cast a vote only in the case of a tie.  Persons appointed to552


the advisory committee shall have expert knowledge of this chapter and specific553


operations expertise with the subject matter encompassed by the provisions of this554


chapter.   The new advisory committee shall be established within 60 days of July 1,555


2005.556


(2)  The advisory committee shall establish rules of operation including an attendance557


policy.  In the event a committee member resigns or fails to meet the criteria of the558


attendance policy, the advisory committee shall appoint an interim member to represent559


the same stakeholder group until such time as the Governor appoints a replacement.560


(3)  The advisory committee shall assist the commission in the enforcement of this561


chapter, make recommendations to the commission regarding rules and regulations, and562


perform duties to be assigned by the commission including, but not limited to, the review563


of reported violations of this chapter and the preparation of recommendations to the564


commission as to the appropriate penalties to impose on persons violating the provisions565


of this chapter.566



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 17 -


(3)(4)  The members of the advisory committee shall be immune, individually and jointly,567


from civil liability for any act or omission done or made in the performance of their568


duties while serving as members of such advisory committee, but only in the absence of569


willful misconduct.570


(h)(1)(i)(1)  Commission enforcement of this chapter shall follow the procedures571


described in this subsection.  Nothing in this subsection shall limit the authority of the572


commission delegated from the federal government and authorized in other state law.573


(2)(A)  The commission is not authorized to impose civil penalties on any local574


governing authority except as provided in this paragraph.  The commission may575


recommend training for local governing authorities in response to any probable or576


proven violation.  On or after January 1, 2007, civil Civil penalties may be577


recommended for or imposed on any local governing authority for refusal to comply578


with the requirements of Code Section 25-9-7 or for other violations of Code579


Section 25-9-7 that result in injury to people, damage to property, or the interruption580


of utility service in the event that investigators find that a local governing authority has581


demonstrated a pattern of willful noncompliance.  Civil penalties may be recommended582


or imposed on or after January 1, 2006, for violations of provisions of this chapter other583


than Code Section 25-9-7 in the event that investigators find that the severity of an584


excavation violation warrants civil penalties or that a local governing authority has585


demonstrated a pattern of willful noncompliance.  Any such civil penalty shall be586


recommended or imposed in accordance with a tiered penalty structure designed for587


local governing authorities.  In the event that the investigators determine that a local588


governing authority has made a good faith effort to comply with this chapter, the589


investigators shall not recommend a civil penalty.  For purposes of this subsection590


'refusal to comply' means that a utility facility owner or operator does not respond in591


PRIS to a locate request, does not respond to a direct telephone call to locate designate592


their facilities, or other such direct refusal.  Refusal to comply does not mean a case593


where the volume of requests or some other mitigating circumstance prevents the utility594


owner or operator from locating in accordance with Code Section 25-9-7.595


(B)  No later than January 1, 2006, the advisory committee shall recommend to the596


commission for adoption a tiered penalty structure for local governing authorities.  Such597


structure shall take into account the size, annual budget, gross receipts, number of598


utility connections and types of utilities within the territory of the local governing599


authority.  Such penalty structure shall also take into account the number of locate600


tickets requests received annually by the local governing authority, the number of locate601


codes made annually to the local governing authority from the UPC, the number of602


utility customers whose service may have been interrupted by violations of this chapter,603



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 18 -


and the duration of such interruptions.  Such penalty structure shall also consider the604


cost of compliance.  The penalty structure shall establish for each tier the maximum605


penalty per violation and per 12 month period at a level to induce compliance with this606


chapter.  Such maximum penalty shall not exceed $5,000.00 per violation or $50,000.00607


per 12 month period for the highest tier.608


(3)  If commission investigators find that a probable violation has occurred, they may609


recommend training in lieu of penalties to any person for any violation.  The commission610


shall provide suggestions for corrective action to any person requesting such assistance.611


Commission investigators shall make recommended findings or offers of settlement to612


the respondent.613


(4)  Any respondent may accept or disagree with the settlement recommended by the614


investigators.  If the respondent disagrees with the recommended settlement, the615


respondent may dispute the settlement recommendation to the advisory committee.  The616


advisory committee shall then render a recommendation either supporting the617


investigators' recommendation, rejecting the investigators' recommendation, or618


substituting its own recommendation.  With respect to an investigation of any probable619


violation committed by a local governing authority, any recommendation by the advisory620


committee shall be in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (2) of this subsection.621


In its deliberations the advisory committee shall consider the gravity of the violation or622


violations; the degree of the respondent's culpability; the respondent's history of prior623


offenses; and such other mitigating factors as may be appropriate.  If the advisory624


committee determines that a respondent has made a good faith effort to comply with this625


chapter, the committee shall not recommend civil penalties against the respondent.  To626


the extent that a respondent does not accept a settlement agreement or request to dispute627


the recommendation of the investigators to the advisory committee, the respondent shall628


be assigned to a hearing officer or administrative law judge.629


(5)  If any respondent disagrees with the recommendation of the advisory committee,630


after notice and hearing by a hearing officer or administrative law judge, such officer or631


judge shall make recommendations to the commission regarding enforcement, including632


civil penalties.  Any such recommendations relating to a local governing authority shall633


comply with the provisions of paragraph (2) of this subsection.  The acceptance of  the634


recommendations by the respondent at any point will stop further action by the635


investigators in that case.636


(6)  When the respondent agrees with the advisory committee recommendation, the637


investigators shall present such agreement to the commission.  The commission is then638


authorized to adopt the recommendation of the advisory committee regarding a civil639


penalty, or to reject such a recommendation.  The commission is not authorized to impose640



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







13 LC 28 6534ER


S. B. 117
- 19 -


a civil penalty greater than the civil penalty recommended by the advisory committee or641


to impose any civil penalty if the advisory committee does not recommend a civil642


penalty.643


(7)  The commission may, by judgment entered after a hearing on notice duly served on644


any person not less than 30 days before the date of the hearing, impose a civil penalty not645


exceeding $10,000.00 for each violation, if it is proved that the person violated any of the646


provisions of this chapter as a result of a failure to exercise additional care in accordance647


with subsection (c) (d) of Code Section 25-9-8 or reasonable care in accordance with648


other provisions of this chapter. Any such recommendations relating to a local governing649


authority shall comply with the provisions of paragraph (2) of this subsection. Any650


proceeding or civil penalty undertaken pursuant to this Code section shall neither prevent651


nor preempt the right of any party to obtain civil damages for personal injury or property652


damage in private causes of action except as otherwise provided in this chapter.653


(i)(j)  All civil penalties ordered by the commission and collected pursuant to this Code654


section shall be deposited in the general fund of the state treasury."655


SECTION 8.656


All laws and parts of laws in conflict with this Act are repealed.657



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight







Docket No. 25116-U 


Order Adopting Rule 


Page 1 of 7 


COMMISSIONERS: 


ROBERT B. BAKER, JR., CHAIRMAN                                   


CHUCK EATON  


H. DOUG EVERETT                                   


ANGELA ELIZABETH SPEIR 


STAN WISE 


 


  


DEBORAH K. FLANNAGAN 


EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 


  


REECE McALISTER 


EXECUTIVE SECRETARY 


Georgia Public Service Commission 
(404) 656-4501                                                      


1-(800) 282-5813 
244 WASHINGTON STREET, SW 


ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30334-5701 


FAX:  (404) 656-2341                   


www.psc.state.ga.us 


 


 


DOCKET NO. 25116-U 


In Re: Georgia Public Service Commission Rulemaking Regarding Promulgation of New 
Rule for marking Standards as Commission Utility Rule 515-9-4-.14. 


 
 


ORDER ADOPTING RULE 
 


All interested parties are hereby notified pursuant to Ga. Laws 1964, pp. 338, 
342, as amended (Official Code of Georgia Annotated Section 50-13-4) that the Georgia 
Public Service Commission ("Commission") has considered and adopted a new rule 
under the Georgia Utility Facility Protection Act (“GUFPA”) establishing marking 
standards for the location of utility facilities. The new rule shall become effective as 
provided by law twenty (20) days after adoption at the Commission’s regularly 
scheduled Administrative Session on September 18, 2007, and subsequent filing with 
the Secretary of State. 
 
BY THE COMMISSION: 
 
 Whereas, during Administrative Session on September 18, 2007, the 
Commission approved the adoption of Utility Rule 515-9-4-.14; and 
 
 Whereas, Utility Rule 515-9-4-.14 contains two (2) paragraphs, both of which 
have subparts; and 
 
 Whereas, copies of written notices of the proposed rule previously were mailed to 
all utilities subject to the jurisdiction of this Commission, and to all interested persons on 
the mailing list of the Commission pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 50-13-4(a)(1); and 
 
 Whereas, a copy of said notice was furnished to the Legislative Counsel of the 
State of Georgia, pursuant to said O.C.G.A. § 50-13-4(e); and 
 Whereas, the Commission received comments from parties regarding the 
proposed rules contained in the rule chapter that were duly considered and that resulted 
in some revisions to the rule in its final form. 
 
 WHEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED, that effective September 18, 2007, Utility Rule 
515-9-4-.14 is hereby approved and adopted as follows: 







Docket No. 25116-U 


Order Adopting Rule 


Page 2 of 7 


 
RULES OF GEORGIA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 


AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 515-9-4  
ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES UNDER THE GEORGIA UTILITY FACILITY 


PROTECTION ACT 
BY ADDITION OF  


UTILITY RULE 515-9-4-.14 GEORGIA UNDERGROUND MARKING STANDARDS 
 


 
515-9-4-.14. GEORGIA UNDERGROUND MARKING STANDARDS 
 
(1) White Lining 
 
(a) Scope. This Rule shall have statewide application; provided, however, that 


any municipal or county governing authority in this State may adopt, by resolution or 
ordinance, more stringent requirements relating to white lining, but no local governing 
authority may adopt less stringent marking standards requirements. . 


 
(b) Purpose. The purpose of white lining the area to be located is to allow 


everyone involved with the dig site to know the exact location of the proposed 
excavation.  White-lining the excavation site is an excellent way to assist the utilities or 
utility locators in marking lines in the work area right the first time and in less time.  This 
technique eliminates speculation by the locator about where the excavation will take 
place and will often enable the utility or its agent to locate faster and more accurately. In 
short, pre-marking the area and the extent of the intended excavation can reduce 
delays and the time it takes to conduct the locate.  


 
(c) Background. White lining is a practice that has been widely used in the 


United States where the National Transportation Board concluded that pre-marking is a 
practice that helps prevent excavation damage. The procedure simply involves an 
excavator using white paint to indicate the route or area that is going to be excavated, 
such that the locator then knows exactly how much marking is required and where. 
White lining reduces confusion about what utility facilities need to be marked or not 
marked.  


 
(d) Directive to UPC. Pursuant to O.C.G.A. §§ 25-9-4 (a) (1), 25-9-6 (a) (1) and 


(b), 25-9-7 (a) (2), and 25-9-13 (f) and pursuant to Commission Utility Rule 515-9-6-.01, 
the Utilities Protection Center, Inc. (“UPC” or “One-Call Center”) is hereby directed to 
establish policies and procedures which identify when white lining is required. Examples 
of areas to be white lined are smaller (involving only a portion of a particular address) or 
linear excavations such as telecommunication drops and lines, service lines (such as for 
water, gas, electricity and sewer), utility pits, cuts and repairs, curb repairs, bore holes, 
directional boring pathways, pole and signage placements, etc. Such examples are 
merely explanatory of the type of excavation where white lining is appropriate and are 
not meant to be exclusive.  


(e) Exceptions to White Lining. Unless otherwise required by applicable 
municipal or county ordinance, white lining will not be required in the following situations: 


(i)  Any large project so designated in accordance with GPSC Rule 515-9-4-.13;  



http://rules.sos.state.ga.us/cgi-bin/page.cgi?g=GEORGIA_PUBLIC_SERVICE_COMMISSION%2FSAFE_INSTALLATION_AND_OPERATION_OF_NATURAL_GAS_TRANSMISSION_AND_DISTRIBUTION_SYSTEMS%2FENFORCEMENT_PROCEDURES_UNDER_THE_GEORGIA_UTILITY_FACILITY_PROTECTION_ACT%2Findex.html&d=1

http://rules.sos.state.ga.us/cgi-bin/page.cgi?g=GEORGIA_PUBLIC_SERVICE_COMMISSION%2FSAFE_INSTALLATION_AND_OPERATION_OF_NATURAL_GAS_TRANSMISSION_AND_DISTRIBUTION_SYSTEMS%2FENFORCEMENT_PROCEDURES_UNDER_THE_GEORGIA_UTILITY_FACILITY_PROTECTION_ACT%2Findex.html&d=1

mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Typewritten Text

Unless one or more utility facilities are damaged 5 times or more collectivelywithin the 90 day contract period.



mbergen

Typewritten Text

LP Ticket holder would be subject to no more than a two day shutdown period by local governing authority and would be required to white line the remainder of the project to meet the Large Project Marking Facility Locating Agreement Schedule that ticket holder and utility originally agreed upon.



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Highlight



mbergen

Typewritten Text

(1) Directive to GA811 Ticket Holder.  White Lining shall be completed prior to contacting GA811 to obtain a locate request ticket number.  Electronic\Virtual white lining is not an acceptable or recognized method. 







Docket No. 25116-U 


Order Adopting Rule 


Page 3 of 7 


(ii) Any jobsite that can be described with such particularity as required by 
O.C.G.A. 25-9-6(b); and  


 
(iii) “Emergencies” and “extraordinary circumstances” as such terms are defined 


in O.C.G.A. § 25-9-3 (10) and O.C.G.A. § 25-9-3 (14), respectively, are [pursuant to 
O.C.G.A. § 25-9-12] statutory exceptions to O.C.G.A. § 25-9-6(a) requirement for 
obtaining a locate ticket prior to commencing mechanized excavation and, hence, also 
exceptions to the requirement for white lining under this Rule. However, if a particular 
emergency notification is later determined not to have been an emergency or an 
extraordinary circumstance, then the excavator’s failure to procure a locate ticket before 
excavating will be treated as a violation of O.C.G.A. § 25-9-6 and of this Rule as per 
O.C.G.A. § 25-9-12. Also, pre-excavation emergency locate ticket requests (that is, a 
requests for a locate ticket on an expedited basis sooner than the prescribed statutory 
time limit) will not be an exception to white lining as required in this Rule.  


(f) White Lining Symbols as Directions to Locator. White lining proposed dig 
sites that will follow a single path or trench shall be marked using white lines and/or 
arrows and shall be located for twenty (20) feet on either side of the white line and for 
twenty (20) feet outward beyond the designate “START” and “END” of such linear white 
line. Therefore, it is important to identify the starting & ending points. 


 


 


(g) Identification of White Lining Excavator. In order to enable the locating 
utility or its locators to quickly identify the requested locate at the job site and expedite 
the locating process, each excavator when white lining shall identify himself or itself by 
labeling the white line area with the excavator’s name or the applicable locate ticket 
number or both.  


(2) Facility Marking by or for Utilities  


(a) Utility Markings. Facility owners or their locate contractors shall indicate 
utility facilities by placing their UPC alpha code, along with the type material (if known) 
that the facility consists of, at the beginning and end of locates. Also, arrows should be 
placed at the ends of markings to indicate that the underground facility continues.  In 
accomplishing the locate task, the line locator shall use industry-approved and generally 
accepted methods of locating.  


(i) To avoid confusion on long runs, the marks shall be frequent enough to 
identify the owner. 



mbergen

Cross-Out



mbergen

Typewritten Text

Homeowners/Occupants involved in excavation or land disturbance that is confined to a single address or parcel.Homeowner/Occupants shall not submit locate requests for excavation or land disturbance that will be performed by a business or contractor.  Businesses, Contractors and Utilities are not exempt from White Lining.



mbergen

Underline



mbergen

Typewritten Text

(iv) Residential Telecommunications service drop wires that can be delineated by the route of the existing wire on the ground. Single residential address/parcel requests only.   (v) Termite baiting systems.



mbergen

Typewritten Text

Tolerance Zone shall be 24" measured horizontally from the outer edge of either side of such marked Utility Facilities. 







Docket No. 25116-U 


Order Adopting Rule 


Page 4 of 7 


(ii) The marks shall indicate the approximate center-line of the underground 
lines. For example, the middle of the cable, line or pipe shall be at the center of the 
dashed marks. 


(iii) Location marks shall be 4 to 12 inches in length and at intervals of 5 to 10 
feet. 


 


(iv) The line locator (person marking the lines) shall extend marks outside the 
proposed work area by 20 to 30 feet if those facilities extend outside the proposed 
excavation area.   


 


(v) In areas such as flower beds, rock gardens, etc., flags or stakes may be an 
alternative to paint. The decision to use flags, paint, or stakes shall be based on the 
terrain and job conditions. For instance, flags or stakes in wet areas, offsets in dirt 
construction zones that have a high volume of traffic crossing their line location marks.    


 


  (vi) Dead ends, stub-outs, termination points, etc., shall be marked as follows:  


 


(vii) Lines that have connections (e.g., T's or Y’s) or changes in directions shall 
be clearly indicated. Marks indicating lines or connections shall clearly show the 
intersection and path of the line or connection. Marks that show changes in direction 
shall be placed closer together for more clarity and accuracy. 







Docket No. 25116-U 


Order Adopting Rule 


Page 5 of 7 


  


(viii) Manholes and valves shall be identified by using a circle and letters if they 
are not visible (dirt covering valve boxes or pavement covering manhole cover). 


 


 


(ix) Facilities that cross but do not intersect shall be marked as described to 
indicate such installation manner. 


 


 


 


 


 


   


 


   


 


(x) Unlocateable sewer laterals shall be marked by placing a green triangle on 
the sewer main and, if the location of the tap for such unlocateable sewer lateral is 
known, by placing a green “T” or “Y” or other appropriate symbol at the tap pointing 
generally toward the address served by such unlocateable sewer lateral. 


 







Docket No. 25116-U 


Order Adopting Rule 


Page 6 of 7 


(xi) When facilities share the same trench, they shall be heavily identified and 
separated enough so that they can be readily identified. This would apply to lines that 
share the same color code. For example, cable television & telephone lines: 


 


(xii) If the facility to be marked has a diameter greater than 12”, the size of the 
facility shall be indicated if known.  If the size is not known, then the mark shall indicate 
greater than 12 inches. 


(xiii) Duct structures shall be marked by using a dot with parallel boundary on 
each side of the dot. 


 


(xiv) In areas where there is a strong likelihood that any or all marker types 
showing line location would be destroyed, offsets shall be placed on a permanent 
surface. However, offsets should be used only in conjunction with marks placed above a 
facility. Offset spacing should be every third or fourth mark. For example, the following 
mark would indicate the line is 16 feet from the end of the arrow.  


 


 


(xv) In areas where cables are spliced, the facilities should be located 
individually as far as possible on both sides of the splice. When the signal is distorted 
due to the near proximity to the splice a circle with “SP” should indicate the area of 
distortion or “splice pit”.  







Docket No. 25116-U 


Order Adopting Rule 


Page 7 of 7 


 


 
Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 25-9-3, 25-9-6, 25-9-7 (a) (2), 25-9-12, 25-9-13 (f), 46-2-20 (i) 
and 46-2-30 and GPSC Utility Rule 515-9-1-.01. 
 


 


******* 
 


ORDERED FURTHER, that said adopted rule, having been published as 
provided in O.C.G.A. § 50-13-13(b), shall be filed with the Administrative Procedure Act 
Division of the Secretary of State as provided in O.C.G.A. § 50-13-6(b). 
 


ORDERED FURTHER, that jurisdiction over this matter is expressly retained for 
the purpose of entering such further Order or Orders as this Commission may deem just 
and proper. 
 


ORDERED FURTHER, that a motion for reconsideration, rehearing or oral 
argument or any other motion shall not stay the effective date of this Order, unless 
otherwise ordered by the Commission. 
 


The above action was taken by the Commission in Administrative Session on the 
18th day of September, 2007. 
 
 
___________________________ ___________________________  
Reece McAlister    Robert B. Baker, Jr. 
Executive Secretary    Chairman      
 
___________________________ ___________________________ 
Date      Date 





		Water System- White Lining Agenda Request File

		Water System- White Lining Backup

		White Lining-3

		White Lining-1

		White Lining-2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Steve Brown


Proclamation recognizing Fayette County couples celebrating their milestone Wedding Anniversaries.


Harold and Vernella Joseph - 50th 


William and Betty Bowles - 53rd 


Rex and Phyllis Mason - 53rd 


Lewis and DeAnne Rabbitt - 60th 


 


 


Proclamation recognizing Fayette County couples celebrating their milestone Wedding Anniversaries.


Not Applicable.


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Presentation #7












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation of Mr. Neely Moody to serve as an alternate member on the Fayette County 


Ethics Board for a three-year term beginning immediately and expiring January 22, 2017.


The proper operation of local government requires that public officials be independent, impartial, and responsible to the people; that 


government decisions and policy are made through proper channels of governmental structure; that public office not be used for personal 


gain; that public officials be free from the appearance of impropriety; and that the public have confidence in the integrity of government.  


The Fayette County Ethics Board has been established to ensure these goals are kept. 


 


The Ethics Board is comprised of three members and two alternate members.  Currently, the members on the Ethics Board are Mrs. 


Sheila Huddleston, Mrs. Larris Marks, and Ms. Pota Coston; however, the two alternate positions on the board are vacant. 


 


Staff advertised the two vacancies for the Ethics Board and received sixteen applications in return.  Each applicant was interviewed by 


the Chairman Steve Brown and Commissioner David Barlow, and two applicants were selected to fill the vacant, alternate positions. 


 


Mr. Neely Moody is one of the two applicants who has been chosen by the Selection Committee.


Approval of the Selection Committee's recommendation of Mr. Neely Moody to serve as an alternate member on the Fayette County 


Ethics Board for a three-year term beginning immediately and expiring January 22, 2017.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Fayette County Ordinance 2010-10 requires all members of the Ethics Board to pass a background check.  At the time this agenda was 


published, staff was awaiting the results of the background check.  This appointment may be made contingent upon the results of the 


background check.


New BusinessThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #18





































































































		Commissioners- Neely Moody Agenda Requst File

		Commissioners- Neely Moody Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners County Clerk Floyd Jones


Approval of Resolution 2014-02 establishing qualifying fees for the 2014 State Court Judge's election.


In accordance with O.C.G.A. 21-2-131(a)(1)(a), the governing authority of all counties in Georgia must establish and publish qualifying 


fees for upcoming elections. 


 


The referenced law bases the qualifying fee for the State Court Judge as 3% of the total gross salary of the office paid in the preceding 


calendar year including all supplements authorized by law if a salaried office.  The qualifying fee for the State Court Judge's election has 


been calculated pursuant to Georgia law. 


 


Approval of Resolution 2014-02 establishing qualifying fees for the 2014 State Court Judge's election.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


On January 9, 2014, the Board of Commissioners approved Resolution 2014-01 that established the qualifying fees for Posts 4 and 5 of 


both the Board of Education and the Board of Commissioners.


ConsentThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent #10







 


 


 


 


 


 


  


                         RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING QUALIFYING FEES 
 FOR ELECTIONS IN 2014 IN FAYETTE COUNTY 
 2014 - 02 
 


WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, is commanded by 


the Official Code of Georgia, Section 21-2-131(1)(a), to establish official qualifying fees for 


each county office to be filled in each election in Fayette County; 


NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby resolved by said Board of Commissioners, that the 


following qualifying fees are fixed and shall apply to the county offices to be filled during the 


General Election to be held in 2014 in Fayette County: 


 


State Court Judge    $4,218.07 


 


So resolved this 23rd day of January 2014 by the 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 
 


______________________________ 
Chairman 


 
Attest: 


 
 
______________________________ 
Clerk 
 





		Commissioners- Resolution 2014-02 Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Resolution 2014-02 Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and Emergency Services David J. Scarbrough


Recognition of the Fayette County Faith Based Disaster Network Team Leaders. 


The Fayette County Faith Based Disaster Network is a program that takes a unique approach of coordinating volunteers with the faith-


based community before a disaster occurs.  This approach positions the County to assist our citizens in post disaster recovery through a 


proactive planning prospective.  By having trained volunteers that have expressed an interest in serving the community during its time of 


need and by training the volunteers in the discipline of their interests, the volunteers then may be deployed early into an event. 


 


The Fayette County Faith Based Disaster Network Team Leaders are volunteers that lead the ten (10) Disaster Teams that have been 


developed to assist Fayette County Emergency Management and our community during the long-term recovery process of disasters.   


 


The team leader’s role is to recruit team members, coordinate team activities and assignments with the Emergency Management 


Agency, and work with public and private sector organizations in an effort to reduce the many hardships of a disaster within the 


community. 


Recognition of the Fayette County Faith Based Disaster Network Team Leaders. 


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Recognition of the following Faith-Based Team Leaders for their commitment to the Faith Based Network and Fayette County:  Volunteer 


Management- Mary Brunso; Debris Cleanup- David Bowen; Damage Assessment- Mitch Bjugson; Points of Dispensing- Brad Clifton; 


Disaster Counseling- Judy Hames and Frank Mercer; Shelter Management- Peter Trebotte; Communications- Lynn Bianco; Donated 


Goods- Cathy Berggren; Animals in Disasters- Sharon Marchisello; and Special Skill Set- Alma McCallum.


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Presentation #5







Fayette County Faith-Based Disaster Network 
Executive Summary of Objectives  


 
 
Purpose  
In 2012 the Fayette County Emergency Management Agency embarked on a new 
initiative called the Fayette County Faith-Based Disaster Network.  The purpose of this 
initiative is to better coordinate the many individual volunteers and faith-based 
organizations that are willing to assist emergency management agencies and their 
community during times of disaster.  Prior disaster events have convincingly 
demonstrated that faith-based volunteers are a valuable resource to help the community 
recover from a disaster incident in a variety of ways. 
 
Faith-Based Network Objective 
The Fayette County Emergency Management Agency conducted a comprehensive 
study of specific community needs during and after the four presidentially declared 
disasters that have affected Fayette County over the past 20 years.  With input from the 
faith-based community, it was determined that the following 10 Volunteer Support 
Functions (VSF) should be established in order to provide coordination and to create an 
organizational platform for faith-based volunteers and agencies that are willing to assist 
during disasters. 
 


• Volunteer Management Teams 
 


• Debris Cleanup Teams 
 


• Damage Assessment Teams 
 


• Points of Dispensing and Distribution Teams 
 


• Disaster Counseling Teams 
 


• Shelter Management Teams 
 


• Communications Teams 
 


• Donated Goods Management Team 
 


• Animals in Disaster Team 
 


• Special Skill Sets Team 
 
The various teams are trained and meet once per month at various churches throughout 
Fayette County. The training is free of charge and is advertised via email. To register for 
emails that advertise the activities, training and activation of the Network, send an email 
to Division Chief Pete Nelms at peten@fayettecountyga.gov and you will be added to 
the email distribution list. 





		Fire and Emergency Services- Faith Based Agenda Request File

		Fire and Emergency Services- Faith Based Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Information Systems Phil Frieder


Consideration of Information System's recommendation to fund for a Network Administrator position at an entry-level rate, effective March 


1, 2014, in order to facilitate execution of the Strategic Technology Plan and to implement emerging technologies. 


A Strategic Technology Plan was formulated in 2012 that identified specific needs for the Information Systems Department, including 


additional staffing.  Adding a Network Administrator position is critical to embracing new technologies that will enhance the effectiveness, 


efficiency, and productivity of the County's business operations.  Staff feels this position should be added now instead of during the 


FY2015 budget process since time is of the essence in capitalizing on opportunities outlined in the attached backup material.   


 


Information Systems' 2014 budget will need to be increased by $21,621 to cover the following costs of a Network Administrator: 


Salary/Benefits of $19,121 for March - June, 2014, a one-time cost of $500 for a telephone, and a one-time cost of $2,000 for a computer. 


 


The entry level rate for a Network Administrator is $43,036.44. Salary and benefits totaling $57,363 will be an annual recurring cost.  


Approval of Information System's recommendation to fund for a Network Administrator position at an entry-level rate, effective March 1, 


2014, in order to facilitate execution of the Strategic Technology Plan and to implement emerging technologies and approval of a budget 


amendment to increase Information System's expenditure budget by $21,621 and decrease General Governmental expenditure budget 


by the same amount. 


Increase Information Systems' budget and decrease General Governmental budget by $21,621, no impact to the bottom line. 


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #20







20130114-2 


The Information Systems Department requires an experienced Network Administrator with the skill and competency at 


managing a network infrastructure to facilitate execution of the [STP] Strategic Technology Plan and implementation of 


emerging technologies. 


 


The new hire will assist the IS department capitalize on opportunities.  Opportunities typically include emerging trends, 


technologies, and practices that possess the potential of enhancing effectiveness, efficiency, and productivity within the 


County’s business operations. 


 


Listed below are some of the more significant examples:  


   


• [STP]Deployment of the technology refresh cycle for IT assets 


• [STP]Transition to Microsoft hosted Exchange 2013 with Office 365 from end of life on premise Microsoft 


Exchange 2003 server  


• [STP]Upgrading remaining (40%) computer systems to currently supported Microsoft Windows operating 


systems from end of life (April 2014)Microsoft Windows XP operating system 


• [STP] Continue implementation of desktop virtualization 


• [STP]Better use of e-government tools for public access including applications and issue tracking 


• [STP]Resolve pending  Energov application issues 


• [STP]Developing  a mobility strategy, implementing  end-to-end cloud and hand held computing technology 


• Installation of  video surveillance systems at parks and recreation centers 


• [STP]Increasing IS service through IS department restructuring – placing network field technicians  at strategic 


locations (Justice Center, Sheriff, Jail etc..) to align delivery of service with departmental needs 


 


At present, the IS network management staff is busy remediating complications with the existing infrastructure: 


 


• Migrating to new Cisco 5525 firewall from end of life Cisco 5520 to improve connectivity and security 


• Deploying gateway anti-virus software, blocking threats before reaching network 


• Coordinating use of defense in depth security countermeasures by  using multi-layered security controls 


• Provisioning Trend-Micro content filtering to control internet access 


• Redesigning network architecture to eliminate unnecessary proxy servers and multiple single points of failure 


• Raising Windows Server Domain and Forest level to Native Server 2008 R2 from Mixed Mode Server 2003 


• Redesigning Library wireless LAN/WAN infrastructure simplifying public user experience 


• Developing method for patch and upgrade deployment consistent with best practices 


• Deploying DHCP consistent with best practices to replace random use of static IP addressing 


• Provisioning of new Comcast circuits at remote locations to expedite completion of UTG phone project 


 


Redesigning the network infrastructure increases the workload above the routine.  The IS staff spends 40% of their time 


reacting to service requests, 50% of their time revitalizing the network, leaving only 10% to focus on implementation of 


new technology.  The chart below validates the significant increase in the work order activity. 


 


  


0


100


200


300


400


SEPT. OCT. NOV.


REQUESTS


COMPLETED


PENDING







20130114-2 


The Strategic Technology Plan suggests altering the County IS Department organization structure as follows (13 


personnel). 


 


 
 


 


Hiring a network administrator as stipulated above is a beginning point to achieve the suggested structure. 


 


New County IS department organizational structure after new hire (10 personnel): 


 


Phil Frieder


CIO


Brian Cook


Field Service 


Supervisor


Daryl Henry


Network Technician


Joe Wiegele


Network Technician


New


Network 


Administrator


Tammy Newcomer


Executive


Assistant


Russell Prince
Systems Analyst


Larry Legaux


Network 


Administrator 


Nina Madrid
Application 


Specialist


Information Systems Organizational 


Chart


Carlo Frate


GIS Analyst


 
 


 


 


 


 







20130114-2 


 


The requirement is for a full-time permanent staff member, since the work involves access to sensitive information, 


close coordination with all department staff, and managing technology. 


 


General duties and responsibilities of new Network Administrator: 


• To support the vision, IT governance, mission and guiding principles of the County 


• Responsible for making sure the network infrastructure related to the County’s data network is effectively maintained 


by providing technical expertise in the configuration, performance, tuning, and maintenance of the infrastructure. 


• Attend and participate in training opportunities and seminars relevant to this position 


• Responsible for assisting with other related tasks and application support as needed 


• Excellent oral and written communication skills and ability to work well in a team-oriented environment 


,  


A minimum of 3 years of verifiable work experience:  


• In the installation, configuration, operation, and maintenance of a Network infrastructure comprised of 


core, distribution, and access layer devices, such as routers, switches, firewalls, and network security 


devices  


• Keen attention to detail and proven analytical problem solving ability 


• Supporting multiple servers at multiple sites and a wide range of applications 


• Administering a wide variety of server, workstation and database software 


• Resolving problems with network, computer workstations, and  user  technical situations 


• Collaborating with third party vendors for assistance  


 


Overall, hiring a Network Administrator as suggested in the STP will assist the IS department in achieving its goals 


and objectives; thereby, supporting the County and its stakeholders in achieving their goals and objectives. 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 


 


 





		Information Systems- New Position Agenda Request File

		Information Systems- New Position Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Legal County Attorney Dennis Davenport


Consideration of staff's request to adopt Resolution 2014-03 requesting the Georgia General Assembly to pass a local act amending the 


enabling legislation of the Public Facilities Authority in order to permit the Authority to issue revenue bonds for Stormwater Management 


projects.


The Fayette County Public Facilities Authority was created by the General Assembly of Georgia pursuant to Act No. 869 of the 1978 


session.  The Act authorized the Authority to acquire, construct, equip, maintain, and operate buildings and the usual convenient facilities 


appertaining to such undertakings, and extension and improvements of such facilities, and extensions and improvements of such facilities 


to acquire parking facilities and parking areas in connection therewith, to acquire the necessary property therefore, both real and 


personal, and to lease or sell any or all such facilities including real property. 


 


Resolution 2014-03 is the Fayette County Board of Commissioners request that the General Assembly amend said Act to authorize the 


Authority to acquire, construct, equip, maintain, and operate facilities as part of the County's Stormwater Management system, thus 


authorizing the Authority to issue revenue bonds for the acquisition, construction, equipping, maintenance, and operation of the same.


Approval of staff's request to adopt Resolution 2014-03 requesting the Georgia General Assembly to pass a local act amending the 


enabling legislation of the Public Facilities Authority in order to permit the Authority to issue revenue bonds for Stormwater Management 


projects.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

New Business #21







 


 


 −1− 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


RESOLUTION 


NO. 2014-03 


 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO AMEND THE ENABLING LEGISLATION OF THE 


FAYETTE COUNTY PUBLIC FACILITIES AUTHORITY; TO REQUEST THE 


GENERAL ASSEMBLY FOR THE STATE OF GEORGIA TO PASS A LOCAL ACT 


PROVIDING FOR THE AFOREMENTIONED AMENDMENT; TO PROMOTE THE 


PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Fayette County, Georgia (the “County”) is 


the duly elected governing authority for the County; and 


WHEREAS, the Fayette County Public Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) was 


created by the General Assembly of Georgia pursuant to Act No. 869 of the 1978 session (Ga. L. 


1978, pg. 3377, hereinafter the “Act”); and 


WHEREAS, said Act authorized the Authority to acquire, construct, equip, maintain and 


operate buildings and the usual and convenient facilities appertaining to such undertakings, and 


extensions and improvements of such facilities, and extensions and improvements of such 


facilities, to acquire parking facilities and parking areas in connection therewith, to acquire the 


necessary property therefor, both real and personal, and to lease or sell any or all such facilities, 


including real property; and 







 


 


 −2− 


 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for Fayette County now request that the 


General Assembly amend said Act to authorize the Authority to acquire, construct, equip, 


maintain and operate facilities as part of the County’s stormwater management system, thus 


authorizing the Authority to issue revenue bonds for the acquisition, construction, equipping, 


maintenance and operation of the same. 


NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners hereby 


request that the General Assembly adopt local legislation to amend the enabling legislation of the 


Fayette County Public Facilities Authority as follows: 


Section 1. By adding a new sentence to the end of Subsection (b) of Section 3 of the 


enabling legislation, to be read as follows: 


 In addition, the word “project” shall be deemed to mean and include the acquisition, 


construction, equipping, maintenance and operation of facilities constituting a stormwater 


management system. 


 


Section 2. By adding a new Subsection (f) to Section 3 of said enabling legislation, to be 


numbered and read as follows: 


 (f) The term “stormwater management system” shall mean the structural and 


nonstructural stormwater drainage systems, facilities, operations and programs that address the 


issues of drainage management (flooding) and environmental quality (pollution, erosion and 


sedimentation) of receiving rivers, streams, creeks, lakes, ponds and reservoirs through 


improvements, maintenance, regulation and funding of plants, works, instrumentalities and 


properties used or useful in the collection, retention, detention and treatment of stormwater or 


surface water drainage. 







 


 


 −3− 


 


Section 3. By adding a new sentence to the end of Section 23 of the enabling legislation, to 


be read as follows: 


 In addition, the general purpose of the Authority shall include that of acquiring, 


constructing, equipping, maintaining and operating facilities constituting a stormwater 


management system. 


 


SO RESOLVED this ____ day of ______________, 2014. 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


By:_______________________ 


        Steve Brown, Chairman 


(SEAL)  


 


ATTEST:      


 


 


___________________________ 


Floyd Jones, County Clerk 


 


 


 


Approved as to form: 


 


 


___________________________ 


County Attorney 





		Legal- Resolution 2014-03 Agenda Request File

		Legal- Resolution 2014-03 Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Parks and Recreation Chairman Brown


Recognition of Eagle Scout Avery Paugh.


In 2012, Eagle Scout Avery Paugh presented a plan to the Fayette County Parks and Recreation Department seeking support for his 


Eagle Scout Project.  His proposal was to install a pavilion at McCurry Park South Soccer Complex to offer shade for the officials when 


they were not officiating games.   


 


In August 2013, Avery submitted drawings for the pavilion and applied for his building permit.  After securing funding and volunteer help, 


Avery began construction of the pavilion in November.   


 


A Certificate of Occupancy was issued on the pavilion on December 2, 2013.  The project included over $1,500 in expenses and twelve 


volunteers working several hours to complete the project. 


Mr. Paugh will briefly tell the Board and those present  of his Eagle Scout Project.  The Chairman will then recognize Mr. Paugh for his 


work and achievement of the Eagle rank.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Presentation #3





























		Parks and Recreation- Avery Eagle Scout Agenda Request File

		Parks and Recreation- Avery Eagle Scout Backup

		Avery-1

		Avery-2

		Avery-3

		Avery-4

		Avery-5

		Avery-6












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Parks and Recreation Chairman Steve Brown


Recognition of Eagle Scout Tyler Brown.


In 2012, Tyler Brown presented a plan to the Fayette County Parks and Recreation Department seeking support for his Eagle Scout 


Project.  His proposal was to refurbish the flower beds at McCurry Park North Soccer Complex.   


 


In early 2013, Tyler submitted drawings and information regarding his landscaping plan.  After securing funding and volunteer help, Tyler 


began his refurbishment project.  The  project volunteers worked approximately twelve hours removing old plants, preparing the flower 


beds for the new plants, digging holes, planting various shrubs and flowering plants, installing ground cover, and watering.   


 


The project was completed May 25, 2013.


Mr. Brown will briefly tell the Board and those present of his Eagle Scout Project.  .  The Chairman will then recognize Mr. Brown for his 


work and achievement of the Eagle rank.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Presentation #4





























		Parks and Recreation- Brown Eagle Scout Agenda Request File

		Parks and Recreation- Brown Eagle Scout Backup

		Brown-1

		Brown-2

		Brown-3

		Brown-4

		Brown-5

		Brown-6












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Parks and Recreation Anita Godbee


Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-17 amending Chapter 14 Recreation and Parks of the Code of 


Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia.  This item was tabled by Commissioner Ognio at the November 14, 2013 Board of 


Commissioners meeting.


The Parks and Recreation Department recommends the amendment to put their standard operating procedures into the County Code.  A 


public meeting to present and get public input on the proposed ordinance was held on October 28, 2013.  No one from the public 


attended the meeting. 


 


Two essential changes are presented in Ordinance 2013-17 for consideration: 


 


Change #1 proposes adding a general section to the Parks and Recreation Ordinance.  The current ordinance, as it stands, does not 


have a general section for parks and recreation as it only addresses water parks. 


 


Change #2 is that the penalty for violation for water parks has changed, and the new proposal aligns with the penalty for all ordinances in 


Fayette County; as expressed in Section 1-8. 


 


Additional changes have been made after receiving feedback at the November 14, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting. 


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-17 amending Chapter 14 Recreation and Parks of the Code of Ordinances 


for Fayette County, Georgia.  


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, November 14, 2013


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Old Business #17







1


Floyd Jones


From: Patrick Stough <pstough81@gmail.com>


Sent: Wednesday, January 08, 2014 4:36 PM


To: Floyd Jones


Cc: Anita Godbee; Kathy Hobbs; Dennis Davenport; Steve Rapson


Subject: Revised Parks and Recreation Ordinance


Attachments: Recreation and Parks - Ordinance (revised).docx


Floyd: 


 


Attached is a revised version of the Parks and Recreation Ordinance that was considered by the Board in 


November.  Please place this on the agenda for the January 23 meeting.  The revisions were made by staff after 


consideration of the comments from the Board, from the County Solicitor, and from the Sheriff.  At this time, 


these revisions are still in draft form but it is expected that a final version will be ready by January 20.  Please 


let me know if you have any questions. 


 


Patrick 


 


 


--  


Patrick A. Stough 


McNally, Fox, Grant & Davenport, P.C. 


100 Habersham Drive 


Fayetteville, Georgia   30214 


(770) 461-2223 


  


CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE:  This e-mail message and all attachments may contain privileged and 


confidential information intended solely for the use of the addressee.  If you are not the intended recipient, you 


are hereby notified that any reading, disseminating, distributing, copying, or other use of this message or any 


attachment is strictly prohibited.  If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender 


immediately by telephone or by replying to the sender and deleting this message and all copies thereof.  Thank 


you.  







 


 
 1 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


ORDINANCE 


NO. 2013-17 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO ENACT GENERAL PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO 


RECREATION AND PARKS; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO REPEAL 


CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROMOTE 


THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF 


THE SAME THAT THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT 


PERTAINS TO RECREATION AND PARKS (CHAPTER 14), BE AMENDED AS 


FOLLOWS: 


 


Section 1. By deleting Article I, pertaining to “In General”, of Chapter 14, in its entirety, and 


by replacing it with a new Article I in Chapter 14, to be numbered and read as 


follows: 


ARTICLE I.   IN GENERAL. 


Sec. 14-1. Applicability. 


 The provisions contained in this Article shall apply in all parks and recreational 


areas owned and operated by Fayette County, Georgia, with the exception of those areas 







 


 
 2 


defined in this chapter as Lake Kedron, Starr’s Mill, Lake Horton, and Lake McIntosh. 


 


Sec. 14-2. Definitions. 


The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the 


meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a 


different meaning: 


 


County means Fayette County, Georgia. 


Department means the Fayette County Parks and Recreation Department, a 


department under the jurisdiction of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners. 


Parks means all parks and all facilities located thereon, owned and/or controlled 


by the county and operated under the jurisdiction of the Fayette County Parks and 


Recreation Department. 


Person means any individual, citizen, group, association, firm, corporation or 


other legal entity that is authorized to use and enjoy the county's parks and any structure 


or facility located therein. 


Park and/or recreation facility means all recreation areas in parks, including land, 


buildings, lakes, ponds, streams, swimming pools, sports fields, cemeteries, and all other 


property and buildings owned, leased, or managed by the county, the department the 


designated agents or departments of the county or the county recreation authority, and 


including all recreation areas and parks in the county owned by the state or federal 


government and managed by the county. 







 


 
 3 


Park employee means any employee of the Fayette County Parks and Recreation 


Department. 


Vehicle means any motor-driven or engine-driven equipment, such as an 


automobile, truck, motorcycle, bicycle, sled, go-cart, scooter, skateboard, ATV, child's 


toy vehicle, or Segway. 


Weapon means firearm, rifle, pistol, revolver, paintball gun, or any weapon 


designed or intended to propel a shot, bullet, or other missile of any kind, or any device 


capable of discharging a projectile by air, spirit, gas or explosive, or any explosive 


substance or harmful solid, liquid and gaseous substance, or any spear, arrow, bow and 


arrow, slingshot, crossbow, spear or spear gun, or any knife, as defined by State law, dirk, 


Bowie knife, switchblade knife, ballistic knife, or any other knife, straight-edged razor, 


spring stick, metal knuckles, blackjack, any bat, club or other bludgeon-type weapon, or 


any flailing instrument or any disk which is designed to be thrown or propelled and 


which may be known as a throwing star or oriental dart, or any weapon of like kind, and 


any stun gun, taser or similar device. 


 


Sec. 14-3. Penalties. 


(a) Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall be deemed guilty 


of a county ordinance violation and upon conviction shall be punished in accordance with 


the Fayette County Code of Ordinances. 


(b) Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter may be barred or 


suspended by the department from using any or all parks, if in the combined discretion of 







 


 
 4 


the department and law enforcement, such action is necessary to protect a park, the 


facilities located therein, or the public's health, safety or welfare. 


(c) Any person causing a disturbance or engaging in any activity which shall 


unreasonably interfere with the use and enjoyment of the park by citizens/visitors or who 


shall violate any ordinance of the county or law of the State shall leave the park upon 


notification by any authorized park employee or any law enforcement officer, and he/she 


shall not return to such park for a period of 24 hours. 


 


Sec. 14-4. Authority to issue citations for violations. 


This chapter shall be enforced by any authorized law enforcement officer of the 


county. Where there has been a violation of any provisions of this chapter, the law 


enforcement officer in his discretion may issue a citation, warning and/or order the 


person to leave the park or recreation area. 


 


Sec. 14-5. Development of recreation programs. 


The authority to develop programs of recreational activities and services designed 


to meet the leisure time needs of all persons is hereby granted to and vested in the 


department. The department shall have the power to maintain and equip parks, 


playgrounds, recreation centers, and the facilities associated therewith, and to establish, 


develop, and maintain a recreational system as provided in O.C.G.A. § 36-64-1 et seq. 


 


Sec. 14-6. Use of grounds and facilities generally. 







 


 
 5 


Every person using the parks shall clean up all debris, extinguish all permitted 


fires, and leave the premises in good order and the facilities located thereon in a neat and 


sanitary condition. 


 


Sec. 14-7. Prohibited acts. 


It shall be unlawful for any person using the parks, grounds, or facilities to either 


perform or permit to be performed any of the following acts: 


(1) Willfully mar, deface, disfigure, injure, tamper with or displace or remove 


any buildings, bridges, tables and benches, fireplaces, railings, paving or 


paving material, water lines or other public utilities or parts or 


appurtenances thereof, signs, notices, or placards, whether temporary or 


permanent, monuments, stakes, posts, or other boundary markers, or other 


structures or equipment, facilities or park property or appurtenances 


whatsoever, either real or personal. 


(2) Throw, discharge, or otherwise place or cause to be placed in the waters of 


any fountain, pond, lake, stream, or other body of water in or adjacent to a 


park or tributary, stream, storm sewer, or drain flowing into such water, 


any substance, matter or thing, liquid or solid, which will or may result in 


the pollution of such waters. 


(3) Damage, cut, carve, transplant, or remove any tree or plant or vegetation, 


or any part thereof. 


(4) Hunt, molest, harm, frighten, kill, trap, chase, tease, shoot, or throw 







 


 
 6 


missiles at any animal, or remove or have in one's possession the eggs, 


nest, or young of any wild animal. 


(5) Bring in, dump, deposit, or leave any bottles, broken glass, ashes, paper, 


boxes, cans, dirt, rubbish, waste, garbage, refuse, or other trash or debris 


in a park or waters in or contiguous to a park, except within public 


receptacles and in such a manner that the litter will be prevented from 


being carried or deposited by the elements upon any part of the park.  


Where public receptacles are not provided, all such litter shall be carried 


away from the park by the person responsible for its presence and shall be 


properly disposed of elsewhere.  It shall be prohibited to take into, carry 


through, or put into a park, any litter generated from outside the park. 


(6) Disturb the peace, or use any profane or obscene language, or 


inflammatory language directed to incite, and likely to incite, imminent 


lawless action. 


(7) Commit any assault or battery, engage in fighting, or commit any other 


offense in violation of federal, state or county law. 


(8) Endanger the safety of any person by any conduct or act. 


(9) Prevent any person from using a park, or any of its facilities, or interfere 


with such use in contravention of the provisions of this chapter and rules 


applicable thereto. 


 


(10) Apply any chemical or fertilizer to any lawn, athletic field, soil, structure 







 


 
 7 


or facility of a park, unless so authorized by the department. 


(11) Introduce any plant material, seed, sod, tree, or shrub to any lawn, athletic 


field, forest or soil of a park, unless so authorized by the department. 


(12) Construct any new facility, paint any facility or make changes in present 


facilities without written approval of the department. 


(13) Vend, sell, peddle, or offer for sale any commodity or article within a 


park, unless such activity is authorized in writing by the department. 


(14) Possess, display, use, set off or attempt to ignite any firecracker, 


fireworks, smoke bombs, rockets, black powder guns or other 


pyrotechnics, except in conjunction with a written permit issued by the 


department. 


(15) Use any of the county parks and recreation facilities for fundraising 


activities and/or any political rallies or events, except in conjunction with 


a written permit issued by the department. 


(16) Operate any sound amplification device including radios, television sets, 


stereos, public address systems, musical instruments, CD players and the 


like in such a manner as to unreasonably annoy, disturb, injure or 


endanger other persons, or to otherwise destroy the comfort, repose, peace 


or safety of other persons in a park unless authorized by the department. 


(17) Erect or use any temporary carnival or amusement ride or inflatables in a 


park unless authorized by the department. 


 







 


 
 8 


(18) Launch hot air balloons and hobby rockets from a park unless approved by 


written permit by the department. 


(19) Set up a tent, shack, or any other temporary shelter for the purpose of 


overnight stay, or leave in a park after closing hours any movable structure 


or vehicle to be used or that could be used for overnight stay, such as a 


house trailer, camp trailer, wagon, or the like, unless authorized by the 


department. 


(20) Violate any posted rule or regulation promulgated by the department 


relative to the use of a park. 


 


Sec. 14-8. Hours of operation. 


All parks shall be open daily to the general public between the hours of sunrise to 


sunset, as designated by the U.S. Weather Service, unless authorized by the department.  


It shall be unlawful for any person other than county personnel conducting county 


business therein to come onto or be present in a park during any other hours. A park or 


section of a park may be closed to the public by the department at any time and for any 


length of time, either temporarily or at regular or stated intervals. 


 


Sec. 14-9. Group activity. 


Whenever any group or organization desires to use a park to host an event for 


more than five (5) people, such as a picnic, party, sports event or theatrical or other 


entertainment performance, a representative of such group shall first obtain a permit from 







 


 
 9 


the department for such purpose, unless the group is sponsored by the department as one 


of its scheduled programs. The department shall grant the application for a permit if it 


appears that the group will not interfere with the general use of the park by individual 


members of the public, and if the group meets all other reasonable conditions which may 


be imposed by the department. Such application may contain a requirement for an 


indemnity bond and/or on site security to protect the county from liability of any kind or 


character and to protect county property from damage. 


 


 


 


Sec. 14-10. Games. 


It shall be unlawful for any person to endanger the general public in a park by 


taking part in or abetting the playing of any games involving thrown or otherwise 


propelled objects such as balls, stones, arrows, javelins, or model airplanes in such a way 


as to disregard the safety of those in the immediate vicinity of the playing of said games. 


The playing of rough or potentially dangerous games such as football, baseball, and 


soccer is prohibited except on the fields, courts, or areas provided therefor. Park areas 


other than those designated as golf clubs or driving ranges may not be used for golf 


practice, driving ranges, or putting greens. 


 


Sec. 14-11. Swimming. 


It shall be unlawful for any person to swim, bathe, or wade in any waters or 







 


 
 10 


waterways in or adjacent to a park except in such waters and at such locations as are 


designated therefor and so posted. Such swimming activity shall be in compliance with 


regulations pertaining thereto as set forth in this chapter or hereafter adopted. 


 


Sec. 14-12. Boats and rafts. 


It shall be unlawful for any person to use a boat or raft or other flotation device on 


any waterway, stream, lake or pond in a park unless written authorization allowing such 


activity is received by the department or as otherwise authorized in this chapter. 


 


Sec. 14-13. Fires restricted. 


It shall be unlawful for any person to build or maintain a fire in a park or 


recreation facility except in designated areas which are clearly marked by signs or 


defined with fire rings, fireplaces, grills or other facilities designated for the purpose of 


safely maintaining a fire, except by written permit by the department. Fires shall be 


confined to those areas so designated, shall not be left unattended and must be completely 


extinguished prior to departure. 


 


Sec. 14-14. Animals. 


(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to bring a dangerous animal into a park; to 


permit a dog to be in a park unless such dog is on a leash of not more than six feet in 


length; to bring any animal onto an athletic or sports field/court within a park; to ride, 


graze or walk a horse or other type of hoofed animal within a park without obtaining 







 


 
 11 


written authorization from the department, unless the park is specifically designated for 


such use; to fail to immediately remove from the park and dispose in a sanitary manner 


excrement deposited by an animal in the person's possession and control while in a park; 


to fail to have in such person's possession, having possession and control of an animal, a 


device or equipment for the collection and removal of animal excrement. The provisions 


of this section shall not apply to a person having possession or control of an animal 


aiding the handicapped (i.e., guide dog) or to police or rescue personnel. 


(b) It shall be the duty of every animal owner or custodian of such animal in a park to 


immediately remove from such park such animal upon such animal exhibiting aggressive 


behavior toward any person or toward any other domesticated animal.  For the purposes 


of this subsection, aggressive behavior includes, but is not limited to, barking, growling, 


bearing of teeth or fangs, biting or attempts to bite, or any other behavior that could 


reasonably be expected to scare or intimidate any person or domesticated animal. 


 


Sec. 14-15. Automobiles and off-road vehicles; parking restrictions. 


(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or park any automobile or off-road 


vehicle except on a street, driveway, or parking lot in a park. Law enforcement or other 


public safety officials, and county employees whose duties require them to drive vehicles 


and equipment in other areas of a park shall be exempt from the limitations set forth in 


this section. 


(b) The speed limit for all vehicles shall be 10 miles per hour within all parks. 


(c) It shall be unlawful to park a vehicle or trailer in a park or recreation facility 







 


 
 12 


except in those areas designated by the appropriate signs as vehicle parking areas or in 


marked parking spaces. It shall be unlawful to leave a vehicle or trailer standing or 


parked in a park or recreation facility during hours when the park or recreation facility is 


closed. It is unlawful for any person to park a vehicle or trailer in a parking space or 


location designated for handicapped parking unless the vehicle properly displays a 


handicapped parking permit.  It shall be prohibited for any person to park in a recreation 


area if the owner of the vehicle or trailer is not utilizing the park unless authorized by the 


department.  In all such instances in which a parked vehicle or trailer violates any 


provisions of this section, the vehicle or trailer may be towed and impounded from the 


park or recreation facility at the owner’s expense.  


(d) It shall be prohibited for persons to congregate within a parking area of a park so 


as to disrupt traffic or other persons, or so as to create a safety hazard. 


 


Sec. 14-16. Alcoholic beverages and tobacco products. 


(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to sell, possess or consume alcoholic beverages 


within a park except as provided in Chapter 3 of the Fayette County Code of Ordinances. 


(b) It shall be a violation of this article for persons to smoke or use tobacco products 


in enclosed buildings in all parks or recreation facilities, and in all other areas of a park or 


recreation facility, unless otherwise posted. Persons under 18 years of age in possession 


of tobacco products can and will be charged under State law 


(c) No person shall possess or use any drug or any other controlled substance, as 


defined in the laws of this state, except as permitted by the laws of this state, in any park. 







 


 
 13 


 


Sec. 14-17. Signs. 


 It shall be unlawful for any person to paste, glue, tack, post, erect or cause to be 


erected any sign, placard, advertisement, or inscription whatsoever within a park or 


highway or street adjacent to a park. This provision shall not apply to any properly 


authorized government official in pursuit of his official duty or by a person having 


received written authorization from the department. Any sign, placard, advertisement, or 


inscription authorized to be erected shall be in compliance with the county's sign 


ordinance and other applicable county regulations. 


 


Sec. 14-18. Fees. 


A user fee shall be charged for any special or sports event, or other extraordinary 


program or activity as may be hereafter established by the department. 


 


Sec. 14-19. Weapons. 


(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to discharge any weapon or similar device in a 


park or recreation facility, unless said discharge was made in the protection of a person’s 


life or property. 


(b) It shall be unlawful for any person to take into a park or recreation facility a 


weapon, or to use, carry or employ any weapon or similar device in a park or recreation 


facility, except as otherwise provided by applicable law. This subsection (b) shall not 


apply to firearms as defined by O.C.G.A. § 16-11-171(3) or to knives as defined by 







 


 
 14 


O.C.G.A. § 16-11-125.1. 


 


Sec. 14-20. Guidelines for issuance of special permits. 


Permits for special events in a park or recreation facility shall be obtained by 


application to the director of the department or employees under the direction of the 


director. Guidelines for the issuance of permits by the director include: 


(1)  That the proposed activity or use of the park or recreation facility will not 


unreasonably interfere with or detract from the enjoyment of the park or 


recreation facility; 


(2)  That the proposed activity or use of the park or recreation facility will not 


unreasonably interfere or detract from the promotion of public health, 


welfare, safety and recreation of a park or recreation facility; 


(3)  That the proposed activity or use of the park or recreation facility is not 


reasonably anticipated to incite violence, crime, or disorderly conduct; 


(4)  That the proposed activity or use of the park or recreation facility will not 


entail unusual, extraordinary, or burdensome expenses or policy operation 


by the county; 


(5)  That the proposed activity or use of the park or recreation facility will not 


conflict with existing parks and recreation services; 


(6)  That the proposed activity or use of the park or recreation facility desired 


has not been reserved for other use; 


(7)  That the permitting person or persons will abide by all other state, county 







 


 
 15 


and parks and recreation laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and shall 


be liable for any loss, damage, or injury sustained by any person 


whatsoever by reason of negligence of the person or persons to whom 


such permit shall have been issued; 


(8)  That the director or the director's agent shall have the authority to revoke 


any permit upon the finding of a violation of any laws, ordinances, rules or 


regulations or upon good cause shown; and 


(9)  Persons may apply for a permit for a proposed activity or use of the park 


or recreation facility under the following categories: picnicking, fund-


raising, special event, food service for approved activities, and park or 


recreation facility rentals. 


 


Sec. 14-21. Improper personal conduct. 


It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in any violent, abusive, lewd, 


profane, vulgar, wanton, obscene or otherwise disorderly speech or conduct that is or may 


be detrimental to the enjoyment of the park by the general public, or that could cause 


injury to other persons while in a park, which conduct may include, but is not limited to, 


loitering, fighting, throwing or breaking articles, indecent exposure, inappropriate sexual 


acts, urinating or defecating in public, or public drunkenness.  No person shall upon or in 


connection with a park by act or speech willfully or unreasonably hinder, interrupt or 


interfere with any duly permitted activity or unreasonably or willfully intrude on any 


areas or into the structures designated for the use of a certain person or persons to the 







 


 
 16 


exclusion of others by written permit of the department. 


 


Secs. 14-22--14-25. Reserved. 


 


Section 2. By deleting Section 14-30, pertaining to “Penalty for violations”, from Article II 


of Chapter 14, in its entirety. 


 


Section 3. By deleting Section 14-44, pertaining to “Penalty for violations”, from Article III 


of Chapter 14, in its entirety. 


 


Section 4. By deleting Section 14-64, pertaining to “Penalty for violations”, from Article IV 


of Chapter 14, in its entirety. 


 


Section 5. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the 


Board of Commissioners for Fayette County. 


 


Section 6. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 


hereby repealed. 


 


Section 7. In any event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 


shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall 


in no manner affect other sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases of 







 


 
 17 


this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the section, 


subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional were not a part thereof.  The Board of Commissioners hereby 


declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this Ordinance if it had 


known that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or 


unconstitutional. 


 


 SO ENACTED this ____________ day of _______________, 2014. 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


 


 


By:_______________________ 


     Steve Brown, Chairman 


(SEAL)  


 


 


ATTEST:      


 


 


___________________________ 


Floyd Jones, County Clerk 


 


 


Approved as to form: 


 


___________________________ 


Interim County Attorney 





		Parks and Recreation- Ordinance 2013-17 Agenda Request File

		Parks and Recreation- Ordinance 2013-17 Backup

		Parks and Recreation- Ordinance 2013-17- Backup-1

		Recreation and Parks- Ordinance (revised) Backup-2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of Petition No. 1232-13, Jerry M. Gable and Lowell T. Mullins, Owners, and Christine Flanigan, Agent, request to rezone  


3.35 acres from A-R Agriculture-Residential to R-40 Single-Family Residential to develop two (2) residential lots, with said property being 


located in Land Lot 88 of the 5th District and fronting on South Jeff Davis Drive and Callaway Road, with three recommended conditions.


Staff recommends approval of Petition 1232-13 to rezone 3.35 acres from A-R: Agriculture-Residential to R-40: Single-Family 


Residential, with three recommended conditions. 


 


The Planning Commission voted 3-1 for approval of  Petition 1232-12, with three recommended conditions. The recommended conditions 


are highlighted on the first page of the supporting material to this request. 


 


Based on input from the County Attorney the recommended conditions have been amended since the Planning Commission meeting and 


includes a 180-day period to meet certain conditions and if the 180-day deadline is not met it will require the removal of an illegal single-


family dwelling within thirty days. 


 


 


 


Approval of Petition No. 1232-13, Jerry M. Gable and Lowell T. Mullins, Owners, and Christine Flanigan, Agent, request to rezone  3.35 


acres from A-R Agriculture-Residential to R-40 Single-Family Residential to develop two (2) residential lots, with said property being 


located in Land Lot 88 of the 5th District and fronting on South Jeff Davis Drive and Callaway Road, with three recommended conditions.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Planning staff has spoken with the applicants and they have agreed with the proposed revisions.  The Board of Commissioners needs to 


ensure the applicants go on records and agree with the three recommended conditions reflected on page 12 (1-7).


Public HearingThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #8











PLAN NING COMMISSION REZONING REPORT


PETITION NO.: 1232-13


APPLICANT: Jerry M. Gamble & Lowell T. Mullins
663 Clear Creek Valley Dr.
Elijay, GA
30536


STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval with three (3) Conditions


PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING: December 5, 2013


PLANNING COMM ISSION RECOMMENDATION: Approval with three (3)
Conditions


BOARD OF COMMISS IONERS HEARING: January 23,2014


COMMISSION DECISION:


REQUEST: Request to rezone 3.35 from A-R to R-40 to develop a Single Family
Residential Subdivision.


PARCEL SIZE: 3.35


EXISTI NG USE: Single-Family Residential


PROPOSED USE : Single Family Residential Subdivision


LO CATION: Land Lot 88 of the 5th District and fronts on South Jeff Davis Drive &
Callawy Road


ZONI NG OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: A-R & R-45


LAND USE PATTERN: Low Density Residential (I Unit/I to 2 Acres)


MOTION AND VOTE OF PLANNING COMMISSION:


Tim Thoms made a motion to approve the petition with three (3) conditions. Bill
Beckwith seconded the motion. The motion passed 3- I with Doug Powell voting in
opposition to the motion. Jim Graw was absent.


REASON(S) FOR RECOMMENDATION:


In compliance with the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan.
Compatible with the surrounding area.







PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION


DATE: December 5, 2013


TO: Fayette County Commissioners


The Fayette County Planning Commission recommends that Petition No. 1232-13, the


application of Jerry M. Gable & Lowell T. Mullins to rezone 3.35 from A-R to R-40, be:


1--. ,,-, 1
_J_ Approved Withdrawn __ Disapproved


Tabled until _


JIM GRAW, VICE-CHAIRMAN


k-~


I!(J~t~
-:-:::---,--,,-,,------::::c:-::c==-==----=~,.._,_.,.__------'---


BILL BECKWITH


C~7~
DDUGPOWELL


TIM THOMS


Remarks:







STAT E OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF FAYETTE


RESOL UTION


NO. 1232-13


WHEREAS , Jerry M. Gable & Lowell T. Mullin s, Owner, and Christine


Flanigan, Agent, having come before the Fayette County Planning Commission on


December 5, 2013, requesting an amendment to the Fayette County Zoning Map pursuant


to "The Zoning Ordinance of Fayette County, Georgia, 2010" ; and


WHEREAS , said request being as follows: Request to rezone 3.35 from A-R to


R-40, in the area of South Jeff Davis Drive & Callawy Road, Land Lot 88 of the 5th


District, for the purpose of developing a Single Family Residential Subdivision; and


WHEREAS , the Fayette County Planning Commission having duly convened,


and considered said request;


BE IT RESOLV ED that the decision of the Fayette County Planning


Commission, that said request be


This decision is based on the following reasons:


In compliance with the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan.
Compatible with the surrounding area.


PLANNING COMMISSION


OF


FAYETTE COUNTY


ATTEST:


ALGILBERT
CHAIRMAN


DENNIS S. DUTTON
PC SECRETARY







To:


From:


Date:


Subject:


Fayette County Board of Commissioners


Dennis S. Dutton, Fayette County Planning & Zoning


January 10,2014


Board of Commissioners Public Hearing, January 23, 2014


The attached report is submitted for you consideration and contains the Staff s
Recommendation and the Planning Commission's Recommendation on the rezoning
application scheduled for public hearing on January 23, 2014.


PETITION
NUMBER


1232-13


LOCATION/
REOUEST


South .Ieff Davis
Drive & Callaway
Road/ A-R to R-40/
To develop two
siugle-family
dwelliug lots ou
3.35 acres


STAFF
RECOMMENDATION


APPROVE R-40 WITH
THREE (3)
RECOMMENDED
CONDITIONS


PLANNING
COMMISSION
RECOMMENDATION


APPROVE R-40 WITH
THREE (3)
RECOMMENDED
CONDITIONS







PETITION NO: 1232-13


REQUESTED ACTION: A-R to R-40


PROPOSED USE: Single Family Residential Subdivision


EXISTING USE: Single-Family Residential


LOCATION: South Jeff Davis Drive & Callaway Road


DISTRICTILAND LOT(S): 5th District, Land Lot(s) 88


OWNER: Jerry M. Gable & Lowell T. Mullins


APPLICANT: Christine Flanigan


PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING: December 5, 2013


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING: January 23, 2014


APPLICANT'S INTENT


Applicants propose to develop a Single Family Residential Subdivision consisting of two (2) lots
on 3.35 acres.


STAFF RECOMMENDATION


APPROVAL WITH THREE (3) CONDITIONS


1-1. 1232-13







INVESTIGATION


A. PROPERTY SITE


The subject property is a 3.35 tract fronting on South Jeff Davis Drive & Callaway Road
in Land Lot(s) 88 of the 5th District. South Jeff Davis Drive is classified as a Minor
Arterial road on the Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan and Callaway Road is classified
as a Collector road on the Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan. The subject property
contains a single-family dwelling and two (2) accessory structures.


History : A Warranty Deed recorded on October 24, 2013 transferred the ownership of
1.41 acres from Jerry M. Gable to Lowell T. Mullins. This subdivision of the subject
property created two (2) illegal lots. Prior to this illegal subdivision, the subject property
was a nonconforming 3.35 acre lot.


B. SURROUNDING ZONING AND USES


The general situation is a 3.35 tract that is zoned A-R. In the vicinity of the subject
property is land which is zoned A -R & R-45. See the following table and also the
attached Zoning Location Map.


The subject property is bound by the following adjacent zoning districts and uses:


Direction Acreage Zon ing Use Comprehensive Plan


North 5 A-R Single-Famil y Resident ial Low Density Residential ( I Unitll
to 2 Areas)


South (across 1.04 R-45 Woodlands Subdivisi on Low Density Resident ial ( I Unit/ I
South Jeff Tennis Court to 2 Areas)
Davis Drive)


13 R-45 Single-Family Residentia l Low Density Residential (I Unit/ I
to 2 Areas)


East (across 3 A-R Single-Family Residential Low Density Residential (I Unit/ I
Callaway to 2 Areas
Road)


West 5 A-R Single-Family Residential Low Density Residential (1 Unit/ I
to 2 Areas


1-2. 1232-13







C. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN


The subject property lies within an area designated for Low Density Residential (I Unit/1
to 2 Acres). This request conforms to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan.


D. ZONINGIREGULATORY REVIEW


The applicants seek to rezo ne A-R from to R-40 for the purpose of developing a Single
Family Residential Subdivision.


Setbacks and Buffers


A numrnurn lot size of one (I) acre where a central wate r distribution system IS prov ided.
One-half(.SO) acre where a centra l sanitary sewage and central water distribution systems are provided.


*
**


Zo ning Zoning Setba cks Minimum Lot Minimum Lot Width at Buffer
District Size House Size Build ing Line


R-40 F - 60' Arter ial I Acre * 1,500 sq ft 150' Arterial N/A
F - 60' Collector 1.5 Acres ** 150' Collector
F - 40' Local 125' Minor
S - IS'
R -30'


. .


Fayette County tax records indicate that the existing single-family dwelling is 945 square
feet in size. The R-40 zoning district requires a floor area of 1,500 square feet. Floor
Area is defined in the zoning ordinance as follows:


Floor Area, Principal Structure. The area of a dwelling exclusive of
unheated space shall be measured from the face of the exterior walls.
Unheated space shall include, but not be limited to: attic, basement,
garage, carport, patios, and open porches.


Section 7-2 of the Zoning Ordinance states:


A property that is improved with an existing residential structure, which
would become nonconformin g in terms of the minimum square footage
requirements within the zoning district for which a rezoning is being
sought, may be considered for rezoning. Any actions necessary to achieve
compliance will be handled through conditions of rezoning approval.


Staff is recommending a condition that the existing single-family dwelling is brought into
compliance with the R-40 zoning district prior to the submittal of the Minor Subdiv ision
Plat. This can be ach ieved either by adding additional floor area to the existing single
family dwelling to meet the minimum required floor area or through a variance, approved
by the Zoning Board of Appeals, to reduce the minimum floor area requirement. If the
variance is denied, additional floor area shall be added to the existing single-fami ly
dwelling prior to the submission of the Minor Subdivision Plat.


1-3. 1232-13







In either case , if additi onal square footage is added to the exis ting single-family dwelling
prior to the submission of the Minor Subdivision Plat a variance is required from the
Subdivision Regulations, Sec. 8-503. (b) 11. Build ing Perm it which states:


No permit for the construction of any building on any lot of a proposed
subdivision or phase thereof shall be issued unless the Final Plat or Minor
Subd ivision Plat of the proposed subdivision has been recorded in the
office of the Clerk of Superior Court of Fayette County, Georgia, and
unless the Minimum Site Improvements, as prescribed in this Ordinance,
have been made and such improvements have been inspected and
approved by the applicable departm ents. Upon recordation of the Final
Plat or Minor Subdivision Plat, the required number of recorded copies, a
recorded copy of a Warranty Deed for any right -of-way dedicated to the
County, and the digital media copy of the approved Final Plat or Minor
Subdivision Plat shall be submitted to the Planning and Zoning
Department prior to the issuance of any building permits. Lots within a
nonresident ial subdivisio n shall also require an approved Site Plan, as
applicable, for the issuance of a building permit.


Variances to the Subdivision Regulations are considered by the Planning Commission.


The applicant's Concept Plan and Survey indicate that the existing single-family dwelling
is approximately 36 feet from the front property line and does not meet the 60 foot front
yard setback for R-40 along South Jeff Davis Drive. Section 7-2 of the Zoning
Ordinance states:


A propert y that is improved with a legally existing structure, which would
become nonconforming in terms of the setbacks only within the zoning
district for which a rezon ing is being sought, may be considered for
rezoning, except as otherwise provided in Article VI. 0 -1. and Article VII.
Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone. Upon approval of the rezoning
request, a vari ance authori zed by the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be
necessary for the structure to remain within the setback (see Article IX.)
Any enlargement, expans ion, or extension of said structure which serves
to increa se nonconformance, either vertical and/or horizontal, shall only
be made with the authorization ofthe Zoning Board of Appeals . Any new
structure shall comply with the dimensional minimum requirements
herein.


An addit ional ten feet of right-of-way will required along South Jeff Davis Drive placing
the existing single-family dwelling 26 feet from the new right-of-way. However, this
additional 10 foot encroachment into the front yard setback does not require a variance
per Sec. 5-6. Reduction of Lot Area which states:


1-4. 1232-13







No lot shall be reduced in size so that the lot size, width or depth, size of
yard, lot area per family, or any other requirement of this ordinance is not
maintained. This restriction shall not apply when a portion of a lot is
acquired for a public purpose.


Staff is recommending a condit ion that a variance for the existing single-family
dwelling' s encroachment into the front yard setback be authorized by the Zoning Board
of Appeals prior to any improvements to the existing structure to meet the required
minimum floor area. If the variance is denied, that portion of the existing single-family
dwelling encroaching into the front yard setback must be removed prior to the submission
of the Minor Subdivision Plat. The two (2) aforementioned variances could be heard by
the Zoning Board of Appeals at the same time.


Right-or-Way Requirements


As per the Fayette County Subdivision Regulations, Section 8-505(g) Additional Right
of-Way and the Fayette County Development Regulations, Section 8-50.3. Right-of-Way
Donation and Acquisition should a proposed subdivision or development of property that
adjo ins the existing street, the developer shall dedicate additional right-of-way to meet
one-half the minimum right-of-way requirement for the applicable functional
classification as indicated on the Fayette County Thoroughfare Plan of the adjoining
street. South Jeff Davis Road is a Minor Arterial and requires 100 feet of total right-of
way (50 feet from centerline) and Callaway Road is a Collector and requires 80 feet of
total right-of-way (40 feet from centerline).


Access


The Concept Plan submitted indicates two (2) existing accesses from South Jeff Davis
Road. A Driveway Easement Agreement for the subject property was recorded on
October 24, 2013


E. DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS


Water System


Lot I - City of Fayetteville Service area.


Lot 2- Currently served by Fayette County Water System.


EngineeringlPublic Works


• Callaway Road & S. Jeff Davis Drive - 80' ROW existing for both roads


• South Jeff Davis is Arterial. Applicant to provide quit claim deed for 50
feet as measured from centerline of South Jeff Davis Road.


1-5. 1232-13







• Callaway Road is Collector. Applicant to provide quit claim deed for 40
feet as measured from centerline of Callaway Road.


Environmenta l Management


Rezoning 1232-13 no issues, (l field checked for state waters - none were
apparent.)


Environmenta l Hea lth Department


No comment on subject applications.


The Bureau of Fire Prevention will neither approve nor deny requests that fall
outside the scope of ISO requirements.


STAFF ANALYSIS


This request is based on the petitioner's intent to rezone said property from A-R to R-40
for the purpose of developing Single Family Residential Subdivision. Per Section 11-I I
of the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Staff makes the following evaluations:


I. The subject property lies within an area designated for Low Density Residential
(I Unitl I to 2 Acres). This request conforms to the Fayette County
Comprehensive Plan.


2. The proposed rezoning will not adversely affect the existing use or usability of
adjacent or nearby property.


3. The proposed rezoning will not result in a burdensome use of roads, utilities, or
schools.


4. Existing conditions and the area's continuing development as a single-family
residential district support this petition.


Based on the foregoing Investigation and Staff Analysis, Staff recommends APPROVAL
WITH THRE E (3) CONDITIONS.


1-6. 1232-13







RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS


If this petition is approved by the Board of Commissioners, it should be approved R-40
CONDITIONAL subject to the following enumerated conditions. Where these
conditions conflict with the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, these conditions shall
supersede unless otherwi se specifically stipulated by the Board of Commissioners.


I . The owner/developer shall provide, at no cost to Fayette County, a quit-claim
deed for 50 feet as measured from the centerline of South Jeff Davis Drive prior
to the approval of the Minor Subdivision Plat and said dedication area shall be
shown on the Minor Subdivision Plat. (This condition is to ensure the provision
ofadequate right-of- way for fut ure road improvements.)


2. That a variance for the existing single-family dwelling's encroachment into the
front yard setback be obtained from the Zoning Board of Appeals within 180 days
from the effective date of this rezoning and prior to any improvements to the
existing structure to meet the required minimum floor area (see 3. (2) below). If
the variance is denied, the owner/developer agrees to take all necessary action
consistent with the direction of the Zoning Board of Appeals. If the
owner/developer fails to take action to obtain a decision from the Zoning Board of
Appeals within 180 days and that time period has expired, the owner/developer
agrees to remove/demolish the existing single-family dwelling within 30 days
from the date of the expiration. (This requirement is required f or compliance
with the Zoning Ordinance, Article VI.)


3. That the applicant brings the existing single-family dwelling into compliance with
the R-40 zoning district. This can be achieved either through:


(I) A variance, obtained from the Zoning Board of Appeals, to reduce the square
footage requirement. If the owner/developer pursues a variance for the size of
the existing single-family dwelling, said variance shall be obtained from the
Zoning Board of Appeals within 180 days from the effective date of this
rezoning. If the variance is denied, the owner/developer agrees to take all
necessary action consistent with the direction of the Zoning Board of Appeals; or


(2) By adding square footage to the existing single-family dwelling to bring it into
compliance. If the owner/developer chooses to add the required square footage to
the existing single-family structure a variance from the Subdivision Regulations
to issue a building permit prior to the approval of the of the Minor Subdivision
Plat shall be obtained from the Planning Commission within 180 days from the
effective date of this rezoning and coordinated with the aforementioned variance
needed for the encroachment into the front yard setback. (This requirement is
required for compliance with the Zoning Ordinance, Article VI.) (This
requirement is requiredfo r compliance with the Zoning Ordinance, Article VI.)


1-7. 1232-13



fjones

Highlight



fjones

Highlight



fjones

Highlight



fjones

Highlight



fjones

Highlight



fjones

Highlight



fjones

Highlight







ONOUG H ROAD


NO T TO SCALE
VICINITY MAP


</'£/ "'to'oX ,


a
<~ a
"0
w" zl . >


"<


~•< zSOur. SITE ~
0
a"'J~l'p u U~ D~~s Sll~'V~.


ZONEDA·R


~ R-40 Slnc l/l,Famlty Re,id/lnlral O,slli et
~ A DesCliplJon ofDl.lnd This dlslnd II COlllpoa&d C>l ce '1am lanCis aoll


structu. es ,1'1I I" . County , haVln!l .110'" Oenslly .,ng1e.la~ lesodenlla l
cha.ade' aI'IdIS desogned lo proled a9alnsl l~ depl"etlabnll elleet s 01


sman lo! dll vekl pmenl . nd lhOM! IIses "'",rfIIla1jble ",~h SlJch a
reSldenloal en..,ronmll nl
B Perm/tled Usn TM follOWIng P/lfmrtted Us.&S snaNbe aHowed ln
lI>eR-40 ZOnlnll o. stricl.


1 Single · lllmlly dwelling
2 Accenol}' sllue;tures and liS'" (see Art,cle V J, and
3 Growing crops, gardens


C Cond ~ lOn lj Uses Tnll foHow,ng CcnCIdlOnlll Usu shaHbe a ~ oweCI in
tne R-40 Zoning o. s1nd proYlded lh at all "'ndh'.... sp&oMOin Art icle
v nCo~~'on&IUsll • . Nom:on fOmJanc:u, Tf artsportat,ofl Corndol'
Ove<1ayZone, and CommerCIal Oevelopmem Sla ndards al e mel


1 Church andlo r othe r Place of W<lr.hlp.
2 Devel oped Ru .oontlal Recrl8t1OnRVAmenny mas
3 Home OCcupatIon,
• Herse Ollarters,ar>d
5 F'rivsl e Schoo l. ,ncluding, but nol hmded 10


elnsroom• . admln lSlrallon,plaYllr ounr;l. hOUSing.
athlet IC ~ e ld' , gymna s,um, and stadium


O.Domensoonal Requoremenl s The m,nomumd,men SlOnal reqlllfl!."...ms
", dh", Ille R-40 ZI'II'I,ng CMlricl.1\hall bll., 101""",


1 Lot are. per elwen".,g IIn~


a ';\here e/lol ral sa n ~ a ry sewage or cenuar water
dtSl1ltlU\JOOS ySlems are prCMded 43,560 s ~uare leet (l'll'le III
aCle)
b Voh1ere M~her a central S.lIn~ary sewage ncr a cenlral ", alef
dlSlnbutlon syste m ISprOVided 65.3(0 square reet (one and
one,ha lf 11 5] a~le s)


2 Lol 'Mcf!n
a MaJO< IhofO\l9nf.a,e i Aner>al 150 feel _ COlleclOl 150 leel
b M'flor l hct ouglllare 125 leel
3 Floor area 1,500 square feel
• Fronl y"d sel back
a Ms,lOll horoughla,e I Arlen al 60 feel " Colle1::l or 60 leel
b Mill O!" lhorough la.e · 40 leer
5 Rear ya.d setback 30 feel
6 Side yar d sel bnck 15 feel
7 Helg"t ltmll 35 feel


o
~~.r
p '. ::;
'1 :>(
& ",


~ ~


~ ~ ~


I,


I


~


~


w
w
-s


'"o
"~
'"m


~


,;
<1


l lTRBF


STORY FRAME


~ 88 7'·


~


PROPO SED
LOT 2


141 ACRES
CURRENT ZONING - A·R


PROPOSED ZONING - R·40


<,


....5.;>. '9
:S8?.J.~5.?,


<'""-..~ " 9 '


<,


coo SHED


WELL


THIS SURVE Y DOES NOT
CONSTITUTE A TITLE SEARCH
B Y SURVEYOR A LL
INFORMA TU) N REGARDI NG
RECORD EASEMENTS.
ADJO/NERS AND OTHER
DOCUMEN TS THAT MIGHT
AFFEC T THE QUAl/TY OF TITLE
TO TRAc r SHO WN WERE NOT
SUPP/. IE:D TO THIS OFFICE


<,


---....0;
'- ~ '\


I ~o
lil•
I ~
I~<
I~


I
I
I


r PROPOSEDPROPERTY UN E-


<,


<'4 h~4'.
s»:


REZONING PLA T
TOTAL AREA 3.35 ACRES


N"
PHILL IP & JANE ANDERSON


ZONEDA·R
N 89·53 '43· E - 486 95'


THIS PLATHAS BEEN CALCULA TED FOR CLOSURE AND
IS FOUND TO BE ACCURATE WITH/NONE FOOT IN
,OO,OOO ~ FEET


ANGULAR 4 LINEAR MEASURMENTS Wl:RE OB TAINED
USINO A L/ECA 40JTCR TOTALSTAnDN


PROPO SED
lOT 1


1906ACRES
CURRENT ZONING - A·R


PfWPOSEO ZONING - R·.O


"'60.
« ~


~'l-'·.1.Jl .J.r'
<,


INlRE FENCE


ZONEDR.45


eo


<,
<,


JO


GRAPHIC SCALE


' " . lilT


<,


R BI' Y 1"0J..I ' ?


LEGEND
R8F_REBAR FOUND
R8S . REBAR SET
L L ~ANOtO'


L L L =LAND t OT tiNE
"l . PROPER TY tiNE


CIUC£NTfRtlNE
€}p. EDGE OF PAV£I.l EN r
RJW~RIGHTOFWAV


h~MAG-MAGNE.TIC
P D B ~POINT OF BEGINNING
BIL ~BUILDING U NE
DE _ORAJNAGE EAS£ MEN '
NlF~NOW OR FORMffit "
EOG2EOGE OF GRAV£t
CIt _CENTERLINE
SSMH~SAN'TARV SEWER MANHOLE Z
F W P 0 . FIELD WORk :;:
PERFORY EODATE d! N. ~,


RODNEY & SONIA DICKSO N
PLAT BOOK 27 FO G 8. "ZONE OA,R e


~


.....
~.c> ~AXLE


~~ct~.g>r.:


SA GASKINS &ASSOCIATES, LLC
surveyors - planners - deve lopment consultants


770-460 ·9342 24524 Hwy 85 Gay. Ga . 30218 JO HN 3:16


R..k",m;es DB21'PG In


0111/1· ' 0/24113


FWP D l0i0IIIIJ


>~ ..~ _No SA IJ- fli9 RZP


I'rep."'e<J For
JERRY M. GABLE


SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION


FLOOD STATFMFW
ACCORDING TO FEMA FLOOD
INSURANCE RATE MAP Of FAYETTE
COUNTY ANO UNINCOPOAATEO AREAS
OATED SEPT'EMBl; R 26. 2008 MAP
NUMBER 13' 13C0 116E, 'THIS PROPERTY
DOES NOT LIE INlTHIN A SPECIAL
FLOCO HAZARD AREA


" " " ~ , ~DIlViS Qrr>.1l I' llyerr IlVlIIII. Ga


IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THIS PLAT IS TRUE
AND CORRECT AND WAS PREPARED FROM AN
ACTUAL SUAVEY Of THE PR OPERTY MADE BY ME
OR UNDER MY SUf>ERVlSlor,t THAT AlL
MONUMENTS SHO'M<IHEREON ACTUAll Y EXIST
OR ARE MARKED AS "FUTURE" AND THEIR
LDCA1l0N. SIZE. TYPE . AND MATERIAl ARE
CORRECTLY SHO\MIl THIS PLAT CONFORMS TO
ALL REOUIREMENTS OF GEORGIA PLAT ACT


S\I\IINSON A GASKINS. SR REGISTERED GEORGIA
'A" '" ", "'''"YOR NO 1620







112"RBF-
~~


I I
0


f:-ro r
0 ~
0


~d
CD
01 -c
OJ ;lJ
m 0.. ~


'" 0
'" 00i.> q-s


.T--l ~


11~·33~


LOT 2 Ii I,~, ~~, I


i I I
~ I~s


I


<.


N 89"53'43" E - 486.95'


..
PHlUJl" & JANE NIDERSON'


<,


LOT 1
1.94 ACR ES


WIRE FENCE


<,


!1J2"RBF


DATE


..
ROONEY& SONIADICKSON
PlAT800K 27PG.SA


NO.


-~
~


!XlIs


scn>ACK'


FRDM"o<a
5IOE"'15'
REAR.,.


"-- -
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS f'\.AT IS mUE I<M) C<lRRECT ANO WAS PREPAAEO F'ROJ,4 AN
AClu.-J. SURVEY OF lliE PROPERTY BY ME 00 l!t'([)EA MYSU!>EJMSION.~TAU.UONUMENTS
AHD~UCTURE SHQ"oYN HEREON ACTUAUY EXISTORNE MAAI<EDM"FIJTVRE". AJoC THEIR
l OCoJ.T1ON. SlZ£.. TYPEANOUAT'EJI,IAl. ARE. CC!RRK1ly $HCJ','IN


ka rA WV' It-to lo},,,,/,.3
G4. Rl S SWINSON A. GASIONS. SFl


SA. GASKINS & ASSOC/A rss. LLC
SURVE YORS - PLA NNERS . DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANTS SAGASKI NS@BElLSOUTH.NET


24524Highway85Gay. Ga. .J0218 770-460-9342 878-618-5067


PREPARE D FOR:


SCAlE: 1" = 100'


JERRY GABLE


lAND lOT: 88


ersrrucr:
COUNTY' FAYETTE, GA


p.e.
DAlE 10/1012013
F.W.P.D. 1010812013


JOBNO.: SA13-169


Po·


~


;;
z
Ij


LEGEND
R.BF"RE-8AR FOUND
RBS=RE-8AR SET
RlWzRlGHTOFWAY
w.c;.. MAGNETIC
P.O.8.zPOM OF BEGINNING
8JI.~UNE


D.E.~GE EASEMENT
NIF-NOW DR:FORMERlY
CA.oC<HTERlJNE
P'""'OWER""'"
F.WP.D.=FIELDWORK


PERFORIo(£D [lATE


OECl.AAATlON IS w.DE.TO ORIGINAlf>l/ROW;ER
Of THE SURVEY.~ USE BYTHIJotC PARTI£S IS
ATTHEIR fYNN RISK
SURVEY IS VALlO OM..Y IF PRINTHAS ORIGINAL
SEAI. ...,.,O ORIGINALSlGNA.lVRE OF SURVEYOR.


ctOSVRE DAf A


nELOClOSURE-11N 10.000.
ANGLEPOINTERROR>'c za'
EOUlPlEHTusee-au I,l . & T1iEOOOUTE
~ l,(f"J'HOD-eIJ"lPASS RULE
PlAT a.OSURE-1'1H 1 00.~


GlUPHIC SCALE,... ,..,. :
o so 100 200







Co'·'S"


' rhEl ' I I


'~
v


00 {jj @


,If@\ 'Y p,fl<r<M ~ J_ .


"'" ,.---'-'- ~
! !JL] I-- .


f~~ _ u
• • r-iI $


u
~


tl -m>rl


- , ,
".'


.


=t- ,0) ~1/
@


• .,'<;0" i ,'.•"i ~.:.; .r-
;.


/ ,~ " - .
,


," '",


•. ~


,


lA!tl.J '''' ~
Nf,.'W' ecc !2.t4·. \~,


I!'


~-mID...
'0 ®.r..


- ..• --
Ll\ /PJ't 1Z VI.


~ : 7~· 1
~


(". D"


I - . 1ool>r1"" I-J


f\
-


I~i I-..l


j I


-


e"p.&H --


I
,


- . _ - - ~


F LOO R pL.f:-















r-----l-H'~bENSITY


••
~


Pelt ion No.
1232-13


WP







R·40


R·45 R· 45 R-45
R--45


R-40 R· 4:l R- 40 R-40


R-4<)


\---- -dR• 40 R-AO


Zoning


Pellion No.
1232-13


R. 4Q-,--__r-r-__.--"OR-4:l


R-n


R-40


R· "


R·45


R- 45


R· 45


R·4U


R- 4:l


R-40


.4<)


R-40







THE FAYETTE CO UNTY PLANNING COMMISSION met on December 5, 2013 at 7:00
P.M. in the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


MEMBERS PRESENT:


MEMBERS ABSENT:


STAFF PRESENT:


Al Gilbert, Chairman
Bill Beckwith
Douglas Powell
Tim Thoms


Jim Graw, Vice-Chairman


Peter A. Frisina, Director of Community Services
Dennis Dutton, Zoning Administrator


Welcome and Call to Order:


Chairman Gilbert called the Planning Commission Meeting to order. Chairman Gilbert
introduced the Commission Members and Staff.


* * * * * * * * * *


I. Consideration of the Minutes of the Meeting held on November 7, 2013.


Tim Thoms made a motion to approve the minutes. Doug Powell seconded the motion. The
motion passed 4-0. Jim Graw was absent.


PUBLIC HEARING


2. Consideration of Petition No. 1232-13, Jerry M. Gable and Lowell T. Mullins,
Own ers, and Christine Flanigan , Agent, request to rezone property from A-R
Agriculture-Residential to R-40 Single-Family Resid ential to develop two (2)
residential lots. This property consists of 3.35 acres located in Land Lot 88 of the 5th
District and fronts on South Jeff Davis Drive and Callaway Road.


Chairman Gilbert advised the petitioners that there were only four Planning Commissioners
present tonight and that they had the option to table to the next meeting.


Carol Mullins stated that they would go ahead with the petition. Mrs. Mullins said that she and
her husband Tom have lived in the County for 17 years and they purchased this property to rehab
and remodel the home so they could downsize from their present home. She added that they had
no idea that any problems would result from purchasing this property as the lot is only 1.4 acres
with a little house that they want to bring up to standards. She said that they have no intention of
encroaching on anyone else 's property or cause any problems.


Chairman Gilbert asked if there was anyone to speak in favor of this petition. Hearing none he
asked if there was anyone to speak in opposition to the petition .







Page 2
December 5, 2013
PC Meeting


Phillip Anderson asked if it is correct that this land has been divided and these folks have been
allowed to purchase and close on the property that has not been rezoned and he is wondering
what this is and can he ask the question.


Pete Frisina said the property was subdivided but not through the proper procedures and now to
meet the procedures the property has to be rezoned to allow for a smaller than five (5) acre lot so
the lots can be legally platted.


Phillip Anderson asked if they have been allowed to close on the 1.4 acre lot.


Pete Frisina said they have closed on the 1.4 acre lot.


Phillip Anderson said it makes no sense to him how you can buy something that is illegal.


Pete Frisina said there is no way to stop it.


Phillip Anderson said it seems like the cart is before the horse and why are we rezoning this to
start with as you have a piece of property that kind of fits with the area with the exception of the
Woodlands Subdivision across the street and it has a house on so why don't they just sell the
property as is and why do we have to subdivide the property . He added that is kind of a dumb
question because it comes down to money and two (2) pieces of property are make more money
than one (I) piece of property and he would prefer that they just sell the house and the property
without subdividing the property. He said he thinks everybody understanding that if you live in
an area where the County is going to rezone for quarter acre with 1,200 square foot houses your
property values are going to go down. He stated that his other concern is the rain water runoff
that will run in a ditch toward his property to the north and development is going to make it
worse. He said he questions the 10 foot strip of on Callaway road attached to Lot 1 and he was
told it was for utilities but is it big enough to put a driveway on it and the driveway should be on
South Jeff Davis Road and no Callaway Road. He stated that he would like to see the entire
property sold to these folks and left as it is and they are doing a nice job of cleaning it up and that
will add to the value of the neighborhood.


Charles Kilpatrick said he agrees with Mr. Anderson 's points and he does see that this will
benefit anyone but the seller of the property, the Mullins are doing a good job cleaning up the
property and he doesn't know what R-40 means in terms of how many square feet is required for
the house.


Doug Powell said 1,500 square feet is required for the house in R-40.


Mr. Kilpatrick said he has a problem with the lot being cut up so another house can be there and
that will start lots being cut up with small house on them on South Jeff Davis Road and Callaway







Page 3
December 5, 2013
PC Meeting


Road and has no problem with these folks fixing up this house and keeping the property together.


Doug Powell said the property has been subdivided, but not legally. He said the County can't
stop the sale of the property because that doesn't go through the County and the new owners find
out it is illegal when they come to the County to get a building permit.


Mr. Kilpatrick asked if the property is legally or illegally subdivided, so let these people have the
whole property and he would like it to be kept in one piece.


Jerry Dickson said he had a piece of property that is to the west and it was done somewhat like
this property was done to get below the five (5) acre deal. The Gable's bought this property back
in the 50's and it was a big farm and they sold off parts of it and this house was and the property
was left over. He said his property was subdivided by the family and a house was left with one
(l) acre and when he tried to build a sunroom on his house the County wouldn't issue the permit
and they wanted a plat and the plat I had showed the different lots and the one (l) acre lot with
the house. He said the lady at the permit office went through the roof and said he would never
get a permit and to finally get the permit he had to write up the property deed to suit her and get
it recorded.


David Dykes said he is the Secretary of the Woodlands Homeowner's Association we like what
the folks are doing to the property but he wants to leave it as A-R and keep the property together.


Chairman Gilbert asked ifthere was anyone else to speak in opposition hearing none he asked if
Mr. Mullins wanted to rebut.


Tom Mullins said he just wanted to buy the house and fix it up. He said there is an existing
circular driveway on South Jeff Davis Road to serve both lots and he thought the strip in the back
was to run County water down. He plans to add an addition to the house and bring it up to 1,500
square feet and up to code.


Chairman Gilbert asked Mr. Mullins ifhe agreed with the three (3) conditions.


Mrs. Mullins said they were in agreement with the three conditions (3).


Tim Thoms read the Recommended Conditions as follows:


1. The owner/developer shall provide, at no cost to Fayette County, a quit-claim
deed for 50 feet as measured from the centerline of South Jeff Davis Drive prior
to the approval of the Minor Subdivision Plat and said dedication area shall be
shown on the Minor Subdivision Plat. (This condition is to ensure the provision
ofadequate right-of-way for future road improvements.)







Page 4
December 5, 2013
PC Meeting


2. That a variance for the existing single-family dwelling 's encroachment into the
front yard setback be authorized by the Zoning Board of Appeals prior to any
improvements to the existing structure to meet the required minimum floor area.
If the variance is denied, that portion of the existing single-family dwelling
encroaching into the front yard setback must be removed prior to the submission
of the Minor Subdivision Plat. (This requirement is required fo r compliance with
the Zoning Ordinance, Article VI)


3. That the applicant brings the existing single-family dwelling into compliance with
the R-40 zoning district prior to the submittal of the Minor Subdivision Plat. This
can be achieved either by adding square footage to the existing single-family
dwelling to bring it into compliance or through a variance, approved by the
Zoning Board of Appeals, to reduce the square footage requirement. If the
variance is denied, square footage shall be added to the residential structure prior
to the submittal of the Minor Subdivision Plat which will require a variance from
the Subdivision Regulations to issue a building permit prior to the approval of the
of the Minor Subdivision Plat. (This requirement is required for compliance with
the Zoning Ordinance, Article VI)


Mrs. Mullins said Mr. Gable at first did not want to sell this property because this was his
grandfather's home and he thought we were going to tear it down and build something else and
he has a sentimental attachment to the is house so we assured him that we wouldn 't tear it down
and we were going to fix it up and live there and Mr. Gable owns the other portion of this land
and he told the Mullins that if he ever sells the property he would give them the first right of
refusal.


Chairman Gilbert said he would bring this back to the board for discussion.


Bill Beckwith said please understand that if the Zoning Board of Appeals does not approve the
variance for the encroachment of the house, the house or the portion that encroaches will have to
be removed.


Mr. Mullins said he didn't know how that would be possible because you would have to tear the
house down.


Bill Beckwith said that is quite possible.


Mr. Mullins said how I can meet Condition #2 if! can't get a permit.


Pete Frisina said the last part of the Condition #3 is to come back to the Planning Commission
for a variance to the Subdivision Regulations to get a building permit before the plat is approved.







PageS
December S, 2013
PC Meeting


Bill Beckwith said if this petition were to be approved what would the next step be.


Pete Frisina said go before the ZBA to get the variance to let the house remain in the setback.


Bill Beckwith as if that variance was not approved then what would happen.


Pete Frisina said the house would have to be removed from the setback.


Doug Powell said the zoning is changing the setback from an A-R setback to an R-40 setback
and you had a Nonconforming lot that is less than the required five (5) acres and the property has
been subdivided the lots are now illegal so now the house does not meet the R-40 setback.


Pete Frisina said the house does not presently meet the A-R setback either.


Tim Thoms said the house was probably built before zoning and setbacks, and is now
nonconforming when the zoning was applied to the property but if you make changes to it you
have to bring it up to the current standards.


Mrs. Mullins said her real estate agent went to the Zoning Department and was assured this was
not going to be a problem.


Tim Thoms said we as the Planning Commission have been doing a lot of work on illegal lots
lately and you are trying to bring the property into compliance which is good and you will have
to apply for some variances as well but as Mr. Beckwith said there is no guarantee that you will
get the variances .


Tim Thoms said we look at a rezoning request and how it complies with the Land Use Plan and
how it affects traffic, schools, and surrounding property and in his mind this rezoning meets the
criteria for rezoning as there are similar zonings in the immediate area.


Chairman Gilbert said if you want anything done to the house, it is limited what can be done
under A-R as that is an illegal lot and most people that spoke tonight said they want the house
brought up to standards . He added that there are similar zonings in the immediate area.


Doug Powell said even if the rezoning is approved there is no guarantee that the ZBA will
approve the required variances.


Bill Beckwith said if we don't approve the rezoning then they can't do anything to the house.


Pete Frisina said this was a nonconforming lot and a nonconforming structure and it was the
subdivision of the lot that created the problem and even to do something to the house as a







Page 6
December 5, 2013
PC Meeting


nonconforming structure would still require some variances but the situation has been made
more difficult because the lot was illegally subdivided.


Doug Powell said if there were no home on the lot and you took the original A-R lot and
subdivided it properly we wouldn't be having these problems and it is because where the house
is located and if the lot was properly subdivided the resulting new homes would meet the
setbacks.


Tim Thoms said he wanted to repeat that even if the rezoning is approved there is no guarantee
the variances will be approved and he would make the motion to recommend approval of the
rezoning petition with the three (3) recommended conditions as agreed to by the petitioner.


Bill Beckwith seconded the motion. The motion passed 3-1 with Doug Powell voting in opposition to the
motion. Jim Grawwas absent.
Chairman Gilbert said rezoning the property is the best avenue to improve the property and house as you
are limited in what you can do with a nonconforming structure.


Mrs. Mullins said the house was in shambles until we started making improvements and she can't
imagine not beingable to improve the house.


3. Consideration of Petition No. 1233-13, Tony Harris, Owner, request to rezone
property from A-R Agriculture-Residential to R-40 Single-Family Residential to
develop two (2) residential lots. This property consists of 4.05 acres located in Land
Lots 227 and 254 of the 5th District and fronts on Kenwood Road and South Kite
Lake Road.


Tony Harris said he wants to rezone the property to build another house and he lives in the
existing house and plans to add addition square footage by finishing the basement. He said he
plans to live in the new house with his family and his mother-in-law will live in the existing
house.


Chairman Gilbert asked if anyone else would like to speak in favor of the petition. Hearing none
he asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition to the petition. Hearing none Chairman
Gilbert said he is bringing it back to the board for discussion.


Tim Thoms said the recommended conditions are as follows:


1. The owner/developer shall provide, at no cost to Fayette County, a quit-claim
deed for 50 feet as measured from the centerline of Kenwood Road and South
Kite Lake Road prior to the approval of the Minor Subdivision Plat and said
dedication area shall be shown on the Minor Subdivision Plat. (This condition is
to ensure the provision ofadequate right-of-way for future road improvements.)







APPLICATION TO AMEND
TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF FAYETTE COUNTY, GA


PROPERTY OWNERS: J E R.. fI... 'f M . Gf\ P>L E <;. ]};;; i / \, \.owdU L M \LW ns


MAILING ADDRESS : (,,(,,~ c...lea-v' UeeJ<-. V~ 'Ur [LiJA'I G4- 3 0 53 "


FAX: _PHONE: _ _ . J _


AGENT FOR OWNERS: _ _ -'='-'-'.!:=-'='-'--'-"'''-';.._ --''-'=''-'=-'--'''''--'-''''-- _


MAILING ADDRESS: \7 0 7e~~e.o<.. ~ .


PHONE: _ _ _


Sh'?fr"'t!. ') G-v
FAX:


E-MAIL:


PROPERTY LOCATION: LAND LOT )?'g LAND DISTRICT ii~
LAND LOT <Z( LAND DISTRICT ') .j:6


PARCEL u.l c+u.:..· ..1..1 _ _


PARCEL I . t z-


TOTAL NUMBER OF ACRES REQUESTED TO BE REZONED:_---->oo1c.....!~ _


PROPOSED ZO NING DISTRICT: _.....:..:.---:.=--- _


?-e&l&~e.....t


Va.ccu..,1- La Yl c9 ~ S'ma..IJ VD.-~yr.} /tous,-e.PRESENT USE OF SUBJECT PROPERTY: __....:....:::..::::::=.:..:--,--="-,-"",--_--",-,-,-,-,,=:.......:.= = ,,,--....:..:...::....:....::...:::.....-_


EXISTING ZONING DISTRICT: _...!...:....-'-" _


ZONING OF SURROUN DING PROPERTI ES: _ _ ...J....::.=~==-'--'-'= _


PROPOSED USE OF SUBJECT PR OPERTY: __R:....J..::e=S ..:.;LA:=::....::€.-::c{)...:.·-'-~.:..:· 0-1=- --'- _


LAND USE PLAN DESIGNATI ON: G ?' 'V P e.V\.';,. it. " (:::.-./~r:_~~i,-"J~·6\:~~~~.'...., :...1 _


NAME AND TYPE OF ACCESS RO AD: Corn u"'~ S.JetfT>ew;, RJ~ CcJLu.; "=1 {(j) .


LOCATION OF NEAREST WATER LINE : ---'=C,""CL"'-'..Il"'c'-"c'-'::::.'-"""a*-_Y,--'--"-'=D:.... _


12.32.- l~(THIS AREA TO BE COM PLETED BY STAFF): PETITION NUMBER: ---'-=-'="-=----=--= _


I I Applicatio n Insu fficient due to lack of: _


by Staff: Date: _


I 1Ap plication and all~u~o~entation is Sufficient and Co mplete


by Staff:Ck~ Date: ID /J? /ZOI3
DATE OF PLANN ING COMM ISSION HEA RING: 3c~ 5, 7L> \~


DATE OF COUNTY COMMISSIONEF-S HEARING: -J"~ .... W i 23 , 2-D I~
Rece ived from S-U"l Ga~ k. 8.. L..~ H.u.lhl<\. 5 a check in the !rnount ~f s 1<I~+/"'5"= (/310 for


applica tion liIing fee, a nd S '-/0. [) 0 for deposi t on fr am e for public hearing sign(s).


Date Paid: /0/,'5/2D0 Rcccipt Number : _


3
REZONING APPLI CATION, FAYETTE COUNTY , GA







iI,,( , Gq P? lq


Clea/ Qree..k.


NAME: J e-{Y~r--'--'-':""":""-"'-'"'-"'-"------------ PETITI ON NUMBER: _


ADDRESS: (p(" ~


PETITION FOR REZONING CERTAIN PROPERTY IN TH E UNINCORPORAT ED AREAS OF FAYETTE
COUNTY. GEORGIA.


. led/ rll M.0q..bu affirms th at he is the owner or the speci fically


a uthorized agent of the pro perty described below. Said property is located in a(n)~"Cti_U-r,ahon ing Distr ict.


He/She respectfully petitions the County to rezo ne the pro perty from its present classification and tenders herewith the


sum of $ 02. Cia~ to cover all expenses of public hear ing. HelS he petitions the above nam ed to cha nge its


classification to I<e; ,d e-od-tJ .


This property includes: (chec k one of the following)


[ 4 ee attached legal description on recorded Warranty Decd for subject property or


[ I Legal description for subject pro perty is as follows:


PUBLIC HEARING to be held by the Plan ning Commission of Fayette Co unty on the


____ _ _____ _ __, 20 at 7:00 P,M.


_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ day of


PUBLIC HEARING to be held by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County on th e day


of • 20 at 7:00 P.M.


SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME THIS DAY OF "20-----,


NOTARY PUBLIC


5
REZONING APPLICATION, FAYETTE COUNTY, GA







YKUYJ<-Kl r UW l'lJ<-K LUN~J<-l'll A rxu A~J<-l'll AU I tlUKILAllUN J<UK1VI


(Applications require authorization by ALL property owners ofsubject property).


Name(s) of All Property Owners of Record found on the latest recorded Warranty Deed for the subject
property:


Please Print N mes


Pe.w-hcJ -
Property Tax Identification Number(s) of Subject Property: 0 51"1 002.. ( /'io v!-h Df S ,J e..({Dcw', j)
(I am) (we are) the sole owner(s) ofthe above-referenced property requested to be rezoned. Subject property is located


in Land Lot(s) "13 3 &" of the "0? District, and (if applicable to more than one land


district) Land Lot(s) of the District, aud said property eonsists of a total of


acres (legal description corresponding to most recent recorded plat for the subjeet property is attached herewith).


(I) (We) hereby delegate authority to C H-Q \S T IN Eo t ,Atd \(,,1\-}:> to act as (my) (our) Agent in this
rezoning. As Agent, they have the authority to agree to any and all conditions ofzoning which may be imposed by the
Board.


(I) (We) certify that all of the information filed with this application including written statements or showings made in
any paper or plans submitted herewith are true and correct to the best of (my) (our) knowledge and belief. Further, (I)
(We) understand that this application, attachments and fees beeome part of the official records of the Fayette County
Zoning Department and may not be refundable. (I) (We) understand that any knowingly false information given herein
by me/us will result in the denial, revocation or administrative withdrawal of the application or permit. (I) (We) further
acknowledge that additional information may be required by Fayette County in order to process this application.


jJ,'liJi'1'GA


v.d!f)-oduL
Signature of Property Owner 2


/O ,-/~-/3


Date


a.,ve , A
IS(J t.a.~~ --koe~ IcvYo &
Address ' 3 D 2 3k


Signature of Property Owner 3


Address


Signature of Authorized Agent


Address


Date


Date


Date


Signature of Notary Public


Signature of Notary Public


4
REZONING APPLICATION, FAYETTE COUNTY, GA







r/w«,


AGREEMENT TO DEDICATE PROPERTY FOR FUTURE RIGHT-OF-WAY


JU14 H. (,.-....b\ ; r 4 wd1 r Mulh,~id property owner(s) of subject property requested to be rezoned ,
1


hereby agree to dedicate, at no cost to Fayette County, feet of right-of-way along


_____________________________as measured from the centerline ofthe road.


Based on th e Future T horoughfa re Plan Map streets hav e one of the following designati ons and the Fayett e County


Development Regulations require a minimum street width as specified below :


Local Street (Minor Thoroughfare) 60 foot right-of-way (30' measured from each side of road centerline)


Collector Street (Major Tho ro ughfa re) 80 foot right-of-way (40' measured from each side of road centerline)


Ar ter ial Street (Maj or Thoroughfa re) 100 foot right-of-way (SO' measured from each side of road centerline)


/:f'b ,2rl3


~CInA,L
SIGNATURE OF PROPERTY OWNER


dLt~~ ·NOTARYPliC ~


6
REZONING APPLICATION, FAYETTE COUNTY, GA







DEVELOPMENTS OF REGIONAL IMPACT (DRI)


Rezoning Applicant:


A.


B.


C.


Please review the attached "Developments of Regional Impact Tiers and Development Thresholds"


established by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA) to determine if the proposed project


meets or exceeds these thresholds . If the proposed project does not meet the estab lished thresholds (is less


than those listed) then skip to section C. below and complete.


If the project does meet or exceed the established thresholds for the type of development proposed, the


Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA) "Developments ofRegional Impact: Request for Review


Form" is available online at the following website address: www.dca.slalc .ga.usIDRI/.


I have reviewed and understand the attached "Thresholds: Developments of Regional Impact".


[~ The proposed project related 10 this rezoning request DOES NOT meet or exceed the established


DRI thresholds


] The proposed project related to this rezoning request DOES meet or exceed the established DR!


thresholds and documentation regarding the required DRI Request for Review Form is attached.


7
REZONING APPLICAnON, FAYETTE COUNTY, GA







DISCLOSURE STATEMENT


Please eheek one:
Campaign contributions - / No _ _ Yes (sec attached disclosure report)


TITLE 36. LOCAL GOVERNMENT
PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO COUNTIES AND MUNICIPAL CORPORATIONS


CHAPTER 67A. CONFLICT OF INTEREST IN ZONING ACTIONS


O.e.G.A. § 36-67A-3 (20 11)


§ 36 -67A-3 . Disclosure of campaign contributions


(a) When any applicant for rezoning action has made, within two yea rs immediateiy preceding the filing of
that applicant's application for the rezoning action, campaign contributions aggregating $250.00 or more to a
local government official who will consider the application, it shall be the duty of the applicant to file a
disclosure report w ith the govern ing authority of the respective local governmen t showinq:


( 1) The name and officia l position of the local government official to whom the campaign contribution was
made ; and


( 2) The dollar amount and description of each campaign contribution made by the applicant to the local
government official during the two years immediately preced ing the filing of the application for the rezoning
action and th e date of each such contribution.


(b) The disclosures required by subsection (a) of this Code section shal l be filed within ten days after the
application for the rezo ning action is first fiied .


(c) When any opponent of a rezoning action has made, within two years immediately preceding the fiiing of
the rezoning action being opposed , campaign contributions aggregating $250 .00 or more to a ioca l
government officiai of the local government which will consider the appl ication, it shall be the duty of the
opponent to file a disclosure with the governing authority of the respective locai government showinq :


(1) The name and official position of the iocal government official to whom the campaign contribution was
made ; and


(2) The dollar amount and description of each campa ign contribution made by the opponent to the locai
government official during the two years immediately preceding the fi ling of the application for the rezoning
action and the date of each such contribution.


(d ) The disclosure requirec by subsection (c) of thi s Code section shall be filed at least five calendar days prior
to the first hearing by the loca l government or any of its agencies on the rezoning application.


HISTORY: Code 1981, § 36-67A-3, enacted by Ga. L. 1986, p. 1269, § 1; Ga. L. 1991, p. 1365, § 1; Ga. L.
1993, p. 91, § 36 .


9
REZONING APPLICATION, FAYETTE COUNTY, GA







CHECKLIST OF ITEMS RE QUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED FOR REZONING REQ UEST
(All applications/documentation must be complete at the time ofapplication subm ittal or the application will not be accepted)


1. Application form and all required attachments completed, signed, and notarized, as applicable.


2. Copy of latest recorded deed, includin g legal description of the boundaries of the su bject property to be
rezoned .


3 . Boundary Survey ( I copy if separate from Co ncep tua l Plan), drawn to scale, showing north arrow, land lot and
district, dim ensions, and street locat ion of the property, prepared (signed & sealed) by a land surveyor. The
Boundary Survey and Concept Plan may be combined.


4. Conceptual Plan (20 cop ies). The Conceptua l Plan is not required to be signed and sealed by a registered
surveyor, engineer or architect. Th e Conceptual Plan may be prepared on the boundary line survey, however it
is req uired to be draw n to scale, and include all applicable items below: k£:> f'e. tu; ..U;l


a. The total area of the subject property to be rezoned (to the nearest one-hundredth of an acre), the
existing zoning dist rict(s) ofthe subject prope rty, and the area within each zon ing district ifmore than
one district.


b. Approximate location an d size of proposed structures, use areas and improvements (parking spaces,
and aisles, drives, etc .) on the subject property for non-residential rezoning requests, includ ing
label ing the proposed use of each proposed structure/use area .


Genera l layout of a pro posed subdiv ision (residential or non-residential) including the delineation of
streets and lots. The items of b. above are not required in this instance but may be included ifknown .


Approximate location and size of ex ist ing structures and improvements on the parcel, if such are to
remain. Stru ctures to be removed must be indicated and labeled as such.


Mini mum zoning setbacks and b Wed , as applicable.


Loca tion of all existing and proposed ease ments and streets on or adjacent to the subjec t property,
ind icating type and wid th of existing and proposed easements and centerline of streets including width
of right-of-way .


Locati on and dimensio ns of exits/en trances to the subject property.


Approximate location and ele vation of the IDO-year flood plain and Watershed Protect ion Ordinance
requirements, as applicable.


Approx imate location of prop osed on-site stormwater facilit ies, including detention or retention
facilities.


NA 5. A letter of inten t for a non-res idential rezoning request, including the proposed use(s).


10
REZONING APPLICATION, FAYETTE COUNTY, GA





		Planning & Zoning - Rezoning 1232-13 - Agenda Request File

		Planning & Zoning - Rezoning 1232-13 - Backup

		1

		Planning & Zoning - Rezoning 1232-13 - Backup












MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


January 9, 2014
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on January 9, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice-Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Manager
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk
Dennis Davenport, Interim County Attorney


                                                                                                                                                                                         


Call to Order


The January 9, 2014 meeting was called to order by Attorney Dennis Davenport at approximately 7:07 p.m.


Commissioner Steve Brown’s Opening Comments:  Commissioner Steve Brown stated that sometimes families
fuss and feud.  He stated that every family has an “Aunt Mable and Cousin Bobby” who fight over the Thanksgiving
dinner table and the Board of Commissioners is no exception.  He stated that he wanted to let people know that they
have talked things out and that the issues are dead and gone.  He stated that he appreciates his colleagues that
they will work together, and that they will continue to do what is in the best interest of the citizens of Fayette County. 
He stated that things are healed, that the Board is back up to full speed, and that he looks forward to a very, very
productive 2014.



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent #16-A







Commissioner Charles Oddo’s Opening Comments:  Commissioner Charles Oddo stated that he had been out of
the country for five weeks and, as Chairman Brown stated, every family has its fights.  He stated that every family
has its spats and that he has two brothers and there were a few times where a few punches were thrown.  He stated
that very few connected, but they were thrown, but they always made up.  He stated that there is one thing that
everyone needs to know about this Board of Commissioners; every one of them has Fayette County in his heart.  He
stated that he has not seen anything from anyone that has anything other than the best interest of this County and
citizens at heart.  He stated that he includes himself in that group and that whatever he did during this time period
was done for the County not for himself.  He stated that he does not operate that way and that he cannot think that
way.  He stated that there was a spat and folks need to understand that. He stated there is pressure in elected
positions with people coming from all sides who seem to know everything about what they are doing, more than
what they are doing, even though they have all the information.  He asked everyone to bear with the Board as they
go through trials.  He stated that the Board of Commissioners had a year of really excellent cooperation.  He stated
that they will have these times and they may come again in the future but cut them some slack.  He stated that what
the Board is doing, they are doing for the County and not themselves.  He stated that he wanted everyone to know
he still has his thoughts and his beliefs like everyone else on the Board and everyone believes passionately about
what they believe and at least there are five people on the Board that do have beliefs.  He stated that he is glad to
be back.


Commissioner David Barlow’s Opening Comments:  Commissioner David Barlow stated that the people who
know him have heard him talk about how each morning he spends time in the Word.  He stated that when he makes
statements like, “God has spoken to me” it is because he has read a Scripture and it meant something to him.  He
stated that this morning as he was reading, the first Scripture that came up in his daily reading was: “Every Word of
God is pure.  He is a shield unto them that put their trust in Him.”  He stated that the second Scripture that came up
was, “For we wrestle not against flesh and blood, but against principalities, against powers, against the rulers of the
darkness of this world, against spiritual wickedness in high places.” and the last Scripture hit him between the eyes,
“Repay no one evil for evil, but give thought to do what is honorable in the sight of all.”  He stated that he said he
was going to apologize to this Board of Commissioners, and he is offering his sincere apology.  He stated that he is
apologizing to the citizens and the tax payers of Fayette County for any harm or any ill will that he has brought
against this Commission.


Chairman Brown and Commissioner Barlow shook hands on this matter.


Commissioner McCarty with humor stated that he knew these guys would make up, but just in case they didn’t, he
was going to appoint himself as Chairman.


ORGANIZATIONAL SESSION:


1. Election of Board Chairman for the year 2014.


Mr. Davenport stated that this is a unique meeting, being the first meeting of the year. He stated that this is the
organizational meeting for the Board of Commissioners and pursuant to Section 2-40 of the code; he has the distinct
honor and privilege of chairing this meeting for the limited purpose of getting a Chairman elected.  He stated with
that being the case, he would like to open the floor for nominations for Chair.


Commissioner Ognio stated that with all due respect to the other Commissioners, he would like to nominate Steve
Brown.  


Commissioner Barlow moved that the nominations for Chairman be closed.  Commissioner Oddo seconded. No
discussion followed.  The motion to close the nominations passed 4-1 with Commissioner Allen McCarty in
opposition.  







Action Agenda


January 9, 2013


Page Number 3


Commissioner Barlow moved that Steve Brown be elected as Chairman of the Fayette County Board of
Commissioners.  Commissioner Ognio seconded.  No discussion followed.  The motion that Steve Brown be elected
as Chairman of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners passed unanimously.


Chairman Brown stated that they would go ahead with item number two on the Agenda and then go back to the
Invocation, Pledge and Acceptance of the Agenda.


2. Election of the Board Vice-Chairman for the year 2014.


Chairman Brown asked for nominations.


Commissioner Barlow nominated Commissioner Charles Oddo as Vice-Chairman.


Commissioner Ognio moved that the nominations for Vice-Chairman be closed.  Commissioner Barlow seconded. 
No discussion followed.  The motion that the nominations for Vice-Chairman be closed passed unanimously.  


Commissioner Ognio moved that Commissioner Charles Oddo be elected as Vice-Chairman of the Fayette County
Board of Commissioners.  Commissioner Barlow seconded.  No discussion followed.  The motion that Commissioner
Charles Oddo be elected as Vice-Chairman of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners passed unanimously.


Invocation


Commissioner Barlow introduced Bishop Doug Waldorf from the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints.  He
thanked the Bishop for coming out and asked that he offer the invocation.


Bishop Waldorf offered the Invocation.


Pledge of Allegiance


Commissioner Ognio led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of the Agenda


Commissioner McCarty moved that Item Number 14 be removed from the agenda and that the rest of the agenda is
accepted as written.  Commissioner Ognio seconded.  No discussion followed.  The motions that Item Number 14 is
removed from the agenda and the rest of the agenda be accepted as written was passed unanimously.


3. Appointment of the Fayette County Attorney.


Commissioner Oddo moved that the Board of Commissioners appoints Mr. Dennis Davenport as the permanent
Fayette County attorney.  Commissioner Barlow seconded. The motion to appoint Mr. Dennis Davenport as the
permanent Fayette County attorney was passed unanimously.


Commissioner Oddo stated that Mr. Davenport has done a fabulous job on behalf of Fayette County and he needed
the title of interim taken away a long time ago.  He stated that he is very pleased to have this vote tonight.







Chairman Brown stated that the Board appreciates Mr. Davenport.  He stated that Mr. Davenport had to pick up a lot
of cases that were in progress and lot of things that were happening at the time that he started and he performed
admirably picking up all of that.


Commissioner Ognio stated that Mr. Davenport has done a good job.


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


4. Proclamation recognizing Fayette County couples celebrating their milestone Wedding
Anniversaries.


Chairman Brown read into the record a proclamation recognizing Jim and Jackie Rogers on their 50th wedding
anniversary and Marvin and Barbara Prellberg on their 60th wedding anniversary.  Neither couple was in attendance. 
Chairman Brown stated that this is something that is done as a celebration of matrimony/commitment that we like to
make as a County.  He stated that the proclamations are put into the record for all eternity the couples that are
celebrating these milestone anniversaries.  He informed the audience that Mr. And Mrs. Jim Rogers celebrated 50
years of marriage on December 21.  He stated that the couple met while living in Atlanta and riding public
transportation to work.  He read that Mr. Roger’s sister rode the same bus as Jackie and they got off at the same
bus stop.  He read that Jim picked his sister up from the bus stop daily and asked his sister to ask Jackie if could
come over and talk to her.  He read that six months later they were married.  He read that Jim had a career with the
U.S. Forest Service, so the couple lived in Washington, D.C. for 11 years, but then moved back to Georgia in
Peachtree City while he commuted to Atlanta daily for 10 years.  From their marriage, Jim and Jackie have a son
and daughter who both reside in Fayette County.  A copy of the Proclamation recognizing the Roger’s 50th Wedding
Anniversary, identified as “Attachment 1“, follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Chairman Brown also read into the record a proclamation recognizing Marvin and Barbara Prellberg on their 60th


wedding anniversary.  He stated that the Prellbergs met at church in Arlington Heights, Illinois and were married on
December 26, 1953, which was also Mr. Prellberg’ s 81st birthday!  The couple celebrates 60 years of marriage. 
They have four (4) children, Bonnie, Terri, Mark, and Jeffrey; eight (8) grandchildren and two (2) great-grandchildren. 
He read that Mrs. Prellberg shared that couples should work through their issues and try to stay together…don’t give
up so easily especially when you have children.  A copy of the Proclamation recognizing the Prellberg’ s 60th


wedding anniversary, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING: 


There were no Public Hearing items for consideration.


CONSENT AGENDA:


5. Approval of authorization to sign checks combining any of the following two signatures for
transactions at or above $5,000.00: Chairman, Vice-Chairman, County Administrator.


6. Approval of authorization to sign checks for transactions in the amount of $4,999.99 or less:
Chairman, Vice-Chairman, County Administrator.


7. Approval of the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, and the County Administrator to execute contracts,
resolutions, agreements, and other documents approved by and on behalf of the Board of Commissioners.


8. Approval of Resolution 2014-01 establishing qualifying fees for the 2014 Elections in Fayette
County.







Action Agenda


January 9, 2013


Page Number 5


9. Appointment of the 2014 Fayette County Legislative Coordinator.


10. Approval of staff’s request to assign funding sources in the amount of $530,298.00 for projects
approved in the Fiscal Year 2014 budget from the projects funds’ interest income, completed projects’
available funds, and the remaining project amount from project contingency.


11. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to enter into a contract to proceed with the
standard repair of a driveway at 341 Lee’s Lake Road and for additional costs to be paid by the resident
based upon his needs over and above what the normal repair cost would be.


12. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to allocate $50,000.00 from the Waterline
Extension budget for waterline extensions that will upgrade the proposed waterline for Camp Southern
Ground from a 10-inch to a 12-inch waterline, and approval to notify homeowners along a portion of
Ebenezer Church Road of an opportunity to tap into the waterline and to waive the $400.00 fee.


Chairman Brown read into record the items on the Consent Agenda.


Commissioner Ognio requested that Item Number 11 be removed from the Consent Agenda.


Chairman Brown asked if in the material for Item Number 9 there is someone designated as the Fayette County
Legislative Coordinator.


Mr. Rapson stated that it is himself.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the Consent Agenda as proposed with the exception of Item Number 11. 
Commissioner Barlow seconded.  No discussion followed.  The motion to was passed unanimously.


Commissioner Ognio stated that he needs the help of Dennis and other staff to explain Item Number 11. 


Matt Bergen, Water System, stated that this is a situation where a contractor has installed a waterline and over the
years, this was done in 2005, it is suspected that there are unsuitable materials that were left in the waterline and
compaction was not proper and now there is settling and damage to the driveway.  He stated that in speaking with
the home owner they want to do some improvements to the driveway for safety reasons because of the curve that it
is in.  He stated that we are looking to enter into an agreement to compensate the homeowner for what would have
normally been spent to do the replacement and then have them do the additional work and pay his contractor to
finish it.


Mr. Davenport stated that the reason we are entertaining this is because the waterline problem is in our right-of-way. 
He stated that it is the County’s waterline even though it was put in by a contractor in 2005, it is on the County’s
property.  He stated that settling has occurred in such a way that it has caused cracking in the driveway.  He stated
that the reason for some contribution from the homeowner is because he wants more than just the driveway put
back, he wants to make it wider because there is a significant drop off on either side of the driveway and the wider
driveway makes it easier to negotiate coming in and out of the road.  He stated that once it is made wider the culvert
underneath is going to be six feet longer, so he would have to contribute that extra cost for the extra length of the







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 6


culvert.  He stated that the homeowner wants some other than normal finish work done to the concrete.  He stated
that the homeowner wants a little more complex work done, such as pavers, which the County does not do, so we
are looking at costing out what we would normally do for our project and having the homeowner absorb the cost of
any additional work and enter into an agreement so everybody is protected as far as, the County’s rights, the
homeowner’s rights and the job getting done.


Commissioner Ognio asked if the homeowner would ultimately contract someone else to those finishes.  He stated
that the County would just pay him what our normal finish would be.


Mr. Davenport stated that we do the heavy work, but we would not pave the portion of the apron of the driveway.  He
stated that the homeowner would finish that with his contractor.  


Chairman Brown asked if the County is liable for any work after that on the driveway.


Mr. Davenport stated that the agreement would include language to that effect.


Commissioner Barlow stated some type indemnity.


Mr. Davenport stated yes.


Chairman Brown asked Commissioner Ognio if this answered his question to his satisfaction.


Commissioner Ognio stated yes.  He stated that he knows a little more and the County can push to see if some
things can be resolved through the contractor that may not cost the County.  He stated that we need to move
forward with what we have now.


Mr. Bergen stated that he did an estimate and the County’s portion would be around $3,000. 


Chairman Brown asked for a motion.


Commissioner Oddo moved to accept Item Number 11, the approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to
enter into a contract to proceed with the standard repair of a driveway at 341 Lee’s Lake Road and for additional
costs to be paid by the resident based upon his needs over and above what the normal repair cost would be and an
indemnity would be provided to the County for the additional work.  Commissioner Barlow seconded.  No discussion
followed.  The motion was passed unanimously.


OLD BUSINESS: 


There were no Old Business Items for consideration.


NEW BUSINESS:


13. Consideration of a request from the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) for a possible
roundabout at the intersection of Antioch Road and State Route 92 and approval for the Chairman to
sign a letter of support.







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 7


Phil Mallon, Fayette County Director of Public Works stated that it is pleasure to talk about an opportunity from the
Georgia DOT (Department of Transportation) that involves the possible design and construction of a roundabout at
the intersection of Antioch Road, Lockwood Road and State Route (SR) 92.  He stated that he has a presentation
divided into three parts.  He stated that the first two slides give a brief introduction of the project and then a few
slides talking about roundabouts in general; where they are nationwide and within the state and then he comes back
to more details of the project.  He stated that what he is asking from the Board is a decision on whether or not to
respond to a request for a letter of support for this project.  


Mr. Mallon gave a PowerPoint presentation entitled, Consideration of GDOT - Funded Roundabout at State Route


92, Antioch and Lockwood Roads”. He stated that the offer is from DOT and that it is unique offer in that they are
willing to do the design, permitting, right-of-way acquisition and construction at zero cost to the County.  He stated
that the County does assume some liable in that if it is built the County would pick up future power cost and
landscaping associated with the roundabout.  He stated that there is no local match and that is what makes this a bit
unique.  He stated that today we are at the idea of does the County want to advance this project for further
consideration.  He stated that if the Board votes in favor of the roundabout, it does not guarantee that the project
would get built or at what schedule it would be implemented.  He stated that money would still have to be made
available from DOT.  


Mr. Mallon stated that this project has been an idea for at least eight years, possibly before that.  He stated that it
was identified in the original list of projects in the 2004 Transportation SPLOST, however it was one of the projects in
the County pot of money; the 320 pot and there is not enough money in that group of funds to pay for project so it
was never advanced.  He stated that it is also identified in the County’s 2010 Transportation Plan as a tier one which
is the highest priority; more immediate need type projects.  He stated that there was a traffic study done in 2008 by
DOT and the conclusion was not overwhelming.  He stated that he did not want to mislead the Board.  He stated that
DOT identified some safety issues and that he received from the Sheriff’s department this week some updated crash
data to send to DOT, but the safety concerns or not overwhelming.  He stated that it is not one where a traffic
engineer or DOT will look at it and say they absolutely have to do something immediate.  He stated that it is a safety
concern and if familiar with the skew angle of Antioch and SR 92, most would agree it is not a comfortable
intersection to negotiate.  


Mr. Mallon stated that the other thing about this intersection that makes a roundabout, in his eyes, worth
consideration is the configuration of the existing roads as well as the very large church, Harp Crossing, and a
financial building that have done a great job with their landscaping and is a nice asset to the community.  He stated
that if a traditional traffic signal was used the impact to those properties could be significant.  He stated that this was
looked at back in the 2008 study and he met with some of the property owners and the traffic signals are not a good
option under a traditional perpendicular intersection.  


Mr. Mallon stated that was a little background to the project and that some history of roundabouts is that they are
present in all 50 states, more than 2,000 have been built in the past 18 years within the southeast; Georgia, Florida,
Virginia and North Carolina have been more aggressive in pushing them.  He stated that within the state of Georgia
there is over 330 roundabouts.  He stated that this probably a low number because he obtained that number from a
two year old slide.  He stated that roundabouts are used as of today, within the state from the full range of the street
within the subdivisions, sometimes more for esthetic reasons they are used on local roads, state routes and starting
to be used at some of the interchanges along the interstate system.  He stated that there are a number of benefits
that are typically associated with roundabouts.  He stated that for this particular location he does not know if all six of
the points are true, but roundabouts in general are looked at because they are without doubt safer than traffic signals







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 8


and safer than four way stops depending on what study you look at.  He stated that roundabouts are more efficient
than a four-way stop and one of the advantages, because the roads can be brought in at a wider range of angles. 
He stated that they are good when there are difficult geometry issues like there are at this location.  He stated that
whether or not roundabouts reduce the project impact, by that he means the project footprint, depends on what are
the existing conditions.  He stated that in some cases it is less and in other cases the traditional traffic signal may
have less of a print and the overall cost, for the same reason, may be cheaper and sometimes it may not be
cheaper.


Mr. Mallon stated that a roundabout well designed and well maintained is an enhancement to the road in many
cases.  He stated that the one Fayetteville completed at Redwine and Grady is an example.  He stated that it can
serve as a gateway into the community and personally that is how he would view this one in the south side of
Fayetteville as an entrance from the rural character of south Fayette County into the downtown area.  He stated that
the safety data, in his eyes, is overwhelming.  He stated there are two studies with different sources and the point is
that roundabouts reduce the number of crashes or accidents, but more importantly when there is an accident it has
much less injury and the fatality drop.  He stated the reason is because the speed has to be slow.  He stated there is
not the option of someone running a red light at 60 miles per hour (mph).  


He stated that Georgia DOT is slowly embracing roundabouts.  He stated that in 2004 they had a policy or memo
that said they were neutral on roundabouts and they would consider a single lane only, in 2008 they switched to
being encouraging of roundabouts, in 2009 they started mandating consideration of roundabouts in lieu of traffic
signals and in 2010 they expanded their design considerations to account for things like lighting, approach angles,
landscaping and signs.  He stated that the only purpose of slide eight is to illustrate that the process for selecting a
roundabout is not a random act.  He stated that it is like other intersections, well documented and defined in GDOT’s
design manuals.  He stated that there are a series of questions to ask like “Is it appropriate?” and then research
studies and answer yes or no to proceed.  He stated that the County is at the stage that says, “ Are the locals
supportive of the project and if so will they will they assume the power and landscaping responsibilities?”  He stated
that this is not a definitive point, meaning if the Board says yes that the project will happen.  He stated that this is just
one of many steps along the way.  He stated that where this project puts us, if the Board votes in favor of this, is that
it furthers advances this particular project a little more in the competition of other roundabouts in the state.  He stated
that District Three and DOT are looking for intersections to do these safety improvements through roundabouts in
particular and they identified this as the number one location within incorporated Fayette County.  


Mr. Mallon stated that the specific benefits are an offset between where Antioch and Lockwood come into SR92
because it is so close sometimes drivers are looking at the other person wondering if they are going to go or if they
can get out in front of the other driver.  He stated that this would eliminate that and get rid of the odd skew angle that
makes looking south difficult.  He stated that he thinks it offers the minimum amount of impact to the existing
buildings and properties and clearly safety improvements.  He stated that depending on how  much effort the County
wanted to put into the landscaping, it is an opportunity to create a signature landscape piece.  He stated that it would
slow the traffic on SR92 and whether or not that is viewed as an advantage or disadvantage is subjective.  


He stated that on the vicinity map the yellow box indicates where we are in the County, just south of Fayetteville.  He
stated that the red dot shows where it is in relation to Lockwood and Antioch as well as the Seay Road intersection. 
He stated that the church and its parking lot is in the center of slide 11 and the two red arrows indicate where
Antioch Road and Lockwood come in and just south is the small building is the financial building.  He stated that on
the right-hand side of the slide he indicates the typical number of vehicles per day on the road.  He stated that
Antioch has around 3,400 vehicles per day and on SR92, north of Seay Road, closer to the Harp Road intersection,







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 9


there are over 16,000 vehicles per day and on SR92, south of Antioch is around 7,500 vehicles per day.  


Mr. Mallon continued with the presentation and added that slide 12 is not a DOT design and that it is staff design. 
He stated that the staff intentionally did not draw Antioch and Lockwood coming into it as not to make any
assumptions on how that would look.  He stated that he thinks the roundabout is to a very reasonable scale and the
outer ring, which is the white circle labeled at 115 foot radius, is a good estimate of where the final design would be. 
He stated that the lime green shaded area in the center represents landscape area and the hatched area represents
the truck apron that is designed for large tractor trailers and anything with a long wheel base.  He stated that
between the asphalt and the outer circle would be green space. 


He stated that was the end of his presentation and that he would take any questions and ultimately get the Board’s
feedback on how he should respond to DOT.


Chairman Brown asked if there were any questions.


Commissioner Oddo stated that he wants to be sure that if the Board votes to approve this tonight, is the Board
voting to approve consideration of the roundabout or are they voting to approve the roundabout should DOT
(Department of Transportation) want to build it; exactly what is the Board voting for specifically.


Mr. Mallon stated that the Board is voting that they are supportive of DOT moving forward to complete a feasibility
study and potentially move forward on design. 


Commissioner Oddo stated this is not an approval from the Board of actually doing a roundabout until there is more
information.  


Mr. Mallon stated that yes, it is very reasonable for the County to reply back that if the Board takes that approach,
they are in agreement with the general concept but that would like to see a more detailed study of what the impacts
would be before the Board would be one hundred percent supportive.


Commissioner Barlow stated that he spoke with Alfred Dingler that owns the Prime Financial and he asks that the
Board keeps him in the communication loop.  He stated that his question is does the County notify Harp Crossing
Baptist Church or any of the other people around there that if the vote is approved that there will potentially be a
feasibility study which doesn’t mean that it will be built, but it means that is going to be gathering of information
where the data can be put forward to make a decision to go forward.


Mr. Mallon stated that they have unofficially talked to the church and depending on the vote he will send a letter,
probably with a copy of the presentation, to the four big property owners; the church, the financial building and the
two residential properties to sit down with them and let them know what is going on.


Commissioner Barlow stated that he would like to publicly thank Mr. Mallon for the best presentation he has
presented.


Mr. Mallon accepted.


Commissioner Ognio stated that he did have any questions, but he does have a lot of comments on this project.  He
stated that he has looked at the project and it is going to majorly impact the traffic on SR92 and it is going to make







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 10


every vehicle slow down. He stated that the speed limit there is 55mph and traffic on SR92 is a lot and we will be
slowing the vehicles way down, especially trucks and trailers.  He stated that he thinks that will become a major
problem.  He stated that there is another road that comes in just north of that, Seay Road, that if traffic starts to back
up is going to majorly impact that road.  He stated that he has a problem with wanting them to move forward with the
design and waste the money if it is something that is going to cause more problems than it solves.  He stated that he
wonders in the future planning what roads the County will build in future traffic; if there will be an East Fayette
Bypass would that alleviate the problem at this intersection all together.  He asked if the County want to spend
money on an intersection that if we do something else that money is wasted.  He stated that the County needs to
look closely at the planning on these things.  He stated that like Mr. Mallon said, the last study did not show it as a
major safety issue at that intersection.  He stated that the money received from DOT the County needs to use wisely
and we need to make sure it can be put into a plan.  He stated that the roundabout can also be an eyesore.  He
stated that the rural county character, will there be roundabouts everywhere.  He stated that roundabouts are not the
cure all for every intersection.  He stated that if the County wants something there then maybe a red light would be
more appropriate and we wouldn’t stop the traffic on SR 92 except when cars are entering from Antioch or the other
road.  He stated that these are all considerations and he is not at the point where he is willing to move forward.  He
stated that he is worried that DOT will look at this and say further down the road that the County approved doing the
study then we need to move forward and this is not something we want.


Commissioner McCarty stated that to begin, he has always been against roundabouts, one not to far from his house. 
He stated that it makes it difficult coming from Mallard Creek Lane which he use as a driveway because the
roundabout is right there.  He stated that he has come out not able to see or not knowing what they are going to do
in the roundabout.  He stated that recently he took a ride from Heathrow Airport to Dover in England and he went
through about five roundabouts on a high speed road and of course they did have to slow down on the roundabouts
and fortunately it was the time of day when it wasn’t crowded.  He stated that if there had been a lot of traffic it would
have been, to him, a confusing mess.  He stated that this is a complicated intersection at this location, the way the
street angles come in and the location of them.  He stated that this is something that the County does not need to do
right now.  He stated that the County needs to wait and see what they will do with other roads and then react
accordantly.


Chairman Brown asked if anyone from the audience would like to comment.


Mr. Dennis Chase stated that in the twenty-eight years that he has been in this County he has had three near death
experiences all at this intersection.  He stated that something has to be done because people coming out of Antioch
Road are literally taking their lives and other’s lives in their hands.  He stated that he would like to add that if there is
anyway this consideration could join Harp Road so there is one place where these two roads can come out because
Harp Road is just about as bad and is just down a little further north of this intersection.  He stated that the Board will
need to do something because if there hasn’t been a death there yet it is going to happen very soon and he hopes it
is not part of his family.


Mr. Bob Ross stated that his experience has been a little different from the two Commissioners.  He stated that one
in terms of the rural character.  He stated that he drives through Whitesburg, Georgia on the way to Alabama about
once every six weeks and you cannot find a more rural community in Whitesburg; they probably have a population of
about 50, and they have a very small roundabout and while you do slow down you are always moving.  He stated
there is not a stop light that is stopping people when there is not traffic coming from one of the other directions and
the safety aspect caught is attention from Mr. Mallon’s presentation.  He stated that he does not know what the
accident record has been, but it would be useful to look at it.  He stated that he and Mr. McCarty are the international







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 11


travels because in October he was in Rome and there was a large roundabout in front of the monument to King
Emmanuel II and there is about six or eight lanes of buses, trucks, lorries, pedestrians, motor scooters and ladies on
vespa.  He stated that although it does not go at the same speed as a major highway, to move that many people
from that many roads coming in and getting them to determine where they are going out without anybody having to
stop was notable and caught his attention.  He stated that he would ask the County staff to look at the accident rate
and if we save a couple of lives or one life in our community that is worth a lot of slowing down.  He stated that in
terms of going up and down SR92, he does not travel it a lot so he would have to refer to Commissioner Ognio’s
experience on that, but that when he has gone through those he has appreciated that he has only had to slow down
instead of come to a stop so often.


Mr. Paul Ploener stated that he lives on Melody Lane which also comes out just a few tenths of a mile north of the
Antioch and Lockwood intersection, so he is very concerned since he goes there three to four a day.  He stated that
he is obviously concerned about the safety, not only of Antioch Road but also Harp Road.  He stated that he does
not have an opinion one way or another about this project, but he is very concerned about the area.  He stated that it
does need to be addressed and how it will impact the safety in that area so he would think instead of maybe
supporting this project that it should be tabled for further study and bring it up at another meeting so that more of the
public can be informed about what is going on and what the impact would be.


 Mr. Alfred Dingler of Prime Financial stated that he is one of the property owners referenced.  He stated that on
behalf of his company they absolutely support continuing the study.  He stated that the way it was shown in the
presentation it seems acceptable to them.  He stated that they know because the company has been there a decade
and cars do not travel 55 mph on that road and they absolutely support slowing down and would recommend that
the Board please continue the study and they would like to add that if the Board does go forward that Prime
Financial volunteers to landscape the inside of the roundabout. 


Chairman Brown asked if anyone else from the audience would like to speak.


There were no other public responses.


Commissioner Ognio stated that he would like to address some of Bob Ross’ concerns.  He stated that one of the
safety concerns is that roundabouts slow speeds and that is where the safety comes in mainly with the roundabouts. 
He stated that there are things that can be done.  He stated that we could slow the speed limit down on SR92 to 45
mph instead of 55 mph and make it a safer intersection, but it would still allow SR92 traffic to flow a lot faster and
better than if we put in roundabout there.  He stated that another concern is if when we hit, the four lane SR92, what
impact will that have on the church and the finance company.  He stated that when that roundabout grows to a four
lane that will be a big footprint.  He stated that all these are issues and he thinks that we should table this and do
more study on this before voting.


Commissioner Barlow asked that presentation slide eight be displayed on the screen.  He stated that what he
understands are the words, “feasibility study” and then the words “public outreach” indicates to him that we will
approve the study of putting the roundabout there and then it has to go through the process of being approved to
include public hearing before anything is done.  He asked if that was correct. 


Mr. Mallon stated that he is correct.  He referred to the slide and stated that the triangle that says does the County
support picking up the lighting and landscaping.  He stated that when he spoke to DOT they admitted that they
jumped the gun and they offered that to us before they completed their feasibility study.  He stated that if the Board







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 12


moves forward they will do the feasibility study.  He stated that the staff person he talked to said they were trying to
get this project as competitive as it can be so if we can get this step out of the way it might move it in front of some
of the others.  He stated that everything with the DOT money is competitive.  He stated that you are competing
against your own projects as well as everyone in the region.  He stated that one point that he wants to make is that
he has candid discussions with DOT about this and he told them if he does not know if we have universal support. 
He stated that he does not think there is the option of taking the money and using it somewhere else.  He stated that
they are making one offer to us to build a roundabout if we determine it is appropriate.  He stated that if we want to
do a traffic signal the staff said very plainly that the County can pursue that as a County project with County dollars if
we can get a traffic signal permit.  He stated that based on the study in 2008 it is unlikely that the County would get a
traffic signal permit.  He stated that it is similar to Harp Road where we waited for years for the signal to be permitted
and finally got it.  He stated that this is not of a pick our choice, it is an option of are you interested in it and if the
answer is no we will be at square one with no permit and no money.


Commissioner Barlow inquired about the text in one of the boxes.  He asked what did the box say because it is
connected to the one that Mr. Mallon said they were referring to.  


Mr. Mallon stated that he thinks the question there is does the roundabout address a significant geometry problem
and in this case the answer is yes.


Commissioner Barlow stated that his other comment he has is that Mr. Mallon made the reference to this is GDOT
making an offer to Fayette County and so if Fayette County does not accept the offer then at some point we may
have to go back to them and he looks at this as an opportunity like we would pass over and he does not know how
they think but it would be like DOT saying Fayette County does not want our help.  He stated that in his opinion we
need to go through the first phase of doing the feasibility study to show that we are cooperating.  


Commissioner Oddo stated that he generally agrees with Commissioner Ognio’s concerns and he also agrees that
he does not want to forgo an opportunity that we may have.  He stated that his personal feeling is that once we start
slowing traffic down it seems to get slower and slower and slower.  He stated that he thinks we need to be
considering ways of moving traffic without slowing it less than it is.  He stated that he does not want to lose an
opportunity to study the feasibility, but he wants to be careful that we don’t approach these things as if we have to
slow traffic down. He stated that these are some things that are going through his mind and he wants to be sure that
the Board is not voting to approve it and that he thinks it does warrant some study to see how it could or if it could
benefit the County.  


Mr. Mallon stated that to go back to Commissioner Oddo’s first question of what are we agreeing to.  He stated that
the letter that DOT is asking for says that we are supportive of roundabout and if constructed we will pay for the
power and landscaping.  He stated that we are sending a message that if a roundabout is justified after it goes
through all the technical analysis, then we are supportive of it.  He stated that he does not want to send a letter to
DOT and have them call back and say we are good to go and then we come back with a no.


Commissioner Oddo asked what technical analysis includes.


Mr. Mallon stated that it will update the traffic study and verify that there is a need for the roundabout in terms of the
number of accidents and the volumes are appropriate for a roundabout.


Commissioner Ognio stated that we would fall into their justification of a roundabout and not necessarily what the







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 13


County thinks.


Commissioner Oddo asked if they would compare it to a traffic light or a four-way stop if they were installed; would
there be some type of comparison of one over another.


Mr. Mallon asked if he meant in terms of the deficiencies or delays.


Commissioner Oddo stated deficiencies.  He stated that we are getting information on the roundabout which is good
but to Commissioner Ognio’s point, is it any better than any other way and how are we benefitting by having a
roundabout as oppose to some other way.  He stated that he does not want to slow people down necessarily.  He
stated that sometimes you can’t do one without the other but he would like to try.


Mr. Mallon stated that it is his experience that where there is significant congestion is where there is intersection
after intersection, after intersection with traffic signals.  He stated that the advantage of the roundabout is that
somebody said that it does keep traffic moving and if there is low volumes which is the case in 20 out of the 24
hours, you can go through that pretty quickly.  He stated that they design the roundabouts to maintain a speed of 25
to 35 mph.  He stated that it how much that is a delay is subjective.  He stated that personally he does not think that
there is a risk of creating a traffic jam in that roundabout.  He stated that the next controlled intersection is Hilo Road.


Commissioner Ognio stated that during traffic hours it is heavily traveled.  He stated that he was there and there was
a steady line of cars in front of him, behind him and a steady line of cars headed in the opposite direction on SR92. 
He stated that all the cars were traveling at 55 mph and when they are slowed down to 20 mph or 25 mph traffic is
going to back up and it will back up pass Seay Road or Harp Road.  He stated that it will cause more of a problem
for the people that live on Seay and Harp Road than it is now.  He stated that the answer to this intersection may
need to be more than just Antioch and the road across the street.  He stated that it has to include Seay Road.  He
stated that the County needs to look at these things and have a meeting and talk about what can be done and what
is the future planning for the traffic and not just throw money at the project.  He stated that DOT money is precious to
the County and we want to make the most of the money that is given.  He stated that just because they offer to give
the County something; we should not just jump on it when it may actually harm the County.


Mr. Mallon stated that it is reasonable to ask for that the study would address those types of impacts such as what is
the queuing north of SR92 and how does that impact Seay Road and Harp Road.  He stated that he does not think it
is unreasonable to even ask that this project be expanded to include that intersection.  He stated that he hesitated to
Commissioner Ognio’s earlier point because he does not know if the County can get a comparison study against the
traffic signal.  He stated that he does not want to make a promise that he will come back with a study comparing the
signal versus the roundabout unless the County were to pay for funding.


Commissioner Oddo stated that he would not want to lose an opportunity but he would like to be sure that if there is
a feasibility study and address some of the other concerns, he does not want to be in a position of the County has to
do this now while there are unanswered questions relating to traffic.  He stated that he would want to be sure that if
the County does agree to the feasibility study that we would be able to come back and say if it does not fit our
needs.  


Mr. Mallon stated that what DOT needs is similarly to the Board.  He stated that DOT wants to keep traffic moving
and do it in a safe manner.  He stated that DOT has those same type of performance measures established that
they have to convince themselves will work.  







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 14


Commissioner Ognio stated that he has a problem with DOT in general.  He stated that their justifications for
roundabouts is that it is a smaller footprint.  He stated that there is no way it is a smaller footprint than a signal in
most cases.  He stated that there are a lot of things in their justification that is not right.


Mr. Mallon stated that he has to respectfully disagree.  He stated that it is not DOT saying those things, but it is a
national study.  He stated that there has to be hundreds of feet of through lanes, left turn lanes and right turn lanes in
each of the four directions of an intersection.  He stated that when added up the square feet associated with that
often does exceed what is needed for roundabouts.  


Commissioner Ognio stated that is true if there are turning lanes installed but if we just put in a signal it does not.  He
stated that he is concerned about what will happen.  He stated that there are almost 17,000 cars going up and down
SR92 and that is a lot of vehicles to go through a roundabout.  He stated that when trucks go through that
roundabout, 20 mph will not be the speed, it will be 10 or 15 mph with a loaded truck; they cannot make that turn.


Mr. Mallon stated that single lane roundabouts are good for up to about 25,000 vehicles per day on the major
thoroughfare.  He stated that if the County is at 17,000 north and about 7,500 south there is quite a bit of room for
growth before it would reach its limit.


Commissioner Ognio stated didn’t  we say we had 16,000 or 17,000 going north and 7,000 or 8,000 going south.


Mr. Mallon stated yes, there are 17,000 north of the intersection and south of the intersection is 7,400.


County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that one of the things that the County will be able to do in the next 60
days is take a look at the remaining SPLOST funds and evaluate those transportation projects and making some
recommendations to the Board in regards to how those funds should be allocated as a comprehensive transportation
plan.  He stated that one of the things that Commissioner Ognio is speaking of can be incorporated in this project in
that equation.  He stated that the County may not be able to use SPLOST funds but can use local dollars if that is
what the County tries to do.  He stated that this is simply GDOT requesting the County’s approval for conceptual to
move forward.  He stated that feasibility studies and the other things that are concerning are not warranted and at
the end of the day the Board of Commissioners can say they do not want to do the roundabout and keep the money.


Commissioner Ognio stated that is not the way Mr. Mallon is saying it is worded.  He stated that the Board does not
get that option.


Mr. Rapson stated that this is just a conceptual approval.


Chairman Brown stated that Mr. Mallon being the poor staff member does not want to commit to something that
another agency is going to handle.  He stated that he can appreciate that and he would not make any guarantees on
DOT’s behalf either because there is no way to know what they will do.  He stated that sometimes DOT likes to look
at cost versus the maximum capacity they can get and we are seeing that with the debate on I85 and Highway 74. 
He stated that they want to do what is called a diversion diamond which is a smaller, compact, tighter mechanism
that is used.  He stated that it cost a lot less and that is the main reason DOT want to do it and we are fighting for
something that is a little larger which is a partial clover that will be a longer lasting project in the long wrong.  He
stated that the roundabout at Grady Avenue works extremely well.  He stated that he remembers when they first got
it installed.  He stated that when the schools let out you would never go on Grady Avenue.  He stated that he
remembers accidentally turning down there at three o’clock and the whole thing had been completely flushed out;







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 15


the roundabout had worked beautifully.  He stated that there are some benefits for roundabouts in the appropriate
scenarios.  He stated that when there is a major arterial like the one at SR92 we can say with great surety that if
people are allowed to go fast on they will.  He stated that the only thing that will stop them is a deputy with a radar
gun.  He stated that we know that the volume of traffic will pick up on SR92 evidentially plus there are the distributor
roads that are plugging in and the odd geometry.  He stated that when the geometry is in an odd way there will be a
higher rate of accidents and will have more trouble with people, as the volume picks up, getting on and off the
distributor roads with the odd geometry.  He stated that he sees where DOT is going with this.  He stated that it does
not cost the County a dime to do this and it is DOT’s project on a State Route so DOT owns it and the County does
not have to do anything except landscaping.  He stated that if the County went past feasibility and into construction,
if the Board found out that this project was a total wash and absolute failure, then the County has not lost a dollar of
the taxpayers’ money.  He stated that the Board could go back to DOT and say this is not working and we need to
do something else.  He stated that he can say that as someone who goes to DOT and begs for money that we need
to be careful at looking at this and not doing the feasibility study part.  He stated that one day a future Board may say
we are dying at SR9 and Antioch and something needs to be done.  He stated that DOT will go back and say that
the County turned down the study.  He stated that he would be willing to say to pursue this.  He stated that there is
talk of slowing the traffic down but he thinks the problem is really stopping the traffic.  He stated that in Peachtree
City, westbound from Fayetteville, from 4:30 p.m. to 6:30 p.m. the problem is traffic is stopping.  He stated that it
backs up from Highway 74 to the Wyndham Conference Center and traffic is not going anywhere.  He stated that is
the traffic light dilemma in that intersection.  He stated that he does not think a roundabout can be done at that
intersection because there is too much traffic and it probably would not be effective.  He stated that he thinks that if
the traffic was moving steadily from the effect of a roundabout, people would be grateful that it is being done.  He
stated that the Board can draft a letter and say the Board would like to do the feasibility study and would like for DOT
to come back to the Board at the end of the feasibility study so that the County can discuss it with them further and
get public outreach, talk to the adjacent property owners and make it clear in the letter.


Mr. Mallon stated that with a lot of confidence he will say roundabouts are controversial and if the Board moves
forward and as the study progresses data comes back where the Board is not comfortable with what the results will
be, he feels certain that if a letter was written to DOT that says the County changed its mind and we are not for it, it
would stop the project.  He stated that DOT is not going to implement a project that does not have local support. 


Chairman Brown stated that the Board would draft a letter with intent and that will help and save Mr. Mallon from
making promises or give DOT the feeling that he is making a promise.  


Commissioner Ognio stated that he still worries that DOT will want to move forward with the project and the other
issue is that roundabouts work in certain places but they are not the fix all for every intersection and DOT is looking
with the mandates like they are the fix all for every intersection.  He stated that Mr. Ross mentioned Whitesburg but
they do not have the traffic that Fayette has on SR92.  He stated that this is the issue he worries about and he does
not want to get in the position where DOT says yes it warrants a roundabout and they will start and the Board does
not have any option.  He stated that if there are any doubts that the Board will have an option then there is no way
he can move forward with this.


Commissioner McCarty stated that in Daytona during Bike Week he came to a roundabout but it was a painted on
roundabout so that if they decided that they did not like the roundabout it would be easy to fix.


Chairman Brown stated that he sent Mr. Mallon a link to a video on the internet where New York City was going to
experiment with bike lanes and they literally used stick on material to the asphalt to test it out to see if it would work







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 16


and then the ones that worked they built them and the others they disposed.


Commissioner Barlow stated that he had not heard Mr. Mallon say that he recommended this as the County
Engineer.


Mr. Mallon stated that he does.


Chairman Brown moved that the Board of Commissioners approve the request from the Department of
Transportation for a possible roundabout at the intersection of Antioch Road and State Route 92 to include
correspondence from the County stating its interest in seeing the results of the feasibility study and discussing it with
DOT at the end of the study and allowing for public comment and stakeholder property owner comments before
anything would be continued and that the Chairman is allowed to sign the letter of support for this project. 
Commissioner Barlow seconded.  No discussion followed.  The motion was approved 4-1 with Commissioner Ognio
in opposition.


14. Consideration of Commissioner Allen McCarty’s request to redefine the word “kennel” in the
Fayette County Code of Ordinances to match the State of Georgia’s definition of the word.


This item was removed from the agenda during the Acceptance of the Agenda.


15. Consideration of the December 12, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.  Commissioner
Oddo was not present for this meeting.


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the December 12, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes. 
Commissioner McCarty seconded.  No discussion followed.  The motion was passed unanimously.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Mrs. Alice Jones, 110 Lawson Lane, Fayetteville, GA spoke regarding stormwater issues in her subdivision and
regarding the lighting at north corridors of Fayetteville, coming from the pavilion going Hwy 279 and Hwy 314 which
is very bad.


Mr. Randy Huff, 289 Spear Road, Peachtree City, GA spoke in favor of reimbursing Marilyn Watts for legal fees in
connection with her defense of a petition of removal filed by Scott Fabricius in his capacity as Chairman of the
Fayette County Republican Party.


Mr. Ozzie Sanchez, 500 Avalon Drive, Fayetteville, GA spoke regarding his stormwater issues being corrected this
year.


Mr. Dennis Chase, 290 Crabapple Road, Fayetteville, GA spoke regarding Hwy 92 roundabout and the East
Fayetteville Bypass.


Mr. Roy Bishop, 487 Westbridge Road, Fayetteville, GA spoke regarding whether or not there was a sun down rule
for sanitation workers.







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 17


Mr. Scott Bennett, 2002 Commerce Drive North, Peachtree City, GA spoke regarding information he discovered
while going through the reinstatement process with Mr. Russell Prince. 


Mr. Bob Ross, 202 Bridgepoint Road, Peachtree City, GA spoke regarding tax payers funds to pay Ms. Marilyn
Watts’ legal defense.


Ms. Marilyn Watts, 201 Patricia Lane, spoke regarding her name being brought up at the Board of Commissioners
meetings.  


Chairman Brown asked if there was anyone else who would like to speak.  


There were no other comments.


Chairman Brown closed the floor for public comments.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Mr. Steve Rapson stated that a resignation from Brian Cardoza of the Water Committee and a selection committee
needs to be appointed.  Commissioner Barlow and Chairman Brown were appointed.


He stated that the Board of Commissioners has some Association County Commission Government (ACCG) training
dates coming up and there was some discussion at the Board level to move those dates.  He stated that the
recommendation is to move Friday, March 13th to March 11th and to move Thursday, October 9th to Tuesday,
October 7th.  He stated that if the Board pleases we would modify the calendar and post notices accordantly.


Chairman Brown stated that the Board would get back with him.


Mr. Rapson stated that he has a Municipal Code update.  He stated that the County received an 800-page draft of
the 75 additional ordinances that have been codified since March 2007 to today.  He stated that Mr. Davenport is in
the process of reviewing those and he wants to give a shout out to Sheila Studdard, who is the Court Clerk and who
paid for that codification.  


He stated that there were a lot of comments made by Mr. Bennett and he could address a lot of those but the
statement he would like to make is that after reviewing all the relevant statements including the comments in his
email that he sent which are basically the six page documents that the Board received, he did find cause to treat the
offensive as a second group offensive under our disciplinary policy and Mr. Russell Prince had a two-day
suspension without pay.  He stated that this was his final ruling and that ruling is not appealable to any internal
disciplinary process we have.  He stated that it is the final decision of the County.  He stated that he expressed to
Mr. Bennett that his client was welcome to come to work on Monday, January 6 and Russell showed up Monday and
to all indications everything is fine in the IS department and the County considers these matters closed and look
forward to a positive relationship with Mr. Prince moving forward.







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 18


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Attorney Dennis Davenport stated that he has a follow up to an issue that was first brought to the Board of
Commissioners at the November meeting.  He stated that he brought a request from a member of the Board of
Elections as an appointed official requesting legal representation.  


Chairman Brown stated that he will recuse himself as he has done before and he will leave this to the Vice Chair.


Mr. Davenport continued that the request was made for legal representation or a defense because of her status as
an appointed official.  He stated that the Board instructed him to contact the insurance company to provide an
opinion as to whether or not coverage should be allowed.  He stated that when looking at these types of issues there
are two questions to ask.  He stated that one question is if the person is an insured under the policy and number two
is this the type of an event that is covered under the policy.  He stated that obviously if this person is not an insured
then number two does not matter.  He stated that you start by asking if this person is insured. 


He stated that a letter was received from the insurance company on December 3rd and he brought that back to the
Board at the December meeting; Commissioner Oddo was not here at that meeting and the Board wanted his input
and wanted him to be a part of this process.  He stated that the Boards ask him to bring it back up at the January
meeting in Commissioner Oddo’s absence.  He stated that the letter from the insurance company addressed the
second question first, “Is this a covered event?”  He stated that to be a covered event you have to allege damages. 
He stated that the petition in question is a petition for the removal of an appointed official from an appointed body;
the Board of Elections.  He stated that the local act which set up the Board of Elections requires this process for
removal which is filing a petition with a Superior Court in Fayette County so it makes it litigation by default and the
request was to have representation for that.  He stated that the insurance company says you are not asking for
damages therefore this is not a covered event.  He stated that saying this is not a covered event is not the same as
asking whether or not this person is an insured; that question has to be asked first.  He stated that in the policy, as
pointed out by the insurance company, quotes the definition of who is an insured.  He stated that to paraphrase it
says, “Your elected or appointed officials, but only for the conduct of their duties as your elected or appointed
officials.”  He stated that it is not just enough to be an appointed official, the act complained of has to go to the heart
of their duties as an appointed official.  He stated that the only way to determine whether or not that is triggered is to
look at the complaint.  He stated that the Board is not looking at the complaint asking did this person do these
things, but rather are there allegations being made that there are violations of the duties as a member of the Board
of Elections.  He stated that the insurance company, in the letter, says, “The petition does seem to allege the actions
were part of her duties as an elections commissioner.”  He stated that he has read the petition and there are some
things that arguably do not go toward the official acts but there clearly are paragraphs that specifically say that the
allegation is that the acts complained of violated the oath of office, violated official duties and gave examples.  He
stated that the petition itself is set up, in part, to bring into account the official duties of this appointed official.  He
stated that reading between lines of the insurance company; they do not come out and say this, but it appears that
they say this is an insured, however it is not the type of event that they will cover because no damages are alleged. 
He stated that the Board has before them the question of whether or not to provide a defense for this appointed
official.  He stated the first question is if the Board thinks this person is an insured, does the petition allege actions
which are violations of her official duties and if the Board finds that to be the case, then she is insured and the next
question is will the Board provide the coverage because the insurance company is not going to because it is not a
covered event.  He stated that to the extent that the Board decides to provide coverage, but know the insurance
company is not going to do it, what typically occurs in that instance is that it defaults to the County Attorney to
represent that person.  He stated that the County Attorney has a decision to make at that point, he knows he is going







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 19


through a flow chart, but he wants the Board to know what the options are that can be triggered once they make a
certain decision.  He stated that in this event if the Board decided that coverage should be made available because
she is an insured then the question becomes whether or not the County Attorney can represent her.  He stated that
in the facts and circumstances the history has been that the County has been involved in prior litigation on this same
issue not as an adverse party, but brought in as part of the process.  He stated that by part of the process he means
that although she is appointed by the Republican Party that appointment is then provided to the Board of
Commissioners to acknowledge that appointment and confirm that appointment and send that appointment to the
State to make it official.  He stated that he could not represent her due to a conflict and the Board could be part of
that litigation if someone made the argument against the Board as part of the process.  He stated that he would
decline based upon a conflict that would give the Board the opportunity to do what has been done in the past which
is to still allow for someone to represent her, just not him.  He stated that the Board would pay that person at the rate
of the County Attorney.  He stated that he is not telling the Board to decide one way or the other, he is just saying
that if that is the decision of the Board that is the flow chart that is going to happen as a result of that decision.  He
asked the Board if they have any questions.


Commissioner Ognio asked if the Board could include a Reservation of Rights.


Mr. Davenport stated that this was a good question and stated that as a matter of fact, when the insurance company
offers to defend an item that is sometimes a gray area for coverage, you will get what is called a Reservation of
Rights letter and that letter says that the insurance company will offer a defense but if you are found guilty of X,Y or
Z; X,Y or Z is not a covered part of the policy so the insurance company is not going to pay for that and they can end
up getting money back due to the fact that they had to spend money on something that they should not have
defended.  He stated that the insurance company then reserves the right to say they will not leave you hanging and
provide the defense, but the extent that something occurs that is not covered or not part of, in this case, official acts
there is the ability for the Board to say yes this Reservation of Rights allows to defray some of the cost or to seek
reimbursement of some of those funds.


Commissioner Oddo asked if a vote was needed.


Mr. Davenport stated that is up to the Board of when to handle this.  He stated that he believes the request was
made about four months ago.  He stated that he brought it to the Board for the first time in November which was
already two weeks old then.  He stated that it traveled through to the insurance company and returned back in
December and now it is January and the Board does not meet again until the 23rd and he believes Ms. Watts would
certainly like a decision this evening, but if the Board finds, based upon the information that more time is needed,
that is within the Board’s prerogative.  


Commissioner Oddo asked for any comments.


Commissioner Ognio stated that the Board has done all the research that can be done on this and he thinks it would
be appropriate to make a motion that the Board reimburse Ms. Watts based on the rates of the County Attorney and
to include a Reservation of Rights document drawn up by the County Attorney.


Commissioner Oddo stated that before the second, he would like to give some comments.  He stated that he wants
to express that none of the Commissioners are attorneys and that they have to depend on counsel, the insurance
company provider and this is decision that could possibly go either way, but if the person is in the capacity working
for the County, and there is the indication from the insurance provider that is the case, then he thinks it is difficult not







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 20


to provide some type of defense.  He stated that he does not want it to get out of hand, but the Board needs to get
this resolved and he does think a decision should be made and not delay this anymore.  


Commissioner Barlow stated that it was mentioned that she has already incurred $15,000 is there anyway the Board
gets to examine that and question the hours and the charges, what was accomplished.  He stated that he did a lot of
work in the medical malpractice field and saw a lot billings and he knows that different attorneys have different fee
structures.  He stated that some charge $500 an hour, some $350 and some $150.  He stated that he would like to
establish that the County will pay $150 an hour.  He asked is that correct.


Mr. Davenport stated that he believes that Commissioner Ognio said at the rate of the County Attorney.  He stated
that if there were fees that were incurred to-date that total $15,000, that $15,000 figure would have to be examined
as to whether or not that was at the rate of $150 an hour.  He stated that it probably was not.


Commissioner Barlow stated that is what he is asking.  He stated that the Board needs to determine whatever the
amount is that is being agreed upon to reimburse her and he would second the motion.


Commissioner Oddo stated that the motion needs to be restated.


Commissioner McCarty stated that in the event that she is found guilty in what she is defending herself of, what
would be the result of the legality of the County being able to pay her fees.


Mr. Davenport stated that the best way to answer that question is to say this petition has a number of allegations and
there is going to have to be a finding of fact by the Chief Judge of the Superior Court.  He stated that finding of fact
made by the judge is ultimately determine if she is removed from the seat or if she maintains the seat, so it is not so
much a finding of guilt or not guilty, it is a finding of was sufficient cause alleged that justifies her removal.  He stated
that is part of the double edge sword that brings the County in the middle of this because in order to allege sufficient
cause seems like the petition had to go into allegations against the official duty.  He stated that otherwise it is difficult
to show cause for removal.  He noted that this was his own editorial and not anything set out in the law.  He stated
that it has that double edge sword effect to the County because it triggers that definition of acts being alleged that go
to the heart of her duties.  He stated that the Board would have to examine the final decision of the judge.  He stated
that if the final decision of the judge was no removal it is a moot issue.  He stated that it is not simply a
reimbursement it is going forward from today and covering things in the future until this is resolved.  He stated that if
she is removed the Board would have to examine the decision as to why she was removed.  He stated the question
is was this something that although was done as an official act, was done improperly, but did not rise to the level of
malfeasants or something to the effect that she had no authority.  He stated that it is a mixed question and the Board
has to examine the decision to know how to treat that Reservation of Rights issue brought up by Commissioner
Ognio.  


Commissioner Oddo stated that if the Board goes forward that the Board might want to say something to the effect
that they pay no more than the hourly rate of the County Attorney if Ms. Watts is fortunate enough to have someone
who pays less, the County should not pay more.  He stated the County should pay what she is paying or no more
than the $150 an hour the County is paying.  


Mr. Davenport stated that he believes the spirit of that is being carried forward in the motion the way it is.  He stated
that he does not believe there will be an issue of being less than $150.







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 21


Commissioner Ognio moved to reimburse Ms. Marilyn Watts not to exceed the rate of the County Attorney and to
include a Reservation of Rights document drawn by the County Attorney.  Commissioner Barlow seconded.  Mr.
Davenport stated that his interpretation of reimbursement is reimbursement in the past, plus going forward from
tonight.  Commissioner Barlow stated yes.  Commissioner Oddo stated that is his understanding.  The motion was
passed with a 4-0-1 vote.  Chairman Brown recuse himself from this item.


Chairman Brown returned to his seat.


Mr. Davenport stated that he has two items of pending litigation and one item to review the Executive Session
minutes for December 12, 2013 for Executive Session.  


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioners Barlow stated that he would like to thank the people who stayed for the meeting.  He stated that he
would like to thank Bishop Waldorf for staying and that he knows it was kind of painful, but that Bishop Waldorf can
go back and share with the church this wonderful process we call the government.


Commissioner Oddo stated that streaming works.  He stated that while he was in his wife’s hometown of Cali,
Columbia he was watching the Commissioners on TV and the empty space just did not look right.  He stated that it
worked wonderfully.  He stated that he could keep up with what was going on and he was making comments but no
one could hear him, but that will come some day.  He stated that today is his wife’s 11th year of coming to the United
States.  He stated that her anniversary of arriving in Miami and going through the rigagomme that we put new
immigrants through, so he wants to congratulate her for that.


Commissioner McCarty stated that he would like to thank everyone for coming.  He stated that he has had more
calls in the last few days since his been Commissioner or even thought of becoming Commissioner.  He stated that
the general calls from the citizens, friends, family and people he did not know, and the emails, was to support Steve
Brown.  He stated that the percentage he received was about 96 percent pro Steve and the other 4 percent against
Steve.  He stated that as being an elected official as representative of the citizens in this County, they let him know
what they wanted him to do in regards to Steve and the Board.  He stated that is exactly what he did.  He stated that
he did what the citizens of this County requested.  He stated that he would like to do what they all want him to do as
he would request and all citizens would request; to do away with the property taxes, but he can’t do it.  He stated so
he does what he can and what he has the ability to do and do what he was elected to do which is represent the
citizens of the County.


Commissioner Ognio stated that he thanks everyone for coming.  He stated that it has been wonderful working with
this group last year and he looks forward to this year.  He stated that it seems like a long time since the last meeting,
but he guess he hasn’t seen most of them since last year.  He stated that the Board is moving forward.


Commissioner McCarty stated that Steve is the Chairman of the Commission, but that every individual on the
Commission has there own opinions, comes to their own conclusions with the bottom line being everything the
Board does is for the citizens.







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 22


Chairman Brown stated that he would like to make a couple of comments on the stormwater concerns.  He stated
that the Board hears them and he knows Mr. Sanchez is in a very bad situation and some have seen it personally. 
He stated that to know he has endured that for seven years since being a homeowner there is a sad state.  He
stated that the Board knows that there are some problems and gave the first attempt to try to fund some of those
problems through the Stormwater Core Infrastructure SPLOST; unfortunately that did not work, so the County is
going to plan B. He stated that the County is working on figuring out what plan B is exactly, but Mr. Sanchez and
others, the Board is aware of the problems.  He stated that the County may have a difficult time coming up with
funds for projects that are considered the most dire. 


He stated that Mr. Dennis Chase made the comment about the East Fayetteville Bypass and his philosophy is that
roads have consequences.  He stated that now people are talking about the West Fayetteville Bypass and now it is
justified.  He stated that Pinewood Studios is on Sandy Creek Road and that road has been there for 200 years, so
the County could have built that with or without the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He stated that the thing to worry about
with the West Fayetteville Bypass is now the County has opened up a lot of real estate to development very quickly. 
He stated that it is in the city limit of Fayetteville and we hope Fayetteville will do the right thing and they can keep it
under control and make a great thing happen.


Chairman Brown stated that with Mr. Bennett he let him go on because he was passionate about what he was doing
and the Board extends every possible option to allowing people to speak and that was witnessed today.  He stated
that the Board goes out of their way to make sure people have a voice and they can speak on any item on the
agenda and anything that is not on the agenda.  He stated that the Board is the only government that allows for this
consistently.  He stated that as far as the case goes, he is the employee’s attorney and there is threatened litigation
there and the Board cannot talk about it.  He stated that they heard a lot of comments and now there will be a lot of
silence from the Board, because when there is threatened litigation the Board cannot talk about it because they will
jeopardize the County’s position.  He stated that there are two sides to every situation and to keep that in mind.


He stated that he appreciates working with the Commissioners and the Board started off the year on a good note
and he appreciates everything that they do and thank you for being here for the citizens of Fayette County.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Two items of pending litigation and one item to review Executive Session minutes for December 12, 2013.


Commissioner Oddo moved to go into Executive Session.  Commissioner Ognio seconded. The motion was passed
unanimously.


Commissioner Ognio moved to exit Executive Session and for Chairman Brown to sign the affidavit.  Commissioner
Barlow seconded.  The motion was passed unanimously.


Chairman Brown moved to approve the Executive Session minutes for December 12, 2013.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded.  The motion was passed unanimously.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Ognio moved to adjourn the January 9, 2014 meeting.  Commissioner Barlow seconded.  The motion
was passed unanimously.







Minutes
January 9, 2014
Page Number 23


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
   Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 23rd day of January 2014.


___________________________________
    Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk
















COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of Petition No. 1233-13, Tony Harris, Owner, request to rezone 4.05 acres from A-R Agriculture-Residential to R-40 Single-


Family Residential to develop two (2) residential lots, with said property being located in Land Lots 227 and 254 of the 5th District and 


fronting on Kenwood Road and South Kite Lake Road, with two recommended conditions.


Staff recommends approval of Petition 1233-13 to rezone 4.05 acres from A-R: Agriculture-Residential to R-40: Single-Family 


Residential, with two recommended conditions. 


 


The Planning Commission voted 4-0 for approval of  Petition 1233-12, with two recommended conditions.  Those conditions are: 


 


1)  The owner / developer shall provide, at no cost to Fayette County, a quit-claim deed for 50 feet as measured from the centerline of 


Kenwood Road and South Kite Road prior to the approval of the Minor Subdivision Plat and said dedication area shall be shown on the 


Minor Subdivision Plan. 


 


2)  That the applicant brings the existing single-family dwelling into compliance with the R-40 zoning district prior to the submittal of the 


Minor Subdivision Plat.  This can be achieved either by adding square footage to the existing single-family dwelling to bring it into 


compliance or through a variance, approved by the Zoning Board of Appeals, to reduce the square footage requirement.  If the variance 


is denied, square footage shall be added to the residential structure prior to the submittal of the Minor Subdivision Plat.


Approval of Petition No. 1233-13, Tony Harris, Owner, request to rezone 4.05 acres from A-R Agriculture-Residential to R-40 Single-


Family Residential to develop two (2) residential lots, with said property being located in Land Lots 227 and 254 of the 5th District and 


fronting on Kenwood Road and South Kite Lake Road, with two recommended conditions.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Public Hearing #9

























































































		Planning & Zoning - Rezoning 1233-13 - Agenda Request File

		Planning & Zoning - Rezoning 1233-13 - Backup










MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Special Called Meeting


Board of Commissioners


January 15, 2014


 5:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in a Special Called Meeting on January 15, 2014 at 5:00


p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,


Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman


Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow


Allen McCarty


Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator


Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk


Dennis Davenport, Interim County Attorney
_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order


Chairman Brown called the January 15, 2014 Special Called Meeting to order at 5: 03 p.m.


Acceptance of Agenda


Commissioner McCarty moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No


discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


NEW BUSINESS:


1. Consideration of staff’s request to adopt Ordinance 2014-01 amending the Fayette County Code of
Ordinances, Section 5-163–Temporary Certificate of Occupancy (TCO) Prohibited and Section 5-
813.–Temporary Certificate of Occupancy Prohibited.


Commissioner Oddo asked staff to provide an overview of what was being requested.  Mr. Joe


Scarborough, Director of Fayette County’s Permits and Inspection Department, provided an overview of the


request by explaining that the current Fayette County Building Code does not allow the building official to


issue a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy (TCO).  He said that with the significant increase of large,


nonresidential developments, both ongoing and proposed within the county, that it would be beneficial to


industry to consider allowing a TCO for a specific portion of the building should all the building, life-safety,


accessibility, and fire codes be met for that portion of the building.  Mr. Scarborough said there were many


examples of where TCOs could be issued including such as office warehouses where the warehouse



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent #16-B







Minutes- Special Called Meeting
January 15, 2014
Page Number 2


portion meets the requirements for a TCO; allowing the owners to start stocking the warehouse while the


office portion was still being constructed.  He repeated that currently the County does not have provisions in


place to help in these types of instances.  Mr. Scarborough added that everyone was aware of Pinewood


Studios but emphasized that this effort would be beneficial to all of the industry.  He explained that this


effort was limited in its scope since there are specific qualifications and restrictions that would have to be


met, and that there would be a very tight rein on issuing TCOs.


Commissioner Oddo asked what would happen if the 45-day provision expired and the occupants are still


not ready, and he asked if the occupants would be able to obtain another TCO.  County Administrator Steve


Rapson replied that at the end of the 45-day period there is a revocation provision that would apply.  He


added that one other caveat is that the TCO would be applied only to those sites with a minimum 50-acre


tract and the building has to be more than 25,000 square feet.  He said staff was trying to define the box so


that it would be big enough to help industries in the future and not for an isolated case such as the


Pinewood development.  He explained that this effort was a “pro-business” approach in regards to allowing


applicants to obtain a TCO and within 45-days obtaining a standard Certificate of Occupancy.


County Attorney Dennis Davenport asked the Board to refer to Section 5-167, and he explained that it


addresses the issue of the expiration of the TCO.  He told the Board that the problem with a TCO is that


once someone is allowed to occupy a building it is hard to get them out of a building.  He stated that this


effort was putting into black and white that the occupants would be subject to a daily fine for every day that


occupant is in violation of the County Code by not having a standard Certificate of Occupancy; and that the


fines could become substantial.


Commissioner Ognio referred to Section 5-168, and he stated that while there were a few terms utilized


revoking a Certificate of Occupancy, that the section did not address a situation where the occupant uses a


section of the building without a Certificate of Occupancy.  Mr. Davenport replied that, with regard to


Section 5-168, the language was not added since it was what was in the current code.  He said the only


reason Section 5-168 was part of the document before the Board was because it was renumbered from


Section 5-164 to Section 5-168, with the new provisions going in front of it.  He said staff would likely have


to come back and address the language in the future, but this effort was for the sole purpose of showing for


housekeeping purposes, the renumbering of the sections.  Mr. Scarborough added that Section 5-168 was


originally drafted only for the revocation of a Certificate of Occupancy, but that the Board was considering


the adoption of a whole new title under a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy.  


Commissioner Ognio asked if there was any way to revoke a TCO.  Mr. Davenport answered that due to


the nature of the TCO being only 45-days long, whatever revocation procedure is put into place will be mute


since the TCO would expire in 45-days.  Commissioner Ognio said he was thinking about a scenario where


the occupant starts utilizing a part of the building that they are not supposed to be utilizing, and he asked if


there was any way that the County could address that.  Mr. Davenport replied that assuming that happens it


will take probably more than 30 or 45 days to bring that issue before a body and hear the facts as to what


needs to be done to address the issue.  He suggested that by the time those actions occur then the TCO


would have expired.  Commissioner Ognio replied that was why he thought there was some provision


stating matters like these would not have to come before a body since something could be done without


having to come before a body.  Mr. Davenport answered that he had hoped to have this discussion in the


future because the County cannot simply tell somebody to leave a building that they have been given


permission to occupy, and that it would take some type of due process.  Commissioner Ognio expressed


concern that once someone is allowed to occupy a building that they it is their building and that the County







Minutes- Special Called Meeting
January 15, 2014
Page Number 3


would not have any recourse to even remove them from the portion of the building they are not supposed to


be in.  Mr. Davenport replied that was the reason there was passive language in the recommended


amendments before the Board stating “subject to a daily fine” if the occupant does not get a Certificate of


Occupancy by the end of 45 days, and he said that was the best the County could do under the


circumstances.  He added that the daily fines would get to a point where it gets the occupants attention


because there could be 15 or more citations going before a judge.  Commissioner Ognio asked if the


occupants could be issued a citation if they use part of the building that is not supposed to be used.  Mr.


Scarborough replied that they could be cited for illegal occupancy, that the County Marshals would issue


the citation, and that the occupant would be brought before a judge.  Mr. Scarborough added that the Fire


Marshal had also stated that he has provisions to could revoke a Fire Safety Certificate and that the


Building Code gives provisions to revoke a Certificate of Occupancy.  He added that there was still a


question of enforceability due to what the Building Code said versus a judge’s interpretation of the Building


Code.


   


Commissioner McCarty said he built a studio at one time that had an occupancy capacity of 3,200 people,


and that they had to get a TCO with a 45-day allowance since the construction was not completed in time.


He assured everyone the work in completing the studio was done by the end of the 45 days due to the fines


associated with not completing the work on time. 


Mr. Scarborough thanked those involved in getting this effort completed including Chairman Brown, Mr.


Rapson, Mr. Davenport, the Fire Marshal, and Mr. Pete Frisina.  


Commissioner Barlow pointed out that the occupant needed to submit a request in writing providing proper


justification for receiving a TCO, and he asked if that effort was take care of “in-house.”  County


Administrator Rapson replied he anticipated the occupant applying for a TCO within the next day or two. 


Chairman Brown added that they were really close to applying for a Certificate of Occupancy.  


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve staff’s request to adopt Ordinance 2014-01 amending the Fayette


County Code of Ordinances, Section 5-163.–Temporary Certificate of Occupancy Prohibited and Section 5-


813.–Temporary Certificate of Occupancy Prohibited.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No


discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  Copies of the request and Ordinance 2014-01,


identified as “Attachment 1", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


ADJOURNMENT:







Minutes- Special Called Meeting
January 15, 2014
Page Number 4


Commissioner McCarty moved to adjourn the January 15, 2014 Special Called Meeting.  Commissioner Barlow


seconded the motion.    No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board adjourned the January 15, 2014 Special Called Meeting at 5:14 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________


      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,


Georgia, held on the 23rd day of January 2014.


___________________________________


        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk












AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


January 23, 2014


 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of Ms. Jennifer Deng as the District-wide Runner-up in the


2013 Water Essay Contest.


2. Recognition of the All-County Football Teams.


3. Recognition of Eagle Scout Avery Paugh.


4. Recognition of Eagle Scout Tyler Brown.


5. Recognition of the Fayette County Faith Based Disaster Network Team


Leaders.


6. Recognition of Mallett Consulting.


7. Proclamations recognizing Fayette County couples celebrating their


milestone Wedding Anniversaries.


PUBLIC HEARING:


8. Consideration of Petition No. 1232-13, Jerry M. Gable and Lowell T.


Mullins, Owners, and Christine Flanigan, Agent, request to rezone 3.35


acres from A-R Agriculture-Residential to R-40 Single-Family Residential


to develop two (2) residential lots, with said property being located in Land


Lot 88 of the 5th District and fronting on South Jeff Davis Drive and


Callaway Road, with three recommended conditions.


9. Consideration of Petition No. 1233-13, Tony Harris, Owner, request to


rezone 4.05 acres from A-R Agriculture-Residential to R-40 Single-Family


Residential to develop two (2) residential lots, with said property being


located in Land Lots 227 and 254 of the 5th District and fronting on


Kenwood Road and South Kite Lake Road, with two recommended


conditions.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, Interim County


Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
January 23, 2014
Page Number 2


CONSENT AGENDA:


10. Approval of Resolution 2014-02 establishing qualifying fees for the 2014 State Court Judge’s election.


11. Approval of staff’s request to add Ballard’s Terrace as a district to Fayette County’s Street Light Program.


12. Approval of Resolution 2013-04 authorizing reimbursement of fees and expenses (“Reimbursement


Resolution”) in connection with the implementation of Category I and Category II: Tier I Stormwater Utility


Projects for Fayette County.


13. Consideration of the Water Committee’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-02 amending the


Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 19 by adding White Lining.


14. Approval of the 2014 Water Committee’s meeting schedule.


15. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to allow The Frederick Brown, Jr. Amphitheater in


Peachtree City to insert a flyer in customer’s water bills during the month of April 2014.


16. Approval of January 9, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes and the January 15, 2014 Board of


Commissioners Special Called Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


17. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-17 amending Chapter 14 Recreation and


Parks of the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia.  This item was tabled by Commissioner


Ognio at the November 14, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.


NEW BUSINESS:


18. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation of Mr. Neely Moody to serve as an alternate


member on the Fayette County Ethics Board for a three-year term beginning immediately and expiring


January 22, 2017.


19. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation of Dr. John T. Hopkins to serve as an


alternate member on the Fayette County Ethics Board for a two-year term beginning immediately and


expiring on January 22, 2016.


20. Consideration of the Information System’s recommendation to fund for a Network Administrator position at


an entry-level rate, effective March 1, 2014, in order to facilitate execution of the Strategic Technology Plan


and to implement emerging technologies.


21. Consideration of staff’s request to adopt Resolution 2014-03 requesting the Georgia General Assembly to


pass a local act amending the enabling legislation of the Public Facilities Authority in order to permit the


Authority to issue revenue bonds for Stormwater Management projects.







Agenda
January 23, 2014
Page Number 3


PUBLIC COMMENT:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Environmental Management Steve Rapson


Approval of Resolution 2014-04 authorizing reimbursement of fees and expenses (“Reimbursement Resolution”) in connection with the 


implementation of Category I and Category II: Tier I Stormwater Utility Projects for Fayette County.


The Board of Commissioners has vowed to address the serious problem of the past decades of stormwater infrastructure that has not 


been maintained or replaced. With the recent SPLOST initiative not being passed, staff is proposing we issue Stormwater Utility Bonds to 


address these essential repairs to our existing infrastructure that will keep our roads open and protect citizens from having their property 


damaged from flooding.  


 


Prior to the Stormwater Utility issuing bonds to expedite the Category I and Category II: Tier I Stormwater Utility Projects, the County will 


advance its own funds to pay for these projects in an amount estimated not to exceed $2,000,000. This Reimbursement Resolution would 


allow the County to be reimbursed for these advances in preparation of the bond being issued in the near future. 


 


Category I Projects:  


Flooding & Safety where failure or improper operation may result in loss of property or probable loss of human life. 


Category II; Tier I Projects:  


Deformation or damage of system may affect the drainage capacity or overall function of the structure and these projects are in 


immediate need of attention.


Approval of Resolution 2014-04 authorizing reimbursement of fees and expenses (“Reimbursement Resolution”) in connection with the 


implementation of Category I and Category II: Tier I Stormwater Utility Projects for Fayette County.


The General Fund would loan the Stormwater Utility and be reimbursed  via the Reimbursement Resolution once bond proceeds are 


available.


No N/A


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent #12

















		Stormwater- Utility Reimbursement Agenda Request File

		Stormwater- Utility Reimbursement Resolution Backup

		Attachment 3- Commissioners- Resolution 2013-18 Agenda Request with Backup-1

		Commissioners- Resolution 2013-18 Agenda Request with Backup

		Commissioners- Resolution 2013-18 Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Resolution 2013-18 Backup

		Resolution 2013-18 Backup-1

		Resolution 2013-18 Backup-2

		Fayette County

		City of Fayetteville List

		City of Peachtree City List

		Town of Brooks List

		Town of Tyrone List



		Resolution 2013-18 Backup-3





		Resolution 2013-18



		Attachment 3a












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Street Lights Vanessa Birrell


Approval of staff's request to add Ballard's Terrace as a district to Fayette County's Street Light Program.


The Fayette County Street Lighting Program illuminates streets in participating subdivisions in accordance with standards of the 


American National Standard Practice for Roadway Lighting, 1973.  In September 1983, the Board of Commissioners created Fayette 


County Street Light Districts.  Platted subdivisions are eligible to become a Street Light District when there are at least ten property 


owners and at 66.67% of those property owners voting in favor of crating a Street Light District.  


 


Ballards Terrace, LLC. and Jeff Lindsey Homes are the property owners in the subdivision known as Ballard's Terrace, and they are 


petitioning Fayette County to add Ballard's Terrace as a district to Fayette County's Street Light Program.  This petition represents thirty-


six (36) property owners and equates to 100% support for creating the street light district. 


 


There are fourteen (14) 100-watt street lights inside Ballard's Terrace.  Each light is $12.25 per month for a total monthly bill of $171.50.  


Property owners agree to pay an additional annual assessment on the tax bill of $60.00 to repay the county's expenses.


Approval of staff's request to to add Ballard's Terrace as a district to Fayette County's Street Light Program.


These additional lights will cost $171.50 per month according to Coweta-Fayette EMC.  Assessments for street lights are levied on the 


tax bills for participants in the street light program.  The residents agree to pay the additional assessments required to add these lights.


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent #11







FAYETTE COT]NTY
PETITION FOR STREET LIGIITING


WE, TIIT', T]NDERSIGI\ED, ALL BEING PROPERTY OWNERS OF THE STREET LIGHT


DrsrRrcr bat\ords J-<*-\dc( , DO IIEREBY PETIIION TIIE FAYETTE COI]NTY


BOARD OF COMMIS$OI\ERS FOR TIIE PLACEMENT OF STREET LIGIITS THROUGII OtiR


suBDrvrsloN oR STREET(S).


EACII OF US DOES HT'REBY PLEDGE AIYD CONSENT TO TIIE LEVYING OF A LIEN BY


FAYETTD COT]NTY AGAINST PROPERTY WE OWN FOR THF PT]RPOSE OF PAYMENT OF TIIE


COST OF A}[D OPERATING TEE STREET LIGIITS. IIIERD ARE ITT]MBER OF LOTS


CTTRRENTLYEXISTINGIN STREET LIGHT DISTRICT AI\D


EACH OWI\Tf,,R AS SHOWI\ ON THE TAX RECORDS HAS AT'FIRMA'TTVELY SIGI\ED TIIIS


PETITION ORII\DICATION FORDISAPPROVAL IS NOTED HEREIN.


THIsPETITIoNREPREsENTS 3LO AFFIRMAITIIE VOITS, OR


% oF THTS DISTRICT TO BE EFTDCTED rN THIS REQIIEST. YOUR STGNATITRE ON


TIIIS PETITION II\IDICATED THAT YOU HAYE READ AIID FI]LLY UIIDERSTAND TIIE


REOT]IREMENTS FOR APPROVAL OF A STREET LIGIIT DISTRICT.


Personally appeared before me, a Notary Public, the undersigned affant who says on oath that !g,


glg is one of the subscriblng witnesses to the within instrument; that each of said witnesses say the execution


and delivery of the same by each grantor therein for the purpose set forth; and that each of said wihesses


siped the same as purported.


Sworn to and subscribed before me.


this dayof Dc,-" ro-<
20_13 .







REOUIREN{ENTS FORAPPROVAL OF A STREETLIGET DISTRICT


rn order for a streetlight District to be formed, the following steps rre necessary:


l. Obtain Petition Forms from the Engineering DepartuenL


All property owrers in the subdivision must be contacted and they must sign "Yesil or "Noil
conceming the installetion of sfreet lighting and billing by Fayette County upon their tax bills. Only
the property owner's signefure will be accepted. If both husband and wife are joint legal owners,
both signatures will be required - a "Mr. & Mrs.rr signature is not acceptable. Each owner must sign
individually. In the event that a property owner cannot be personally contacte4 the recept from a
registered letter will be accepted- No signature may be rvlthdrawn from the Petition after it is filed
with the County Engineerrs Office. The pu4rose of the witnessr signature is to veri$ the property
ownerrs signature' if in question Percentages wilt be calculated based on individual lots whose
o'wnen| sign atrrmatively, divided by the total number of plattod lots in the disfricL


2. The petition must contain not less than ten (10) property ownent representing not less than sixty*ix
and twothirds percent (G213%) affrmative slgnatures of the property owners within the distrlct to
be established- A petition may howwer, be brought by less than ten (10) property owners where such
represents one hundred percent (100%) affirmative signrtures of the property owners within the
disfrict to be esteblished.


3. The completed Petition is returned to this office where it is checked to ensure requirement
compliance. It will be retumed to the sender if it does not meet such requirements of z 6G213%o
affrmative vote. Petitions meeting requirements will be presented to the Board of Commissioners at
an oftcinl Bi-Monfhly Meethg for approval or disapproval. Deadline for approval is January 1, of
each cdendar year.


4. The representative of the group requesting approvel of a Sfreetlight Disfrict and retuming the
pefltion to this office must also furnish three (3) coples of the approved ffnat plat of the subdivision.
These plats may be obtained from the Tax Assessorrs Office located at 140 Stonewall Avenue WesL
Fayetteville, GA 30214.


The objective of the Fayette County Sfreet Lighting Program is to illuminate the sfreets of pardcipating
subdivisions in accordance with strndards of the American Nefional Standerd Practice for Roadwav
Lishtlne. 1973. It is not the objective of this program to illuminate private property.


The Fayette County Street Lighting Program wilt be admintstered by the County Stormwater
Manegementrs Officg 140 Stonewall Avenue Wesg Suite 203, Fayetteville, GA 30214. Telephone:
(770)30$s4r0.


There are two power companies serving Fayette County: Georgia Power Company and Coweta-tr'ayette
EMC. Their rates vary slightly.


rn order for a Developer to have a proposed subdMsion approved as a Streetlight Districl the plat for such
subdivision must be approved and made a part of the coune/s official rax Records.


Property owners within a street light dis&ict will be billed annually on their County Tax BiIl for the previous
yearrs use of lights. Cost for street ligbting shall be set by the Board of Commissioners in consultation with
the County Engineer. In all cases, the rates for a street light disftict shall be sufficient to cover the expenses
and costs associated with the lights for that district The charges shall be levied on a 


(per lott' basis.







T.AYETTE COI]NTY STREET LIGHTING PROGRAM
SIGNATIJRE SIMET


3,b,lo,11 ,lb,2o,3t


cs


Signature


1.2,4,5,b, 1, 9, t\-\&r Iq'
2r- 30,32'3v


Lot fls)


flc\\crdsTerroe-4, LLf.
kopertyOwne(g


lfigneture


(Chochyes or no for each Address
de[shre)


Wlhess


(Chcdryes or no for eech Addrrcss
dgnrture)


Wihess


n


!


Yes No


tr


!!


Lotfs)







FAYETTE COT]NTY STREET LIGIITING PROGRAM
SIGNATI]RE SHEET


Lotfls)


koperty Owner(s)


(Sheet &No.)
Yes No (chect yecornororeachAddress


dgnrhFe)


!!


D!
lVihe*s


Yes No (Check yes or no for eoch Address
rigrihne)


!!


!n
lVituess


Slgnature


Lot{s)


Property Owner(o)


(Street &No.)


Signature





		Street Light- Petition Agenda Request File

		Street Light- Petition Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Steve Brown / Christopher Dunn


Recognition of the All-County Football Teams.


The Fayette Newspaper has named its All-County Football Teams for the 2013 season.  The list includes recognition of the individuals: 


 


Andrew Johnson- County Player of the Year from McIntosh High School 


Cole Garvin- Offensive Player of the Year from Sandy Creek High School 


Colton Clemons- Defensive Player of the Year from Whitewater High School 


Lee-Belknap- Coach of the Year from McIntosh High School 


 


The All-County First, Second, and Honorable Mentioned teams will be in attendance. 


 


Sports Editor Christopher Dunn, of the Fayette Daily News, will attend the meeting and will assist in the recognitions. 


 


 


 


Recognition of the All-County Football Teams.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionJanuary 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Presentation #2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Steve Brown


Recognition of Ms. Jennifer Deng as the District-wide Runner-up in the 2013 Water Essay Contest.


Over the years, the Water Essay Contest has engaged thousands of middle school students and challenged them to think critically about 


water and our region’s water resources.  This year’s contest was focused on water conservation.  Students were asked to address the 


following question, “Why is water conservation important to you and our region?”  Over 1,100 middle school students submitted essays to 


the 12th annual Water Essay Contest!  


 


The Essay Contest is one of many initiatives conducted by the Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning District to raise awareness for 


conservation efforts and preservation of water quality in metro Atlanta. At a special awards ceremony, Ms. Aubrey Gehle, an eighth-


grader from North Gwinnett Middle School, was honored for her first place essay and Jennifer Deng, a sixth-grader from J.C. Booth 


Middle in Fayette County, was recognized for her essay which earned her the title of District-wide Runner-up. 


 


Recognition of Ms. Jennifer Deng as the District-wide Runner-up in the 2013 Water Essay Contest.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionJanuary 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Presentation #1









		Commissioners- Jennifer Deng Recognition Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Jennifer Deng Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Lee Pope


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to allow The Frederick Brown, Jr.  Amphitheater in Peachtree City to insert a flyer in  


customer's water bills during the month of April 2014.


The Frederick Brown, Jr. Amphitheater, located in Peachtree City, has requested approval to insert a flyer in water bills that are mailed 


out during the month of April, 2014.  The flyer will have the Summer Concerts Series line up listed. 


 


An example of this flyer is attached.  


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to allow The Frederick Brown, Jr.  Amphitheater in Peachtree City to insert a flyer in  


customer's water bills during the month of April 2014.


No additional funding needed. Inserts will be provided by The Fred Amphitheater.


Yes April, 2011, April 2013


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, January 23, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent #15









		Water System- The Fred Agenda Request File

		Water System- The Fred Backup







